Agenda Item 3
435 Oak Knoll Drive
New Residence

Staff Report

Building Scale Summary
Vicinity Map

Air Photos

Materials Submitted by Petitioner
Application

Statement of Intent

Description of Exterior Materials
Proposed Site Plan

West (Front) Elevation

North Elevation

East Elevation

South Elevation

Roof Plan

Building Section

Color Rendering

Basement Floor Plan

First Floor Plan

Second Floor Plan

Preliminary Site Grading & Drainage Plan
Tree Inventory

Preliminary Landscape Plan

Supplemental Materials
Subdivision Map — Previously Approved Residences
Previous Board Approvals

Materials shown in italics are included in the Board packet only. A complete copy of the
packet is available from the Community Development Department.

Building Review Board
April 6, 2022



435 Oak Knoll Drive

Consideration of a request for approval of a new residence, an attached garage, tree removal
plan, a conceptual landscape plan and the overall site plan.

Property Ownet/Developer: Fidelity Wes of Oak Knoll LL.C (Mike DeMat, 100%)
Contract Purchasers: John and Mindy Rittner
Project Representative: Rick Swanson, architect

Staff Contact: Jen Baehr, Planner

Summary of Request
This is a request for approval of a new single family residence and attached garage on a vacant lot.

Board consideration of the overall site plan and landscape plan is also requested.

Description of Property

The property is located on the east side of Oak Knoll Drive. The property is Lot 3 in the Oak Knoll
Woodlands subdivision. The property totals 33,532 square feet. As established by the Plat of
Subdivision there is a drainage and consetvation easement at the rear of the property that ranges
from 70 feet wide on the south end to 60 feet wide on the north end.

To date, the Board has approved petidons for new residences on a total of 11 lots in this 16 lot
subdivision. The petition cutrently presented to the Board was submitted by the developer on behalf
of the contract purchasets.

Note: The contract purchasers are advised that critical infrastructure for the subdivision has
not yet been completed by the developer. However, the City is willing to grant an exception
to standard procedures and work with contract purchasers to advance review of the
proposed residence and issue permits to allow construction of the home to begin subject to
the homeowner and the developer signing an Acknowledgment that no Certificates of
Occupancy can be issued until the critical infrastructure is completed, inspected and
determined to be acceptable by the City.

Review and Evaluation of Applicable Standards from the City Code
Below is a teview of the standards outlined in the City Code for the Board’s consideration.

Site Plan — This standard is not fully met.

The proposed residence faces west toward the street and is sited at an angle on the property
following the curve of the street. The attached garage faces north. A paver patio is proposed at the
rear of the home. A single cutb cut is proposed generally at the center of the property and the
driveway winds through the front yard to the north side of the house to access the garage.

The site plan and information submitted by the petitioner shows that the amount of impetvious
surface on the site totals 6,089 square feet and is equal to 18.2 percent of the lot area. The building
footprint is 2,860 square feet, and hardscape and driveway together total 3,229 square fect.

The contract putchasers and atchitect stated that their intent was to develop a site plan that
preserves as many trees as possible on the site. The home is proposed between trees on each side of
the house. This approach to try and fit the home between the trees results in the home being very
close to many trees on both sides of the house. As a result, many of the trees outside of the building



Building Review Board —~ April 6, 2022

and driveway footprints, ate likely to be negatively impacted due to the close proximity of the
proposed residence and driveway and as a result of construction activity. In a three to five year time
span, many trees are likely to be lost on the site. In the opinion of the City’s Certified Arborist, the
site plan should be studied and modified to increase the likelihood that the healthiest and highest
quality trees will survive the construction of the home. To achieve that goal, it may be necessary to
temove mote of the lower quality trees and trees that are in decline. The higher quality, healthy trees
are primarily located in the front yard and on the northeast side of the site. Consideration should be
given to flipping the house and driveway and shifting the house slightly further back on the site to
give the higher quality healthy trees on the site best chance of sutvival.

As discussed during previous meetings in the consideration of other homes in this subdivision, it is
important that from the start of the design process the design team should work to develop site
plans that ate sensitive to the specific conditions of each property. Engaging a Cettified Arborist
and licensed engineer eatly in the process will help to expedite reviews of the plans.

Building Massing and Height — This standard is met.

Based on the lot size, a residence of up to 4,677 square feet is permitted on the site. In addition, a
garage of up to 600 square feet is permitted along with up to 468 square feet of design elements.
Design elements ate defined as those elements that provide human scale to a residence and help to
mitigate the appearance of mass and include elements such as single dormers and porches.

o The proposed tesidence totals 4,156 square feet.

e The proposed garage totals 665 square feet; the excess square footage of the gatage is
counted toward the overall squate footage of the house.

e Tn addition to the above square footage, a total of 36 square feet of design elements are
incotporated into the design of the house.

e In total, the residence is 521 squate feet below the maximum allowable square footage.

At the maximum height, the residence is 354" tall as measured from the lowest point of existing
grade adjacent to the home to the tallest roof peak. The maximum height allowed for this lot is 40
teet.

Elevations — This standard is met.

Based on information provided in the petitioner’s statement of intent, the proposed residence is
inspired by the architecture of classic English Manots. The residence presents a primary two story
mass with smaller masses that step down from the main mass on the north side of the home. The
tesidence features steeply pitched gable and hip roof forms. The home presents elements common
to English manor homes including brick extetior walls, half-imbeting, tall narrow openings, and a
large chimney with decorative brickwork.

Type, color, and texcinre of materials — This standard is generally mer.

The extetior walls of the home will be brick with some stucco ateas with half-timbering detailing.
The entry element on the front of the home will be clad in stone. The sunroom on the rear of the
home will have wood paneling between openings. The main roof material is proposed as a synthetic
product that is textured. The bay window will have a copper roof. Wood will be used for the
window headers, fascia, rakeboards and soffits. The window and door trim will be limestone. The
tear balcony railing is wood. Aluminum clad wood windows with exterior and interior muntin bats
are proposed. Aluminum gutters and downspouts are proposed. The chimney is brick with a clay
chimney pot.

Page 2



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

During last month’s meeting, the Board approved the use of a synthetic roof material in the
subdivision for the home at 415 Oak Knoll Drive, the home directly north of this property.
All the other homes approved by the Boatd to date in the subdivision have wood shingle
roofs.

Like the home at 415 Oak Knoll Drive, this home as cutrently presented, commits to using
many high quality, natural materials. However, this developer has approached staff and the
Board in the past, after approvals have been granted and permits issued, with a request for
changes in materials and design elements of the houses after the fact. So, it will be
important that if the Board is supportive of the synthetic roof matetial in this case, that it be
conditioned on the developer and contract putchasers following through with the high-
quality natural materials reflected on the plans presented to and approved by the Board.

Landscaping - This standard can be met.

As currently proposed, a total of five trees are proposed for removal on the site. Two of the trees
proposed for removal are dead and will not require replacement inches. The trees proposed for
temoval consist of White Oak, Red Oak, Shagbatk Hickory, Elm and Ash trees. Out of the healthy
trees proposed for removal, two trees are identified as Heritage trees due to their size being greater
than 18 inches in diameter. Based on the size, species, and conditions of the trees currently
proposed for removal there is a total of 62 required replacement inches. As noted above, the site
plan as proposed will likely impact additional trees that ate not currently included as part of the
proposed removals. Additional replacement inches will be tequired as impacts on other trees are
observed.

The landscape plan submitted by the petitioner reflects shrub and ornamental plantings around the
foundation of the home as well as a number of shade and evergreen trees across the site. A row of
arborvitae is proposed along the north side of the driveway for screening. The landscape plan as
submitted meets the minimum landscaping tequitements for new residential construction and the
requited replacement inches as currently anticipated.

Because additional study of the site plan is needed, the tree removals and requited
replacement inches for trees removed on the site may change depending on the site plan that
is ultimately approved. Once a site plan is finalized, the required replacement inches will be
recalculated, and a detailed landscape plan will be tequired and will be subject to review and
approval by the City once it is determined that the plan satisfies the required replacement
inches and complies with good forestry practices.

Public Comment

Public notice of this petition was provided in accordance with the City requitements and practices.
Notice was mailed by the Community Development Department to surrounding property owners
and the agenda for this meeting was posted at various public locations. As of the date of this writing,
no cotrespondence was received regarding this request.

Recommendation

Recommend approval of the residence, attached garage, and overall site plan based on the findings
presented in this staff repozt and as they may be further detailed during the Board’s deliberations.
Staff recommends approval subject to the following conditions of approval.

1. The site plan shall be modified in consultation with the petitioner’s and the City’s
Certified Arborist, with the goal of increasing the chances of preserving the most
Page 3



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

desirable and healthy trees on the site. The revised site plan shall be subject to
review and approval by City staff and the City’s Certified Arborist in consultation
with the Chairman. If a satisfactoty site plan cannot be reached the petition may be
retutned to the Board for further review.

2. All modifications to the plans including those detailed above and any others made in
response to Boatd ditection or as the result of final design development, shall be
clearly called out on the plan and a copy of the plan originally provided to the Boatd
shall be attached for comparison purposes. Staff is directed to review any changes, in
consultation with the Chairman as appropriate to determine whether the
modifications are in conformance with the Board’s direction and approval ptiot to
the issuance of any permits.

3. The final landscape shall include, but not be limited to, all required replacement tree
inches to account fot trees removed and shall meet the minimum landscaping
standards for new residences detailed in the Code, including ground cover, mid-level
and canopy trees and evergreens across the site.

4. If determined to be necessary by the City’s Certified Arborist, any declining or
damaged patkway trees shall be removed and replaced by the developer prior to the
issuance of a Cettificate of Occupancy for this property.

5. The final grading and drainage plan shall demonstrate that the project is consistent
with the applicable Code tequirements and will be subject to review and approval by
the City Engineer. Grading or filling on the site should be kept to the absolute
minimum necessary to meet good engineeting practices, propetly direct drainage and
mitigate off site impacts.

6. Tree Protection Plan — Priot to the issuance of a building permit, a plan to protect
trees identified for presetvation and to protect trees on neighboring properties
during construction, must be submitted and will be subject to review and approval
by the City’s Cettified Atborist. In addition, a maintenance plan, including ptre and
post consttuction tteatment for trees to be preserved must be submitted.

7. Details of exteriot lighting shall be submitted with the plans submitted for permit.
Cut sheets for all light fixtutes shall be provided and all fixtures, except those tlluminated
by natural gas at low light levels, shall direct light down and the source of the light shall
be fully shielded from view. All exterior lights shall be set on automatic timets to go
off no later than 11 p.m. except for security motion detector lights.

8. A plan for construction parking and materials’ staging shall be submitted for review
and will be subject to approval by the City’s Certified Arborist, City Engineer and
Director of Community Development.

9. The construction site shall be maintained in a neat and orderly fashion. Debris must

be removed from the site on a daily basis and the street must be regularly cleaned to
eliminate caking mud.

Page 4



THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST BUILDING REVIEW BOARD -- BUILDING SCALE INFORMATION SHEET

Address 435 Oak Knoll Drive Owner(s) Fidelity Wes of Oak Knoll LLC

Representative: Rick Swanson, architect Reviewed by: Jen Baehr

Date 4/6/2022

Lot Area 33532 sq. ft.

Square Footage of New Residence:
1st floor 2036 + 2nd floor 1536 + 3rd floor 519 = 4091 sq. ft.
Design Element Allowance = 468
Total Actual Design Elements = 36 Excess = 0 sq.ft.
Garage 665 sf actual ; 600 Excess = 65 sq. ft.
Garage Width 22- Q" may not exceed 24’ in width on

lots 18,900 sf or less in size.

Basement Area = 0 sq. ft.
Accessory buildings = 0 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE = 4156 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE ALLOWED = 4677 sq. ft.
DIFFERENTIAL = -521 sq. ft.
Under Maximum
Allowable Height: 40 ft. Actual Height 35-4" ft
_NET RESULT:
521 sq.ft. is
11.00% under the
Max. allowed
DESIGN ELEMENT EXEMPTIONS
Design Element Allowance: 455 sq. ft.
Front & Side Porches = 0 sq. ft.
Rear & Side Screen Porches = 0 sq. ft.
Covered Entries = 36 sq. ft.
Portico = 0 sq. ft.
Porte-Cochere = 0 sq. ft.
Breezeway = 0 sq. ft.
Pergolas = 0 sq. ft.
Individual Dormers = 0 sq. ft.
Bay Windows = 0 sq. ft.
Total Actual Design Elements = 36 sq. ft. Excess Design Elements = 0 sq. ft.



Area of Request
435 Oak Knoll Drive

A










Ml cITy (
LAKE FOREST

CHARTIKED 12

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

PROJECT ADDRESS 435 Qak Knoll Drive

APPLICATION TYPE

RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIAL PROJECTS
Xi New Residence [(] Demolition Complete | [[] New Building ) Landscape/Parking
[] New Accessory Building [ ] Demolition Partial [ Addition/Alteration [] Lighting
[J Addition/Alteration ] Height Variance [l Height Variance [7] Signage or Awnings
[] Building Scale Variance [] Other [7] Other

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION

Fldehty Wes of Qak K“O", LLC Rick Swanson AIA. NCARB

Ouwner of Property Name and Title of Person Presenting Project

201 Robert Parker Coffin Road R. M. Swanson Architects PC

Ouwner's Street Address (may be different from project address) Name of Firm

Long Grove, IL 60047 11418 E Mission Ln.

City, State and 7zp Code Street Address

847 940-8636 Scottsdale, AZ 85259

Phone Number Fax Number City, State and Zip Code
mike@fidelitywes.com 847 T57-3975
Email Address Phane Number Fax Number
ric.k‘@yﬂswanson.com

Emdi i&r ess

= e o d A
Cuoner's Signdture Refreséntative’s Signature [,

The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 8:00pm.

Please email a copy of the staff report OOwWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE
Please fax a copy of the staff report O OwNER [J REPRESENTATIVE
I will pick up a copy of the staff report at oo R O REPRESENTATIVE

the Community Development Department




CORPORATE OWNERSHIP (ExHisiT A)

Please list the names and addresses of all officers and directors of the Corporation and all shareholders
who own individually or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding stock of the corporation. In addition, this

application must be accompanied by a resolution of the Corporation authorizing the execution and

submittal of this application.

Name Mike Demar, President Name
201 Robert Parker Coffin Road
Address Long Grove, IL 60047 Address
Ownership Percentage 100 % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name
Address Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Ownership Percentage

%

Name

Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Name

Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Name Name

Address Address

Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name

Address Address

Ownership Percentage

%

Ownership Percentage

%

Page 10f 3



SWANSON
Scottsdale, AZ 85259

AR CHITECT Su (847) 757-3975

Jennifer Baehr

The City of Lake Forest

Community Development Depariment
800 N. Field Drive

Lake Forest, IL 60045

February 24, 2022

Re: The Rittner Residence
Ms. Baehr,

We are respectfully requesting the Building Review Boards consideration and approval of the
planned two-story residence for John and Mindy Rittner on Lot #3 in Oak Knoll Woodlands
subdivision. The proposed architectural vernacular embraces the Classic English Manor style
found throughout the English countryside. Roof forms are generally comprised of steep gables
with clipped second floor ceilings to bring the mass closer to the ground. The primary cladding is
warm reddish brown face brick with cut limestone trim and a monumental entrance of ashlar
field stone. The roof will be Da Vinci composite slate (European), which replicates the color,
shape and patina of real slate. This is also an appropriate for the style and complimenting
exterior material selections proposed for this home.

The proposed exterior materials will be as follows:
Roof: Da Vinci Composite Slate (European)
Brick Veneer: Glen Gery (Marquette) with regular mortar
Stone Veneer: Buechel Fond Du Lac (Country Squire)} with regular mortar
Stucco: Hand Troweled texture (Grayish buff tone)
Stone Trim: Smooth cut limestone
Windows: SDL aluminum clad casement (lron Ore)
Exposed flashings: Copper
Exterior Trim: cedar (Sherwin Williams Iron Ore SW 7069)
Porch and Steps: Brick pavers

Front Door: Painted Insulated (Walnut Brown)



Gutters & Downspouts: Seamless aluminum (Norandex bronze)

Garage Doors: Insulated fiberglass overhead door (natural stained walnut)

We appreciate this opportunity to present the proposed Rittner residence at the scheduled April
BRB meeting. Please let me know if you should have any questions or further information and
thank you for your assistance in processing this application.

Respecitfully,

Rick Swanson AlA, NCARB
R.M. Swanson Architects PC



LAKE FOREST

FHASTIRID 15"

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS

Facade Material
X  Stone ] Wood Shingle
X Brick 8  Aluminum Siding
O  Wood Clapboard Siding O  Vinyl Siding
Kl Stucco O  Synthetic Stucco
Reddish Brown face brick & 1 Other
Color of Material Buff Gray ashlar Limestone
Window Treatment
Primary Window Type Finish and Color of Windows
O  Double Hung O Wood
Bl Casement &  Aluminum Clad
O  Sliding [ Vinyl Clad
0  Other O Other
Color of Finish_Pella "lron Ore”
Window Muntins

[0 Not Provided
00 True Divided Lites

Simulated Divided Lites

Al Interior and Exterior muntin bars

O  Interior muntin bars only

O  Exterior muntin bars only

O  Muntin bars contained between the glass

Trim Material

Door Trim Window Trim

X Limestone X Limestone

O Brick O  Brick

O wood O wood

O  Synthetic Material 0  Synthetic Material
O  Other 0  Other

Fascias, Soffits, Rakeboards

X wood

O Other

O  Synthetic Material




THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS — CONTINUED

Chimney Material
X Brick
O Stone
O Stucco
O other
Roofing
Primary Roof Material Flashing Material
0 Wood Shingles Xl Copper
[0 Wood Shakes 0 Sheet Metal
0O Slte O  oOther
O  cClayTie
1  Composition Shingles_
0 Sheet Metal
[/X Other _Sunthetic Prodoct

Color of Material_Bluish grey w/ patina

Gutters and Downspouts

O Copper

& Aluminum

O  Other
Driveway Material

Kl Asphait

O Poured Concrete

Xl Brick Pavers

OO  Concrete Pavers

J  Crushed Stone

L Other

Terraces and Patios

Bluestone

Brick Pavers
Concrete Pavers
Poured Concrete
Other

oooo®




PROPOSED SITE PLAN Z _
'al
mE s
w828
O &2
S AEE
AR 83 z
C85¢
=Hw | o % 2
[ A da
i | g o g
oh]
79 ‘ .
o)
LOT AREA: 33532 SF. o
FIRST FLOOR: 201513 SF. | l T 11
GARAGE: 663.34 SF. SR
SECOND FLOOR: 1519.28 SF. g g 3l5|8|2 3|8
GARAGE ATTIC: 24562 SF. gl8|8 8|8 /8|83
SECOND FLOOR ATTIC: 51731 SF. |
SUBTOTAL: 5261286 SF.
GARAGE ALLOWANCE: -600.00 5F. |
TOTAL: 4561.28 SF.
. MAX. BULK ALLOWED: 4676.60 SF.
AN UNDER: 1532 5F. ‘
AN e
N : HEEEEEEE
o S
> 1 Y
% 0B
Enge
’ SYas
’ §s§$§=
/ 022 hE
: SEEEE
/ & 8 g § Euﬁ
,I O U‘ E
/ ‘ Z =
6 I 1z
€/ | Z =
. o
|
)
L J N LUI
pmy \ 4 é |
i @]
\ A
1%)
PROJECT # AD21187
| DRAWN BY: CoM/MB
/ 1 NORTH TR
1 \ SITE PLAN NOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGNATIONS
f } ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON AR Ol
AR 01 SCALE:"=15"-0" 24" x 36" SIZE PAPER, (ARCH-D)
\'\x 3 / o copvRum aacoat || # 1 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS ||



400"
MAXIMUM HT.

21 1/p" L
T T econp FLooR PLATE HT. |1
=10 .

4-o"
IND FLOOR CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR
k

26'-6"
ATTIC CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR

— T
101 /8"
FIRST FLOOR PLATE HT.
&-1o*
HINDOW HT.

A
1
1
|

10’}

HT.

o

PROPOSED WEST (FRONT) ELEVATION

DECORATIVE CLAY

e

CHIMNEY CAP

TINUOUS RIDGE VENTS -
PROVIDE | 5Q. FT. VENT
FOR EVERY 300 SQ. FT. OF

(5 ATTIC SPACE.

DAVINC) SLATE TILE
ROCFING

OUTLINE OF GABLE

—+ERR
Ti BRICK

|x8& CEDAR FASCIA
i CEDAR SOFFIT HITH
1 CONTINUIOUS VENT
= RATIVE CEDAR
BRACKETS
X CEDAR FRIEZE
e TUCCO FINISH SYSTEM
5/4X8 CEDAR
TRIM BOARD

——COPPER STEP
FLASHING
T —— - GREPER ROOF AND
FLASHING SYSTEM

CEDAR

i

P TR

AN

i

CORNER BOARD

'4X6 CEDAR
TRIM BOARD

TAXE CEDAR
TRIM BOARD

IIII ICK VENEER
T STONE SILL

_'}—LIN.EOFPATIO
—i (BY OTHERS)
T?_ e

1 ‘IJ ! GRADE

/"1 FRONT ELEVATION (WEST)

1
| Lt sTONE ARCH
STONE VENEER

————COACH LIGH

—

SCALE:1/4"=1'-O"

RITTNER
RESIDENCE
CUSTOM RESIDENCE
435 OAK KNOLL DRIVE
LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

8477573975
rick@unswanson com

ARCBITECTS

SWANSON

11418 E MISSION LN.
SCOTTSDALE. ARIZONA

01/28/2022
02/01/2022

02/07/2022
02/08/2022
02/18/2022
02/24/2022

03/08/2022

02/042022

REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW

REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW

REVIEW ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

NOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGMNATIONS
ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON |
24" x 36" SIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D)}

© COPYRIGHT MM

26575 COMMERCE DR,

SUITE 607
MAIN: 847-457-2500

WWW. ASPECT

VOLO, IL. 60073
IL. LICENSE ¥ 184004354

ARCHITECTS

//
}FDESIGNINCW

PROJECT # AD21187

DRAWN BY: COM/MB

RITTNER RESIDENCE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AR 02

# 2 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS




40'-0"
MAXIMUM HT,

266"

ATTIC CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR.

PROPOSED NORTH ELEVATION

RITTNER
RESIDENCE
CUSTOM RESIDENCE
435 OAK KNOLL DRIVE

LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

sick@muswanson.com

LRCNITECTS

11418 E MISSION LN.

SWANSON

SCOTTSDALE. ARIZONA

TUCCO FINISH SYSTEM

] CORATIVE CLAY
CHIMNEY CAP
COPPER ROOF AN——,
FLASHING STSTEM

HERRING BONE PATTERN
| BRICK VENEER
202 T JHL
EY

CONTINUUS RIDGE VENTS -
PROVIDE | 5Q. FT. VENT

02/04/2022

o22022 |
0040812022
24022

01/28/2022
02/0172022
02/18/2022
030812022

QUTLINE OF &GABLE
CONSTRUCTICN
SHOWN BEYOND

TT T T

7 ]
+ l 7 OPE i T (1 i i ]
T E S TEe ) B T 1R 0 (T ]
] | DECORATIVE GEDAR

T FINIALS

COPPER STEP FLASHING

IX2 ON IX& CEDAR
FASCIA

REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
.I.{EVIHW
REVIEW
REVIEW

&'l 178"

LINE OF ROCF SHOWRN
BEYOND

LI CEHI — — —

26575 COMMERCE DR.

SUITE 607
WWW. ASPECTDESIGNINC.COM

VOLO, IL 60073
MAIN: 847-457-2500
IL.LICENSE # 184-004384

a'-o"
SECOND FLOGR CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR

E; LIMESTONE
Err ==, RINDOW HEAD

i E | T e 2
i i (iR | 1 Bling {sLoPE
1 [ AL LLET L ALttt 111§t 1l

i [ana[unn]unn]nun]
[ o e o [ |
= C 1 JC_JE==

= | [ — I -]

CEDAR TIMBER
WINDOW HEAD

ARCHITECTS

L -
=iluwy

101 178"

CEDAR PAMELS -‘-——'f)_ STONE VENEER

&-o"
WINDOW HT,

. B BRICK VENEER
CUT STONE SiLL.

FIRST FLOOR PLATE HT.

LINE OF PATIO-
(BY OTHERS)

DESIGN INC.

|

—

e

REVIEW ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

I
DECORATIVE CEDAR—! COACH LIGHT
BRACKETS
¢ PROECTED
BRICK ARCH i
R
ALL BRICK/MASONRY \Uﬂ
SHALL BE 4"
FULL BED DEFTH, ]
b
PROJECT # AD21187
DRAWN BY: COM /MB
RITTNER RESIDENCE
EXTERIOR BLEVATIONS

/"1 "\ LEFT ELEVATION (NORTH) R

ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON A R 05
24" x 36" SIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D)

[—
\

AR 05 i SCALE:1/4"=]'-0"
v © COPYRIGHT MpeCaIl | # 5 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS




PROPQOSED EAST ELEVATION

DECORATIVE CLAY
CHIMNEY CAP

ATTIC SPACE.
AVING] SLATE TILE
ROOFING

COPPER, ROCF AND- a1 i
FLASHING STSTEM b 11:12 i |
T SLOPE

[ TN
1X2 ON IXB CEDAR: B 1 -__' I |'. 1
FASCIA . — '_I
PR . - . e S .= i
AR

STUCCO FINISH STSTEM

——— DECORATIVE CEDAR
FINIALS

b

1
|

-0
SECOND FLOOR CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR
b

1x CEDAR FASCIA

=
+ —
1T -
X |@ 4 Bt
g ’{) é 1XB CEDAR FASCIA T
j:4 5 CEDAR SOFFIT WITH A =
L S e CONTINJOUS d
Q -3 z
79 9% DECORATIVE CEDAR =
) &L ég BRACH 7~
¥ S e
k 4 .
32 STUCCO FINISH STSTEM 1+ = AL
z 5/4XB CEDAR - +- o gy
8 3 TRIM BOARD PorNePOUTS
b
%
9
&

5/4X8 CEDAR
. CEDAR SOFFIT WITH
[ TRIM BOARD b gL
. % = i T B DECORATIVE CEDAR
27 e LIMESTONE WINDOH =1 =1 BRACKETS
HE HEADS |
ale 2 — i
o § 5 § HERRING BONE PATTERN o )
T 8 BRICK VENEER ] ALL BRICK/MASONRY
@ = =l VENEER SHALL BE 4%
4 | o FULL BED DEPTH
e &= -
LINE OF PA /CK VENEER
Ti e ;
: <7 STORE SILL
DI S . 522 NP S : B
| = Z = z : | ,J
\I_ I ! 1 f 1 I I 1 1 \f GRADE
' CEDAR BALCONT
RAILING & NEWEL.
POSTS

/"1 "\ REAR ELEVATION (EAST)

R

SCALE: /4"=1'-O"

CONTINJUS RIDGE VENTS =
PROVIDE ) Q. FT. VENT
FOR EVERY 300 £Q. °T. OF

HOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGNATIONS
ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON
24" x 36" SIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D}

© COPYRIGHT MMXOGL

REVIEW ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

SWANSON

&S
SIEEE
O @0
Mz | Ea4
| Z & ﬁé;
=0 g
=== 4
— 2 obéig
e
08

<4

- 2

- 2§

11418 E MISSION LN.
SCOTTSDALE, ARIZONA

01/28/2022
02/01£2022
02/04/2022
02/07/2022
02/08/2022
02/18/2022
0212472022

REVEW
REVIBW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW

03/08/2022

26575 COMMERCE DR.

SUITE 607
WWW. ASPECTDESIGNING.COM

MAIN: 847-457-2500
IL. LICEXNSE # 184-004354

VOLO, IL 60073

ARCHITECTS

~

«_."h;DESIGNINC.

-
PEC

PROJECT # AD2L187

RITTNER RESIDENCE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AR 04

DRAWNBY: COM /MB|

|| # 4 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS




40'-0"
MAXIMUM HT.

206"
ATTIC CALCULATION LIRE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR

-0
SECOND FLOOR CALCULATION LINE ABOVE FIRST FLOOR

&'l /B

o'~ /8"

FIRGT FLOOR PLATE HT.

T TBTWCEO FINIBH STSTEM

&-0"

WINDOW HT.

(X2 ON IXB CEDAR
FASCIA

T T
1412
SLOPE

|
— B U B

I

101 S

I AT O e T LTS AP

5/4Xb CEDAR:
TRIM BOARDS

JWINDOW HT,
N

COFPER ROOF NTD—\__
FLASHING STS

TEM

COACH LIGHT:

PROPOSED SOUTH ELEVATION

DECORATIVE CLAY
CHIMNEY CAP

CONTINUOUS RIDGE VENTS -
PROVIDE ) SQ. FT. VEN

FOR EVERY 300 %Q. FT. OF
ATTIC SPACE.

BRICK SOLDIER
COURSE

/

DECORATIVE CEDAR
FINALS

—" —————DAVINCI SLATE TILE
ROGFING

' SADDLE SHOWN .~

INE OF GABLE

{xB CEDAR FASCIA

BOTE:

ALL BRICKMASONRY
VENEER SHALL BE 4"
FULL BED DEPTH.

CUT STONE SILL

LINE OF PATI
&Y OTHERS) N\

/"1 "\ RIGHT ELEVATION (SOUTH)

SCALE:|/4"=1"-O"

SWANSON

REVIEW ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

NOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGNATIONS
ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON
24" x 36" SIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D)

© COPYRIGHT MMXXII

RITTNER
RESIDENCE
CUSTOM RESIDENCE
435 OAK KNOLL DRIVE

LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

rick@nnswanscn.com

347 757-3975

ARCEITECTS

11418 EMISSION LN,
SCOTTSDALE. ARIZONA

OL/28/2022
02/01/2022
02/042022
02/07/2022
02/08/2022
02/18/2022

02/2472022
03/08/2022

REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW

26575 COMMERCE DR,

SUITE 607
WWW. ASPECTDESIGNING.COM

MAIN: 847-457-2500
IL. LICENSE # 184-004354

VOLO, IL 60073

ARCHITECTS

,,EC.hrDESIGNINC.

PROJECT # AD211%7

DRAWN BY:

RITTNER RESIDENCE
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

AR 03

COM /MB

# 3 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS |




TT0UR0/E0 MEIATY 5|8 2

$v009 I “ISTIOL TV ) ana _ m w 5 o |8

_ HATIA TTONM VO SEv zousifz0. T panm HoVON e | saoELINOYY a m M —_ M
ADONAAISTY NOLSI1D ey T wszisrieavnl ) NT NODTSH £a v g

Z2UL/Z0 MEIATE 5588 9

AONAAISTY — =" o mmmm < i

YANLIY 2200/10/20 AT m 5| E]

_modstio MIATE pe D | *

NOLLONYLSNOD d04 LON-AINO >>mﬁ>mm

24" x 36" GIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D)

HOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGNATIONS
ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON

ROOF PLAN

5
Y
m
<
9
]
#
Qu
HD
58
T
AM@_ .9
1
s ]
_—
! |
SL
|
l
14
b
i <
¥ -
| P
¥ [y
| Q
i ®)
i ~
[ =
} A
3 [ |
i EY,
Y // .1\\




. TT0Us0/E0 e 5|8 n
Sv009 T LSHIOI IAVT wwoniveizo NEATY | IR f— m
FARIA TIONSI VO Sy T prerreny | Qo T R EAR PR T f8laE — |3
HONAJISHI WOLSND s AT Smmmﬁﬂﬂ,%wﬁ INI N O 1§39 Q*WU Hq m m z m R m
Z20UL0/Z0 MEINTI 09 2LINS | 5| & =1 o
HONAHAISHY | ceoworo ATIATE ~aa muxmzhow SL8SC b z m m A &
Mm NI | oo e | \ m 5| 2= =
| zoowszo MEIATE P al il
o - &
WNW :
E0Y E
it

of g

et

N

By

=58

BUILDING SECTION

I Lty =
= Wil .
! L 7 -
_ 5
. | _
o | _
oz | 2
=
: ) p 5]
E | e _ g e
! & a
| I ! N B
N _ |
o
3 _ |
! |
_ _ & _
m . NE— .
_ 8 _ e
- g
|
5 . 2
? g I —
3
| s |
| |
_ _ E
+
m_l\\ _ 3 _ mm _ C@
) X W 9 | MM
m | Q _ Bl g2
. [ —] WS
<l 8 _ B
mﬁl = !
- | |
_ _
. l— —
==
TRTINRTATINTIar 1 i1} H—Hh.
- g b | &
. . B . . m_. Ma
| I .:u k.m.m_z_z 1 ._. .=” M.Q,Mzi . m_ : M
| 1 21vid 00T aNovEs | "IH 3V Td OO S5l _. & Y
@) -8 1 @/ QI . m ﬁm B
o o b8 S8

AV SNILSIXT
INIOVT Y LS2MOT 3AOEY 1HOIEH 39did

PG TGE

“LH XYW
.0-0F

71

"\ BUILDING SECTION

f

1-o"

SCALE: /4"






. 2207/30/50 IR 5 |m m @
$7009 1 'LSTIOT TAV'1 o P ) §lE|g: o~ |d
HARNA TIONS HYO S¢v ) MENT| | oo | $L2TLIHONY °|& m o |3

AONATISTI WOLS1D ) e 05T LS LY NIV DNINDISH @ﬁU q nH 28 R g
0L WEIATE o 5| & n

HONHAISHI etz mamas| | aqmwsonos sisse 5 m m 8 A m
VANLLIY ) AR | . \ m 3 mm 77
220082/10 AT -~ ) *

H

BASEMENT FLOOR PLAN

GAME /
EXERCISE
CARPET

130 1/2°

13-0 12"

W2 191

21- 12"

3-4"
BEDROOM S

CARPET

124

bl

ﬁ;_________--——----7:',‘,‘

e
—_——

MECHANICAL
/STORAGE
UNFINISHED

24" x 36" SIZE PAFPER. (ARCH-D)

NOTE: ALL SCALE DESIGNATIONS
ARE FOR SHEETS FRINTED ON

SCALE:1/4"=1"-O"

™\ FINISHED BASEMENT PLAN

—,

/1
\ARO07

/

e



FIRST FLOOR PLAN

elr'-0”

&-qa* 16'-3 1/2° 145 /2% 22'-0° I'-&"

gqr g " pege

L
R ET

|20

200
Tag®

RAISED
PATIO

CONCRETE
VERIFY IN FIELD

RITTNER
RESIDENCE
CUSTOM RESIDENCE
435 OAK KNOLL DRIVE

LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

20"

AN
AN TILE Ve
N

50

| 2/6X5/8

== —

| 220"

BREAKFAST
HARDNOOD

;i
oy

240"

16/0 x &/0 OVERHEAD DOOR

&2-6"

140

&'-0"

JE |

. W2 LOCATION OF SHEET METAL KITCHEN
290 i HOOD EXHAUST DUCT. DUCT
GREAT
ROOM
HARDNOOD

20 12"

177 SIZE BASED ON EXHAUST FAN
MANUF,

2-CAR Y
GARAGE $ '@ég

23

HRAP AND
SOLID WOOD FIRE BLOCKING AS
REGUIRED.

be PROVIDE A KITCHEN RANGE HOOD
Ly EXHAUST FAN AS SPECIFIED BY
1 THE COOKING mlANcE
MANJFACTURERS INSTAL:

INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIFI%ATIONS

CONCRETE

01/28/2022
02/01/2022
02/08/2022
02/18/2022
0212412022
03/0B/2022

02/07/2022

02/04/2022

625"
>
%
1
>
¢
o
g
;
I

A/OXE/C

5'-4 12"

&'-8*

| ’] a/oxa/o‘

,.51/2 [ e-5
i

Bip"

4"

LANDING

B/OXBIC 'a/oxa/o | PANTRY
o - ! = A

REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
| REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW
REVIEW

(5) SHELF
i
3 >
108 1/2*
i)
5.2 /4

2/(»03/0 PR

(CSHaR [

6—6' AC UNIT |

. :I%_/[se'vm
.—]

|||2"J

STORAGE
CONCRETE

]

7% |
|

|

]2
Qle
| R 1

Q0 x B/O OVERHEAD DOOR

14'-0"

SLoFED— -
CEILING

e wair

b

BULT-NS b ———

26575 COMMERCE DR.

SUITE 607
WWW. ASPECTDESIGNINC.COM

VOLO, IL 60073
MAIN: 847-457-2500
IL. LICENSE # 184-004354

200"

3

I
130

2

o

=

ARCHITECTS

13'-3 /2"

:

|

©As
| N
NG A - 3tar

14'-6%

DESIGN INC.

7

BRICK PAVERS

‘ COVERED

=)l 3/4] 2%6 172" Shan W26 v2" 22 14

%
EVIEW ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

L2'-O' 140" 5-6" 140" a-0* 15-0" rl'i'. b

PROJECT # AD21187
DRAWN BY: COM /MB

RITTNER RESIDENCE
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

or-c" .

/"1 "\ FIRST FLOOR PLAN e o

ARE FOR SHEETS PRINTED OK AR 08
SCALE:1/4"=('-O" 24" x 36" SIZE PAPER. (ARCH-D)

\ AR 08 / o corvasur savc || # 8 OF 11 TOTAL SHEETS |
N



. ZouA0/E0 MEAT 5|2 o
SF009 11 LSHIOL HAVT e . NEATS HE M N m
HAIJA TIONX VO Sty U0 MIATE OO Aoy M| SEIAITHOEY — <8 m e O m
JONAJISTI WOLSND " ows NAATI ooszisrivs NVIn 'Y NT ND TS H a m g
Zeoe/Lolo B ATAT mhocm\\%@ moq.wwm R m
HONHAISHY wothore | “aanmr| [ NG ENEANOD sissT ge mm g
mvmﬁ _ T202/10/20 MFIATL Slsl &8 S
d 1d 20TRUTO0 AIIAR -~ E|B| *
o - =
iy
T
[Sh
i
i
it 3
il
= By
< ! mW ]
—J
0.
oc
Q
Q
|
L
[
=
O
O
L
w
} 505 .” w uO
- w3 wO=iLt W w-OT W ||_
[ttt denied 1 E %m nM.
[ —— o R ] I ) =
; =t : | EE :
4 _.. ___ 1 ! <1 AR = <
= Iy - T 1 G _] - %
i & EXe=n \ l§ SHOSHYEL =
“ | ; ] RIS |
) " [ ”.4 3 W Pl //J
1 [
5 = gl W wmm W !
o o Sl fus ola i
S RO 5g S m [
Zs B A E
. el i 4k 2 _
o ﬁ R3] m 21 |
b 1
i = 9
| ogll A
®
@
:
ES
o | m
i - 5 I L L | = mmm 3
33 . o3 i Y il = 1
, y A & S
| [l
| mE R LA B A
o S4 1 u wW i B
) x_ z m% f ™~ F N
"._l_,__l ||||||||| s Tene 760 1 g T A
— bt-vocooooooos s d T e e vosn = ! ]
" m \ = Y AN .,.r/ﬂr S 4.|T e P
| TR i i
nl
| 1 3 &
" “ I w O
_ g 3
B | _._.1|1|J,". 1 —
5| “ ' =
o vg !
| 38 i A
x | N
! wwm wm wmw l
no 45E £ 28 N ©)
| ' 5 Q
| ¥ i o0
R e e ! m _ | w2
) I T
' ¥ /e
5 ! \\ //_1_ / =
® | il [ —
I e e e =y § Bttt = \ ﬂ
Iy ._ 1 Ho
4 — ._.r|||.-....|||.|||||||||.|. e ey — ] L /..- = \\
wO-ZI _ C-+Z et ] ¥ o3 et

oty




DWGTo PDF pe3

3nawa

5GP, ARCH fll bhewd B (34,00 £ 24,00 oches), 2171072 3:07 PN, Win Bick

435 DAK KNOLL DRIVE - LOT 3 OAK KNOLL WOODLANDS
Lake Forest, IL 60045

Impervious Surface Calculation

sqft acre
Lot Area 33532 0.770
Existing Conditions

saft ere
House o 0.000
Driveway V] 0.000
Patio o 0.000
walkways o 0.000
shed [} 0.000
Total o 0.000
Percent Impervious 0.0%
Proposed Conditions

sqft acre
House 2860 0.066
Driveway 2444 0.056
Patio 587 0.013
Walkways 198 0.005
Totat 6089 0.140
Percent impervious 18.2%

1.5 Gl

DIRECTICNAL T

ERVICE

BE TY K7 LF
THROUSH

ROGT ZONE

THROUGH
ZONE

A FRONT SETBAS

TIF 672.50
FIF 67368

TREE INVENTORY BY: () wnmeoak
URBAN FOREST MANAGEMENT
UPDATED MAY 7, 2021 O RED GAK
CONDITION
1-EXCELLENT i
2-GOOD-FAIR O BUR 0AK
3-FAIR
FFAIRIPOOR O BLACK WALNUT
5POOR
6-DEAD () REENASH, AMERICAN ELM
() SHAGBARKHICKORY
| _TagNo. CommaonName Botanical Name Size Cond. Form__ Problems insect/Disease Comenents Co-leadars at 4.5' DBH Heritage Tree
78 Red Oak Quercus rubra 2 4 4 basal decay, one sided, over-topped, slight sweep Heritage Tree {DQ Condition)
Enc) Red Oak Quercus rubra 2 3 4 heavy deadwood, epicormics, siight lean, swaep Forked at base with a 21" co-leader. Heritage Tree
320  White Oak Quercus alba 25 2 4 minar deadwood, sweep Heritage Tree
331 White Oak Quercus alba 18 2 3 minar deadwood, one sided Heritage Tree
382 Shagbark Hickory Caryaovata 16 3 3 twistin trunk, basal scar, basal swell
383 Black Walnut Juglans nigra 11 3 3 minor basal decay, topped, twist in trunk Forked at 1’ with a 8" co-leader.
404 White Qak Quercus alba 15 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, twist in trunk, thin crown
405  White 02k Quercus alba 14 4 4 minor deadwood, one sided, damaged leader, slight sweep
406 Red Oak Quercus rubra 0 3 £ excessive lean, hollow, multiple leaders, minor deadwood Heritage Tree
—407 ——Whita Osk iereus aiba =} * < inor ided;slight Pr erateh Heritage Tree
202 ped ozt b T & & cwesiive e, unk ser, hallow- Heritage Tree {DQ Condition)
09— Shaghark Hidkory Cary 17 3 4 toppad, slight hrokenlmbs, one dded
410 Red Oak Quercus rubra 2 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, basal scar, basal sweli Heritage Tree
411 Red Oak Quereus rubra 19 3 4 one sided, 3 d, sli minor Heritage Tree
433 Bur Oak Querus macrocapa 2 6 4 one sided Dead. Heritage Tree [DQ Candition)
433 BlackWalnur Juglans nigra 11 2 4 onesided, over-topped, i "
440 Bur Dak Quercus macrocarpa 21 3 4 sweeg, epicormics, minor deadwood Heritage Tree
ag1 Ama; 7 [3 4 rwecg, overlopoed, doubia losder Ooad
—462 GraenAsh Traxinus 12 L3 4 suckesng twistin trunk; Soulde lesder & b borer d-
4563 Bur Dak Quercus macrocarpa 29 3 3 heavy deadwood Heritage Tree
464 Red Oak Quercus rubra 14 3 4 one sided, stight lean, muitipie leaders, epicommics
465 Red Oak Quercus rubra 9.5 3 4 minor deadwouod, slight lean, one sided, multiple leaders
466 Red Oak Quercus rubra 1 3 3 minor deadwood, thin crows
474 Red Oak Quercus rubra nrs 2 3 slightlean, minor deadwood, one sided
475 RedOak Quereus rubra 9 3 4 one sided, epi ics, slight [ean, minor
476 Red Oak Quercus rubra 14 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, slight lean
477 RedOak Quercus rubra 9 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, epicormics, slight lean
478 fled Oak Quercus rubra 11 ] 3 minor thin crown, multiple lzaders.
479 RedOak Quercus rubra 9 3 4 onesided, thin crown, epicormics
480 RedOak Querays rubra 10 3 4 minor deadwood, ane sided, thin crown, double leader, basal scar
48t RedQak Quercys rubra 0 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided
482 RedOak Quercus rubra 975 3 3 minor deadwood, thin crown, vine infested
483 Red Oak Quercus rubra 875 3 3 minor deadwaood, thin crown, epicormics, multiple leaders
484 RedQak Quercus rugra 10 3 3 minar thin crown, epi slight lean
485  Red Qak Quercus rubira 875 3 4 one sided, slight |ean, minor deadwood, thin aown
486 Red Oak Quercus rubra 10 2 3 weak gotch, one sided, double leader, minor deadwoad
487 Red Oak Quereus rubra 12 3 4 minar deadwood, epicormics, slight lean, double [aader
430  Red Oak Quercus rubra 9 3 k] minar deadwood, thin cown, double leader
496 Bur Qak Quercus macracarpa 9 3 4 one sided, over-topped, epicormics, slight sweep
497 Black Walnut Juglans nigra i8 3 3 minor deadwood, one sided, multiple leaders Heritage Tree
498 Bur Oak Quercus macracarpa 17 4 4 broken limbs, one sided, twistin trunk, multiple [eaders, heavy deadwood, basal swell
499 Bur Oak Quercus macracarpa 24 4 4 heavy deadwood, slight sweep, dieback Heritage Tree (DQ Condition)
1817  Red Ozk Quercus rubra 8 3 4 one sided, thin crawn, epicormics, slightlean
1818  Red Ozk Quercus rubra 8 3 4 minor deadwood, thin crown, epicormics
1839  Red Oak Quercus rubra 8 3 3 minor deadwood, thin crown
@ Red Oak W 8 3 3 thin crown, eEiiarm'E

_— 4" FORCE MAIN
PVC SCH 80

10' PUBLIC UTILITY

e EASEMENT

SANITARY SEWER
78 LF 6" PVC SDR 26 @ 2.0%
DIRECTIONAL DRILL THROUGH

P ROOT ZONE

SILT FENCE

TREE FENCE

Wit

/LOT 4

TF 870.75

-~ §"-12" RETAINING WALL

+3" CURB

Notes:

1.

ONONONORONSNE

Downspouts in to splash at grade unless
otherwise shown. Provide concrete splash pad
at discharge.

For downspouts tying into sewer system,
provide 2" air gap.

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

Usa proposed driveway location

PRELIMINARY SITE GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

TREE PRESERVATION & CONSTRUCTION LIMITS FENCE

Temporary 4 Tall Green Snow Fence w/ Steel Posts

SILT FILTER FENCE
Shall comply with AASHTO Standard M 283-00

MUD AND DUST CONTROL

TEMPORARY INLET PROTECTION

All open lid structures to have Callch Al Baskets o approved equal.

FINAL STABILIZATION - SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

engineers | surveyors

Bleck Engineering Company, Inc.
1375 North Western Avenue
Lake Farest, lllinois 60045

T 847.295.5200 W bleckeng.com

435 OAKKNOLL
DRIVE

Lake Forest, IL

Saurce Banchmark:

City of Lake Forest Monument #10
Brass Disk in Concrete at NE Corner
Oak Knoll Dr. & Conway Rd. Intersection
Elev. §97.44 (NAVD 88}

Site Benchmark:

Mueller Nut on Fire Hydrant at
Existing Oak Knoll Drive Cul-de-sac
Elev. 684.21 (NAVD 88)

ISSUED DATE  ISSUED FOR

[ ozan BRD

a3, 22

EL

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

“To the bast of our knowledge and belief,
the drainage of the surface waters will
not be changed by the construction of
this project or any part thereof, or that if
such surface waters drainage will be
changed, reasonable provisions have
been made for the collection and
diversion of such surface waters inte
public areas or drains which the
developar has a right to use, and that
such surface waters will be planned for
in accordance with generally accepted
engineering practices so as to reduce
the likelihood of the damage ta the
adjoining property because of the
construction of the project.”

Michael G, Bleck, PE 06.08.2021

Uensa Ho. 402 048103 Expless 115871

© 2021 Bock Evginenring Company, ns, Al Righhs Resereed
Bl Prolassienal Dasin Fr 164.0060H1

FIDELITY WES
201 Robert Parker Coffin Rd.
Lang Grove, lllinois 60045

70.859-3 | Project No. )

MGB/CBS | Drawn By

MGB | Checked By

3

Drawing No.

Drawing Name

Site Grading Plan




Oak Knoll Subdivision - Lot 3
Lake Forest, IL

TREE INVENTORY

HIGHLIGHTED TREES PROPOSED FOR REMOVAL ¢ nventory Listing

Prepared by Urban Forest Management, Inc.

£ /713021
Tag No. Common Name Size Cond. Form Problems |Insect/Disease Comments Heritage Tree o
378 RedOak 28 4 4 'basal decay, one sided, over-topped, slight sweep B - ~ Heritage Tree (DQ Condition)
379 |Red Oak 22 3 4 heavy deadwood, epicormics, slight lean, sweep - B Heritage Tree —
380 [White Oak 25 2 4 minor deadwood, sweep B - - B B 'Heritage Tree
381 __l_W_hite Oak 1 3 | 2 3 minor deadwood, one sided -Héﬁtage Tree
382  shagbark Hickory | 16 | 3 3 /twist in trunk, basal scar, basal swell i - 1 -
383 'Black Walnut ' 11 i 3 3 minor deadwood, basal decay, over-topped, twist in trunk | - - —
404 White Oak ' 15 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, twist in trunk, thin crown - i N |
405 ‘White Oak B 14 4 | 4 |minor deadwood, one sided, damaged leader, slight sweep | B
406 Red Oak 30 [ 3 | 4 Lexcessive lean, hollow, multiple leaders, minor deadwood - |Heritage Tree )
407 White Ok N '3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, slight sweep, weak crotch 0 B - Heritage Tree |
408 |fl’{ed Oak B 31 4 4  excessive lean, trunk scar, hollow - - __ 'Heritage Tree (DQ Condition)
409 ‘Shagbark Hickory 17 e | g over-topped, slight sweep, broken limbs, one sided - ] -
- 410 . |Red Oak 21 3 4 |minor deadwood, one sided, basal scar, basal swell | B e -Heritage Tree o
41 'Red Oak - 19 3 4 one sided, over-topped, slight sweep, minor deadwood — - | - Heritage Tree |
438 BurOak 23 | 6 4 one sided - ' Dead. Heritage Tree (DQ Condition)
439  Black Walnut 11 2 4 one sided, over-topped, slight sweep, minor deadwood | a
440 Bur Oak i 21 3 4 'sweep, epicormics, minor deadwood B |Heﬁtage Tree
461 'American Em 12 6 4 sweep, over-topped, doubie leader 1 Dead. :
462 GreenAsh B 12 & 4 suckering, twist in trunk, double leader - \emerald ash borer Dead. |
463 Bur Oak 29 3 3 heavy deadwood - | [ Heritage Tree
464 Red Oak 14 3 4 jone sided, slight lean, multiple leaders, epicormics B i '
465 Red Qak 95 | 3 4  minor deadwood, slight lean, one sided, multiple leaders |
466  Red Oak 1 3 | 3 minor deadwood, thin crown - - N [ o B R I
474 ‘Red Oak S 1.7 2 3 slight lean, minor deadwood, one sided - . - ]
475 Red Oak 9 | 3 4 one sided, epicormics, slight lean, minor deadwood - N
476 RedOak 14 | 3 4 ‘minor deadwood, one sided, slight lean -
477 | Red Oak o 9 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided, epicormics, slight lean B - ]
478 IRed Oak 11 3 3 |minor deadwood, thin crown, epicormics, multiple leaders - - i o
479 |Red Oak 9 3 4 |one sided, thin crown, epicormics |
480 Red Oak 10 3 4 |minor deadwood, one sided, thin crown, double leader, basal scar
| 481 Red Oak | 10 3 4 minor deadwood, one sided N
482 'Red Oak | 975 3 3 minor deadwood, thin crown, vine infested B B | -
483 RedOQak | 875 | 3 3 minor deadwood, thin crown, epicormics, multiple leaders B | ) |
484 _Red Oak 10 3 3 ‘minor deadwood, thin crown, epicormics, slight lean S - N L - B
i 485  Red Oak B 8.75 _'_ 3 4 one sided, slight lean, minor deadwood, thin crown - - L -
486 |Red Oak 10 | 2 3 Iweak crotch, one sided, double leader, minor deadwood - - __ . - B
487 Red Oak 12 l 3 4  minor deadwood, epicormics, slight lean, double leader o - - - -
490 IReanl_< - 9 3 | 3 minor deadwood, thin crown, double leader - - -
496  BurOak 9 3 | 4 lone sided, over-topped, epicormics, slight sweep - - - | - B
497  Black Walnut | 8 3 3 ‘minor deadwood, one sided, multiple leaders - - __ - - Heritag?—: Tree
498  Bur Oak 17 4 4 _broken limbs, one sided, twist in trunk, multiple leaders, heavy deadwood, basal swell | - - -
499 \Bur Oak 24 4 4 heavy deadwood, slight sweep, dieback - B - - - R - “Heritage Tree (DQadition)
1817 Red Oak B 8 3 4 ‘one sided, thin crown, epicormics, slight lean - - [ - ; - o ' - -
1818 |Red Oak - 8 3 4 _minor deadwood, thin crown, epicormics - o - N o o
1819  Red Oak D 8 3 3 ‘minor deadwood, thin crown - - B - - - | o 1 -
1820 Red Oak 8 3 3 thin crown, epicormics B - - -

Page 1of 1



DEVELOPMENT PLAN

LANDSCAPE

FIDELITY WES
RESIDENCE

435 OAK KNOLL DRIVE

LAKE FOREST, IL

LEGEND

8
19
10
3
4

NWND =N
—_

AR DOO

Banana Cream Daisy
Happy Returns Daylily
Astilbe, Visions in Pink
Maiden Grass

Flat of Vinca

Hydrangea Anabelle White
Hydrangea Bloomstruck
Karen's Azalea

Double Knockout Rose
Ninebark Eldiablo

Hicks Yew

Boxwood, Green Velvet
Fine Wine Weigela

Arborvitae, Pyramidal American

Bloodgood Japanese Maple
Royal Raindrops Crabapple
Colorado Spruce

Serbian Spruce

Red Oak

Swamp White Oak
Tulip Tree

London Plane Tree
Northern Pink Oak

@ 1 gal
@ 1 gal.
@ 1gal
@7 gal

Flat

@ 36"
@ 36"
@30"
@ 30"
@ 36"
@ 36"
@ 18"
@ 36"

@ 3"
@ 3"
@ 3"
@8
@¥8

@3’
@3
@3
@3
@

SCALE: 1"= 20"
PAGE 2 OF 2
MARCH 25. 2022

WATER SERVICE

4.5 CUTUBE TY K87 LF
DIRECTIONAL DRILL THROUGH
ROOT 20NE

STORM SEWER
68 LF PVC SDR268 2%

DIRECTIONAL DRILL THROUGH 7 7

ROOY ZOME

4 FORCE MAIN
PVC SCHBO

10' PUBLIC UTILITY
EASEMENT

SANITARY SEWER

78 LF 8°PVC SOR 26 @ 20%
DIRECTIONAL DRILL THROUGH
ROOT ZONE

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

REQUIRED REPLACEMENT INCHES:

TREE407 58
TREE408 0 (DQ CONDITION)
TREE409 17

TOTAL 75 INCHES

(4+3) Colorado Blue Spruce @ &'

(8) Boxwood, Green Velvet @ 158* —h
ELECTRIC, TELEPHONE, CABLE ¥

(7) Daisy, Banana Cream @ 1 gal.

(3) Weigela, Fine Wine @ 36"
(9) Hydrangea, Little Lime @ 36"

(3) Grass, Maiden @ 7 gal.
(9) Arborvitae, Pyramidal, American @ &'

5) Hydrangea, Little Lime @ 36"
22; Fl)ét of Vinca, IBlue @

(6) Boxwood, Green Velvet @ 18"

(2) Flat of Pachysandra

3) Hydranjea, Little Lime @ 36"

(1) Royal Raindrops Crabapple @ 3" 3 _
(3) Azalea, Karens @ 36" —— =~ =
(13) Ninebark, Eldiablo @ 36" 7

(6) Hydrangea,

Annabelle White @ 36" 40 FRONT SETRACK —/

(5) SERBIAN SPRUCE @ 8
(4) SWAMP WHITE OAK @ 3"
O ©@Reporkes
O ®TPTREE@S"
(O (4)LONDON, PLANE TREE @ 3"

o {1) NORTHERN PIN OAK @ &'

TOTAL REPLACEMENT INCHES: 57
TOTAL REPLACEMENT INCH DEFICIT: 18

PROPOSED HARDSCAPE MATERIAL:

UNILOCK BEACON HILL FLAGSTONE - OAKWOOD COLOR
UNILOCK MATTONI - COCOA BROWN
UNILOCK BRUSSELS BLOCK WALLS

10° DRAMIAGE
EASEMENT

(1) Royal Raindrops Crabapple @ 3"
. gAzaYea, Karensp 30" Pple @
— {10) Yew, Hicks @ 36"

{??)Daylily, "Happy Returns' @ 1 gal.

Bloodgood Japanese Maple @ 3"

(3) Azalea, Karens @ 30"

QO&Astilbe, Visions in Pink @ 1 gal.
(5) Double Knockout Rose, Pink @ 30"

~ET) "
~~——, (8) Hydrangea, Bloomstruck @ 36
== £ (7) Daylily, 'Happy Returns' @ 1 gal.

FI%stone Walkway
f
&




SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS PROVIDED BY STAFF



Lodeg

508, ARCH Ul bied D {34.00 x 3400 Tchas), 3/30/1533 11112 AR, Canty Sane.

POND |

Wetland 5 )
(0.72 acres) /

;1545 Sage Ct
12

\
25'Ingrats and egress sasament
o co, 800780

\ yl ﬁ\a

I
|
L
i
i
l
|
|
|
!
|
|
I

1535 Sage Ct
1

1525 Sage Ct
14

1515 Sage Ct
15

I
)

1505 Sage Ct T

16

SUBDIVISION MAP

or75.0 —

395 Oak Knoll Or \ |

I
A

ﬂi
v

|

|

|

I

: |
405 Oak Knbll Dr ) '

| .
5 e
—~
- r

BLECK

engineers | surveyors

Bleck Engineering Company, Inc.
1375 North Western Avenue
Lake Forest, illinois 60045

T 847.295.5200 W bleckeng.com

Oak Knoli
Woodlands

Lake Forest, IL

[ 2% £ 100
Scale 1" =50

Source Benchmark:

City of Lake Forest Monument #10
Brass Disk in Cancrete at NE Corner
Oak Knoll Dr. & Conway Rd. Intersecton
Elev. 697.44 {(NAVD 88)

Site Banchmark:

Mueller Nut on Fire Hydrant at
Existing Oak Knoll Drive Cul-de-sac
Elev. 684.21 (NAVD B8)

ISSUED DATE  ISSUED FOR

W | 330022 | CITYREVIEW

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

“To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the drainage of the surface watars will
not be changed by the construction of
this project or any part thereof, or that if
such surface waters drainage will be
changed, reasonable provisions have
been made for the collection and
diversion of such surface waters inte
public areas or drains which the
developer has a right to use, and that
such surface waters will be planned for
in accordance with generally accepted
engingering practices sc as to reduce
the likelihooa of the damage to the
adjoining properly becauss of the
construction of the project.”

Michael G. Bleck, PE 03.30.2022

!
!
I
’ 3
-
Lo

D CURRENTLY PROPOSED

n PREVIOQUSLY APPROVED

Uicerse o, 142046393 Exphrs 12423

© 122 Bl Engivsrng Corpury, nc, ALRGH: Resmrved
TWnale Profyssios Dssign Fim 384080611

FIDELITY WES
201 Robert Parker Coffin Rd.
Long Grove, |llinois 60045

70-859 | Project No.

MGB/CBS I Orawn By

MGB | Checked By

Drawing No.

Drawing Name

Overall Subdivision
Layout




§9009 "I ‘LSTIO] TAV'L mm f N m
"AIGANS SANYTAOOM TTONH XVO oA | sesgrinony MR ...i.s.luw Bl % <o

1¥N0D HOVS 5251 SHAM ALITHEAE & onzisrusaAl ‘INI NDISHEALOHS . mm m

AONHAISHYI SYAVE T e | R AT it i m ﬂ b

11071 T Lz I ;

T/ IED MAARY a

NOILLDN™MLSNOD ¥0d LON-ATNO MHIAHA

1525 SAGE COURT - APPROVED APRIL 2021

/1 FRONT ELEVATION

QR 02

s R =

ks
|
|
|
|
1]

4 ‘dH MOMNM
) WOtk

Ayld HOOU ANOTIE j T AH3Nvld OO L6ai
SN -e ¢ 9N ol 1

ALL SCALE DESISNATIONS
SHEETS PRINTED? ON
(ARCH-D)
rp— ]

PRE FOR

BOTE:
24" x 2&" SITE PAPER.

10"

SOALE: /4"




- - __._||.I — = M.. [ —
e e | —— L
PR SHM ALITACI s ﬁw et O NI NHISH @@ BECE e mm
HONHAMSHFIAODNVHO/NVH || T wwwe "BQ EOUINOD §5 w m
ggior 1N ||Pwew m_ m

NOILDNALSNOD ¥04 LON-AINO MHIATY

1545 SAGE COURT - APPROVED MAY 2021

o :
i mn ;
- 2 =
|
-
i
_ 7W
i :
AERELEEE _
__”_ i Y
_ | o 5
3 A_;_ _ >
il P N
.. Tht e o m
£ _____ A f R
111 |
| h z
SH | m
...ﬁ N
ot R
b S8 il
i £ .J,.. i _.w 3 L5
& 0y )
S Lo %
' u,.._,.r..w«..
o

s U & VT 1 TOTALSEEETS |






_. v ULY 20
4 K KNOLL DRIVE APPR A=
55 QA =

T >}
@ o
& "

e

——rehtd

LR i




UGUST 2021

395 OAK KNOLL DRIVE - APPROVED A

-

iy




1505 SAGE COURT - APPROVED AUGUST 2021




~- APPROVED SEPTEMBER 2021 |

. - - — e = =2

T i - 405 OAK KNOLL DRIVE

= - R R T

= i
-
=
o L
e
ey
i
= - e .-
- £
w
.% 4
= e . ¥ e
i
- 2 o =
-— = = e
M= - - F
- e
-
-
B2 L -
el [ - -
Loy e 1 —— e
—d e = Ld T o S
R AT ¥
~ e 3 -
pen e =
:
i -
i a
g™
A




Jnad
- APPROVED OCTOBER 2021

Lu
2
[and
(]
aamad
—t
e}
=
¥
=
'O
Y]
I~
-




£4000 11 ‘LSHYOL BNV o Loy A HE
PTG TION V0 0y ok ]| oS csousinouy Bz §
AVO 0sp SHM ALTTHALL @ ) nawa| | woszisris vkl -3 N Y Zm:mm 3 d 9m <
HONHEQISHY NVSSNd i okl ‘i, e ﬂ
QHQM 1208450090 AR mwm
OO0 ABIATH a

A~ A vm mevEaE mmTT

ZOEUDMHmZOU Y04 LON-A'INO ?/mH\/mm

CEDAR ROCF SHINGLES

450 OAK KNOLL DRIVE - APPROVED OCTOBER 2021

[
I _
| _
BRSL ™ "
_ !
| ]
_ |
|
_ ]
| |
J
“ |
_ |
_ _“ |
i |
| i !
| !
_ |
_ |
I 4
| 1|11 _
i 18t ) ._
| I |
| |t L N
_ it || m__ |
It (| w_ i
, il | {l
| i i
| ; _ Rl
; #_ | .__ |
| | ERane \ ‘L _
c U |
| (1% i
| :ﬂ. { VFh ;ﬂ
_ e i rﬁ IR
) = I ARRTA T | |
[ BN [T ;__;__ L _.__
| ,,ﬂ T T ] IﬂllilrL
i .-._.__1 llllll U=
] e !
| o ¥, !
| SRS |
: | | |
_ i —n _
| . ____. _ .
_ | ) — - _
_ il | |
[ | i d | _
|
_ | . _ |
| s 007 nmr_.u..,on( 2N NOUV IO YD DLLY i _hpzﬁwmc._m N
| h P L _gg "
_ o - ) +
1 = ﬁ“ Ih

APE FOR SHEETS PRINTED ON
24" x 36* SIZE PAFER. (ARCH-D)

SCALENTS.

FRONT ELEVATION (EAST)

1

o)




S
(V]
o
I
i)
=
>
o
=
)
=
O
@
&
i
w
=
o
(]
-
L
Q
=
¥
£
O
o
=




‘.‘. 5‘. ‘;'A.“

- APPROVED MARCH 2022




Agenda Item 4
1150 Highland Avenue
New Residence

Staff Report

Building Scale Summary
Vicinity Map

Air Photos

Materials Submitted by Petitioner

Application

Statement of Intent

Description of Exterior Materials

Plat of Survey — Existing Conditions

Proposed Site Plan

Proposed East and South Elevations

Proposed West and North Elevations

Roof Plan

Building Section

Color Rendering and Images of Surrounding Homes
First Floor Plan

Second Floor Plan

Preliminary Site Grading and Tree Removal Plan
Preliminary Landscape Plan

Materials shown in italics are included in the Board packet only. A complete copy of the
packet is available from the Community Development Department.

Building Review Board
April 6, 2022



1150 Highland Avenue

Consideration of a request for approval of construction of a single family residence and
attached garage on a vacant lot. Approval of a conceptual landscape plan and overall site
plan is also requested.

Property Owner: US First Setia One LLC, (Nenad Zecevic, 100%).
Project Representative: Alan Leskiv, architect

Staff Contact: Jen Baehr, Planner

Description of Property

This property is located on the west side of Highland Avenue, between Everett and Old Elm Roads.
The surrounding established neighborhood contains modest size homes of varying architectutal
styles mostly built in the 1980s and 1990s. The parcel that is the subject of this request totals 14,975

square feet.

Summary of Request
This is a tequest for approval of a new single family residence and attached garage on a vacant lot.

Board consideration of the overall site plan and conceptual landscape plan is also requested.
The proposed tesidence is described as a Craftsman style home.

A statement of intent from the architect and othet supporting materials submitted by the petitioner
are included in the Board packet and more fully explain the overall project. An evaluation of the

project based on the applicable standards is offered below for the Board’s consideration.

Review and Evaluation of Applicable Standards

Site Plan - This standard is met.

The residence is sited generally at the center of the property toward the front of the site. The
proposed residence faces west, toward the street. The home has an attached single car and two-car
gatage. The single car garage is front facing and the two-car garage faces south. Although front
facing garages are often discouraged, however, a front facing garage is not unusual for this
neighborhood.

Based on information submitted by the petitionet, the amount of proposed impervious surface on
the site totals 4,773 squate feet, equal to 32% of the site. The building footprint totals 2,378 squate
feet and other paved sutfaces including the driveway, patio and walkways total 2,395 square feet.

Building Massing and Height — This standard is met.

Based on the lot size, a residence of up to 3,397 square feet is permitted on the site with an
allowance of 576 squate feet for a garage and 340 square feet for design elements. Design elements
are defined as those elements that provide human scale to a residence and help to mitigate the
appearance of mass and include elements such as covered entries, dormers and scteen porches.

e The proposed residence totals 3,164 square feet.

o 'The proposed garage totals 706 squate feet, and exceeds the allowance of 576 square feet for
a garage therefore, the excess garage square footage is counted toward the overall squate
footage of the home.



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

e In addition to the above squate footage, a total of 171 square feet of design elements are
incotpotated into the design of the house.

e In conclusion, the proposed residence totals 3,294 square feet, equal to 3 percent below the
maximum allowable square footage for this property.

At its tallest peak, the residence as measured from the lowest point of existing grade, is 27 feetand 7
inches. The maximum height allowed for a residence on this size lot is 30 feet as measured from the
lowest point of existing grade to the tallest roof peak.

Elevations — This standard is not fully met.

The proposed residence teflects a ptimary two stoty mass with smaller single and one and a half
story masses projecting on the east and south sides. The home presents a combination of steep and
shallow hip and gable roof forms. Typically, Craftsman style homes feature shallow gable roof
forms. Steep roof pitches and hip style roofs are not common to this style.

On the south elevation of the home a large gable dormer is proposed above the garage door. The
dormer appears oversized in telation to the expanse of roof above the garage. The dormer also adds
another roof line to the multiple roof forms visible on the front of the home, leading to a complex
roof massing. Based on the floorplans this dormer is located in 2 mechanical room, and the
additional squate footage provided by the dormer does not appeat necessaty.

e Staff recommends further study of the roof types and pitches and modification to achieve a
design that is more consistent with the style of the home as identified by the petitioner.

e Staff recommends eliminating the dormer on the south elevation.

Type, color, and texcture of materials — This standard is generally met.

The exterior of the home is primarily horizontal fibet cement siding, with stone along the base on
the front and north sides of the home. Asphalt shingle is proposed for the roof matetial. Wood
windows with interior and exterior muntins are proposed. The brackets, porch columns, trim, fascia
boatds, rakeboards and soffits will be wood. Aluminum gutters and downspouts are proposed. The
chimney will be stone with a clay chimney pot.

e  Staff recommends the addition of stone along the base of the home on the south and west
elevations, to provide a consistent appearance around the home.
e Consistent with past Boatrd approvals, the stone shall be 2 minimum of 4 inches in depth.

The proposed driveway is asphalt and the front walleway and rear patio ate stone pavers.

The proposed color palette includes light blue siding, white trim, gtay roof shingle, and white
windows. The front door and the gatage doots will be white. The petitioner provided colot
renderings to reflect the proposed color palette which are included in the Board’s packet.

Landscaping - This standard can be met.

As currently proposed, a total of thitteen trees are proposed for temoval. Based on the preliminary
engineering plan it appears that there may be some additional trees located near the driveway and
rear patio that are not currently shown as proposed for removal but will likely be impacted. The
trees proposed for removal consist of Ash, Bur Oak, Boxelder, and Silver Maple trees. Based on the
species, size and condition of the trees proposed for removal, a total of 23 replacement inches will
be required to be planted on site to the extent possible using good forestry practices. The total

Page 2



Building Review Board — Apnil 6, 2022

replacement inches required does not include replacement inches for low quality trees ot trees in
poot condition proposed for removal.

The preliminary landscape plan reflects plantings around the foundation of the home and new
shade, evergreen and ornamental trees. Proposed shade trees on the property include Ametican
Linden, European Beech, Ohio Buckeye, Tuliptree, American Hophornbeam and Redpointe Maple
trees. The landscape plan also reflects Arbotvitae and ornamental trees including Setvicebetty and
Pear trees. The City Atbotist does not recommendplanting Pear trees because these trees are not
thriving in the community. The Atborist suggests replacing the proposed Pear trees with Crabapple
trees. As currently proposed, the landscape plan satisfies the required replacement inches and the
minimum landscape criteria for new construction.

The site plan as currently proposed shows approximately 1.5 feet of space between the edge of the
driveway and the south propetty line, leaving minimal space for screening along the driveway, at the
apron neat the garage and limiting the pervious area along the dtiveway for stormwater runoff.
Because of the minimal amount of space along the driveway consideration should be given to
installing a fence along the propetty line to provide screening given the location of the driveway and
garage in relation to the neighbor’s home to the south. In addition, provisions must be made to
assute that stormwater runoff from the driveway is not directed to the neighboring propetty.

Public Comment

Public notice of this petition was provided in accordance with the City requitements and practices.
Notice was mailed by the Community Development Department to surrounding propetty owners
and the agenda for this meeting was posted at various public locations. As of the date of this writing,
no cotrespondence was received regarding this request.

Recommendations

Recommend approval of the residence, attached garage, conceptual landscape and overall site plan
based on the findings presented in this staff report and as further detailed during the Board’s
deliberations. Staff recommends approval subject to the following conditions of approval.

Conditions of Approval

1. Conduct further study of the roof types and pitches to achieve greater consistency
with the Craftsman style of the home selected by the petitioner.

2. Eliminate the dormer on the south elevation.

3. Stone shall be added along the base of the home on the south and west elevations to
provide a consistent appearance around the home.

4. The stone shall be a minimum of 4 inches in depth.

5. A fence shall be reflected on the site plan along the driveway and the engineering
plan shall call out the measures being taken to direct stormwater runoff from the
dtiveway away from the neighboring propetty.

6. All modifications to the plans including the refinements noted above and any othets
made in response to Board direction or as the result of final design development,
shall be clearly called out on the plan and a copy of the plan originally provided to

Page 3



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

10.

11.

the Board shall be attached for compatison purposes. Staff is directed to teview any
changes, in consultation with the Chairman as appropriate to determine whethet the
modifications are in conformance with the Board’s direction and approval prior to
the issuance of any permits.

Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a detailed, landscape plan shall be
submitted and will be subject to review and approval by the City’s Certified Atborist.
The final landscape shall include, but not be limited to, the minimum landscaping
standards for new residences detailed in the Code and all required replacement tree
inches to account for trees removed to the extent possible using good forestry
practices. If the full amount of required replacement inches which totals 23 inches
cannot be accommodated on site, a2 payment in lieu of on site plantings will be
required before the issuance of a building permit to support plantings in the
patkways in the neighborhood.

The final grading and drainage plan shall demonstrate the project is consistent with
the applicable Code requirements subject to review and approval by the City
Engineer. Grading or filling on the site should be kept to the absolute minimum
necessary to meet good engineering practices and properly direct drainage.

Tree Protection Plan — Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a plan to protect
trees identified for pteservation and to protect trees on neighboring propetties
during construction, must be submitted and will be subject to review and approval
by the City’s Certified Arborist.

Details of extetior lighting shall be submitted with the plans submitted for permit.
Cut sheets for all light fixtures shall be provided and all fixtures, except those illuminated
by natural gas at low light levels, shall direct light down and the source of the light shall
be fully shielded from view. All exterior lights shall be set on automatic timets to go
off no later than 11 p.m. except for security motion detector lights.

A plan for construction parking and materials’ staging shall be submitted for review

and will be subject to approval by the City’s Certified Arborist, City Engineer and
Directot of Community Development.

Page 4



THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST BUILDING REVIEW BOARD -- BUILDING SCALE INFORMATION SHEET

Address 1150 Highland Avenue Owner(s)  US First Seria One LLC (Nenad Zecevic 100%)
Architect Alan Leskiv, architect Reviewed by: Jen Baehr
Date 4/6/2022
Lot Area 14975 sq. ft.
Square Footage of New Residence:
1st floor 1503 + 2nd floor 1661 + 3rd floor 0 = 3164 sq. ft.
Design Element Allowance = 340 sq. ft.
Total Actual Design Elements = 171 sq. ft. Excess = 0 sq.ft.
Garage 706 sf actual ; 576 sf allowance Excess = 130 sq. ft.
Garage Width 22'-6" ft.  may not exceed 24" in width on lots
18,900 sf or less in size.
Basement Area = 0 sq. ft.
Accessory buildings = 0 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE = 3294 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE ALLOWED = 3397 sq. ft.
DIFFERENTIAL = -103 sq. ft.
Under Maximum
Allowable Height: 30 ft. Actual Height 27-7"  ft.
_NET RESULT:
103 sq.ft. is
3% under the
Max. allowed
DESIGN ELEMENT EXEMPTIONS
Design Element Allowance: 340 sq. ft.
Front & Side Porches = 135 sq. ft.
Rear & Side Screen Porches = 0 sq. ft.
Covered Entries = 0 sq. ft.
Portico = 0 sq. ft.
Porte-Cochere = 0 sq. ft.
Breezeway = 0 sq. ft.
Pergolas = 0 sq. ft.
Individual Dormers = 36 sq. ft.
Bay Windows = 0 sq. ft.
Total Actual Design Elements = 171 sq. ft. Excess Design Elements = 0 sq. ft.




Area of Request
1150 Highland Avenue




. Area of Request
1150 Highland Avenue







THE CITY OF
LAKE FOREST

CHARTIRID t¥al

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

PROJECT ADDRESS 1150 HIghIOhd Avenue

APPLICATION TYPE
RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIAL PROJECTS
X] New Residence [0 Demolition Complete | [[] New Building [ Landscape/Parking
[0 New Accessory Building [] Demolition Partial [0 Addition/Alteration [] Lighting
[0 Addition/Alteration [l Height Variance [J Height Variance [ signage or Awnings
[0 Building Scale Variance ~ [] Other [0 Other
PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION
US First Seria One LLc Alan Leskiv
Ouner of Properly " Name and Title of Person Presenting Project
333 Busse Hwy ~Leader Architects Itd
Qumer's Stveet Address (may be different from project address) Name of Firm.
Park Ridge, IL, 60068 1701 S. First Ave, 404-i
City, State and Zip Code Street Address -
312-375-4075 Maywood, IL, 60153
Phone Number Fax Number _City, State and Zip Code
usfirstlc@gmail.com 708-715-5005 -
Email Address Phone Number Fax Number
leader.architect@gmail.com
Email Address )

Representatzve’s Signature (. ‘Architect/ Builder)

The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 3:00pm.

Please email a copy of the staff report B OwWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE

Please fax a copy of the staff report B OwWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE

| Twinr pick up a copy of the staff report at

3 OwWN R TA
the Community Development Department & R




e

LAXE FORIST
—_—

CORPORATE OWNERSHIP (Exsiarr A)

Please list the names and eddresses of all officers and directors of the Corporation and all shareholders

who_own individually or beneficially 5% or more of the outstanding stock
application must be accompanied by & resoiution of the Corporation auth
submittal of this application.

of the corporation. In addition, this
orizing the execution and

Name US First Seria One LLC

333 Busse Hwy Park

Name A/é MNAD XEC  EVIC

10345 W WHITNALC,

3132

Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage ‘ [vle, % %
Name Name
Address Address
Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name
Address Address
Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name
Address Address
Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %
Name Name
Address Address
Ownership Percentage % | Ownership Percentage %

Page 1of3




AN
S/ ? h

\_\
/A \\. \
R\

/’f" - eco design. Ltd

L'l EADER ARCHITECTS

708-715-5005 1701 s. First avenue
Leader. architect @ gmail.com Maywood. IL 60153

February 18, 2022

City of Lake Forest
Building Review Board

Re: 1150 Highland avenue.
Project - Construction of new Single Family Residence on the vacant parcel.

Statement of Intent
Design concept:

Design of the proposed residence is considered as a Craftsman style home with traditional
material usage, building massing, scales, roof forms, doors/ windows, porch details that are
harmoniously consistent with the neighborhood context.

High-quality traditional building materials - similar to homes in the area. Full depth natural
stone clad, colored cement board siding, wood railings , architectural asphalt shingles
roofing, window/ door trim details, exposed roof rafters. Windows and glazed doors are
wood and consistent with selected home style.

Traditional door and window trim, dormers, columns, railing details will be high quality
painted wood.

Proposed residence is located to minimize disturbance to existing vegetation at the distance
from the street similar to adjacent homes and near to the 40" building setback line in
compliance with zoning ordinance requirements.

Covered porch with tapered columns, wood railings, gable roof emphasize entry door as the
focal element of the house.

Side - loaded garage mitigates the impact of a front-facing garage door of the front facade.
Driveway material - asphalt as per city recommendation. Walk and patio - stone paving.
New landscape design use vegetation per city recommendation and similar fo the
neighborhood.

We believe that proposed design of the residence will harmoniously maintain the character
of existing environment and is consistent with charm, fee and tradition of the neighborhood.

Regards @M—:

Alan Leskiv. NCARB. ALA
Principal



THE CITY OF

LAKE FOREST

CHARTIRID t0&t

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS

Facade Material

X Stone

O  Brick

O Wood Clapboard Siding
[ Stucco

Color of Material Biscayne Blue/Sand Brown

Window Treatment

Waood Shingle

Aluminum Siding

Vinyl Siding

Synthetic Stucco

Other _Hardie board siding

KOOOOd

Primary Window Type

O  Double Hung
K  Casement

O  sliding
O  Other
Window Muntins

0 Not Provided
X True Divided Lites

Simulated Divided Lifes

X Interior and Exterior muntin bars

O  Interior muntin bars only

O Extericr muntin bars only

0 Muntin bars contained between the glass

Finish and Color of Windows

X  Wood

O  Aluminum Clad
O  Vinyl Clad

O Other

Color of Finish___Light gray

Trim Material
Door Trim Window Trim
O Limestone [ Limestone
O  Brick [0 Brick
X Wood X  wood
T Synthetic Material O  Synthetic Material
O Other O Other
Fascias, Soffits, Rakeboards
X wood
O  Other

L] Synthetic Material _



THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS — CONTINUED

Chimney Material

O Brick
3 Stone
O  Stucco
O Other
_Roofing _
Primary Roof Material Flashing Material
0  Wood Shingles O  Copper
O  Wood Shakes X  Sheet Metal
O  Slate O Other
O ClayTie
0  Composition Shingles
O  Sheet Metal
X  Other _ Asphalt shingles

Color of Material _ Estate grey

Gutters and Downspouts

O Copper
X Aluminum
O oOther —

Driveway Material

Asphalt

Poured Concrete
Brick Pavers
Concrete Pavers
Crushed Stone
Other

Oooododx

Terraces and Patios

Bluestone

Brick Pavers

Concrete Pavers

Poured Concrete

Other  Stone pavers

KOOOO



PLAT OF SURVEY - EXISTING CONDITIONS

\
|

Copyright by \
Leader Architects. Lid

Ne cort of this document lo
ba modified, reproduced or
fransmitted without gricr

wiriiten autorization of the

L Architect
\_7_4/
o
'l A

| _

u] DD
ok 235
-0 53
oy -
Pl |
BF o
8 E 2%

815-482—5713 TOM W. ATKINS 618 S. Broadway St. ‘Dn:

: Mchenry, Il 60050

pls3286@hotmail.com Pl ﬁ T O F S U RVEY ey <
m -
PARCEL 1: Ly g
THE NORTH J4 OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 15 IN LAKE FOREST HEIGHTS, A SUBDIMISION OF THE SOUTH J4 OF THE NORTHEAST Q 5
¥ LYING WEST OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILROAD AND THE EAST J% OF < H
THE SOUTHEAST % OF THE NORTHEAST % OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD W 8
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 9, 1924, IN BOOK "M” OF PLATS, PAGE 70, ~ | 8F
AS DOCUMENT 237997, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. g
PARCEL 2: !
THE SOUTH 4 OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 15 IN LAKE FOREST HEIGHTS, A SUBDMSION OF THE SOUTH J OF THE NORTHEAST g2

¥ LYING WEST OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILROAD AND THE EAST % OF
THE SOUTHEAST % OF THE NORTHEAST % OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 9, 1924, IN BOOK "M” OF PLATS, PAGE 70,
AS DOCUMENT 237997, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

11 3 \\

/D,.‘N'E

License 184.007210,

I hereby cerlify that these
Jrawings were prepored
under my responsible contrel
and o the best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the perfinent Building Code

NORTH_-—

Architects seal

IRON PIPE 0.30'% >
R ‘l 67. IRON PIF‘E-‘{J \\\“‘“””I[
N 4,
S,
Jat e
S JALANLESKIVE =
= ¢ ARCHTECT ° =
e So s
PARCEL 1 //’///Qﬁ}"» w_-{;,g‘,‘\\\\
Shgaensas TS
(VACANT NO BUILDINGS) ”///,,E”ﬂ?\“\\\\\‘\
S
™ 0126. 2022
1 O Expires: 1130202
S &
Y g
z 0
PARCEL 2 w Z w0
(VACANT NO BUILDINGS) g 2 zz
m 5 od
i W I Zx
R=167.53 | ¥ o <t |
— RON ROD 1
1 M=166.81 Yo Lo - b Tk
— /' ENGE \c £ % g LIJ
g g | SCHAIN LINK T
9 IRON_ PIFE 10'S & 0.20°E | Rl I \ <z( a 5 &
5 A\ n L
STATE OF ILLNOIS | g \ L E ELA
COUNTY OF MCHENRY ! ity
— |, TOMMY W. ATKINS, ILLINOIS PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR, IN THE b z i
AL DISTANCES N FEET 40 ECL S, R S ILN08 b0 et S i, e e B o
SCALE: __one inch = 20 feet ! S, /1, %, FQUND AT THE TIME OF SAID SURVEY. THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICE
TA2689 L o SRIDLG SO 35-3266 %, %, CONFORMS TO THE CURRENT ILLINOIS MINIMUM STANDARDS OF PRACTICE Z
FILE NO. 7 e EASE”RlED'g;S ssuHOWN oz A PROiFAS'\‘SII)ONA Z APPLICABLE TO BOUNDARY SURVEYS. a
> RECO! BOIVISIO!
ORDERED BY: P S e ERTIFIED AT MCHENRY, ILLINDIS THIS 11th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2014
HAN N COMPARE YOUR DESCRIPTION BL = BUILDING LINE 2, % STAIE OF § =
= 2, %, LUNOS & § ;
ADDRESS: _1150 HIGHLAND AVENUE AN S S BsL _BU"‘D'NG SETBACK LINE Bt S S Project # 2)-102
REFORT A" DISCREPANGEES e e e INACENEESEHERT ////’//s/; ENRYUGS o1 PROFESSIONAL (AND SURVEYOR NO. 3266 Date: D126 202,
LAKE_FOREST, ILLINOIS = i N . : 3
WHICH YOU MAY FIND. PUE = PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT g MY LICENSE EXPIRES NOVEMBER 30, 2016 Drawn by: AL
| Checked: LA
Revision 1: =
Plat of surve |
Y Revision 3:
SCALE: 1" =20 —
A _ iy
f Sheet # )
A-1

Scale: asshown
———r)

iy




= = — PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Copyright by B
Lecder Architects. tid |

Ne part of this document to

be modified, reproduced or

trensmitted without prior

written autorization of the
Architect

N —
I e s el re Y

eco design. Lid
1701 s. First avenue
Maywood. I 40153

i [EADER ARCHITECTS

neighbouring

708-715-5005

Leader. archilect @ gmail. com

2z W OF, 1Ly,
\Y‘:\.%“?u °°°-/VO//

0

”,

&

s,

\ License 184.007210|
M — | hereby cerlify that fhese
drowings were prepared
1 under my responsible contrel
i \) and to the best of my
o & knowledge fully comply with
W88 T LE . 1 O the pertinent Building Code
= 1':"- 1 1 ¢ | Architects seal
‘ W
i } 7 W,

106"
S
<

AN
(O

ALAN LESKIV}
ARCHITECT =

290

oo
o0

[
\\\\\I\ H//,/,

« | @ o :
« O [ S 3
5 32 8 : OIS
N > 08 i w %, VSEppa OFN
g8 g0 (& z e ®) A) NS
® o
© —+ [=3
Q. [N n T O /S/ G—\W“;—.
= ~ g e 73 0126, 2022
o . § )‘; % < O ‘; Expires: )1.3)_.2022
AT —| % 8 c £ {S/ = =
i 18]
3 | g 2
HE | D p > mn
gl 255 - ] s
s \ O o 82 2>z
= o= ey O 0 E 1 3
17 o=
iy T2r T 06 p I @] b 3 zZ3
gt L emoALp B r o x
' B = yeydse 2 0] = 9+
ep— 53 ' W = 5 z % I
l / ylem peed £ &N (7] g 0 f E
=7 1 ~ a [m]
855 1;: 5% e — 2 < o ‘
e D|F = 3 L E L
] > Ml X : ¥
Y 2 - - \ LIJ 4 S
\ ) | } {. |
M . /| 6 6 8 ‘I ! «0~9¢ I e ¥AY K54 m
R 3 i]]
! ) i . .
: g : Project # 2-12 |
H 2 H Date: 026,202
: .§’ : Drown by: AL
! = ‘ Checked: LA
o |
: |m————— d Ravision 1 1
I : Revision 2:
Il __________ ——————d Revision 3:
f Sheet # i

. Scale: asshown /.l




PROPOSED EAST & SOUTH ELEVATIONS

f Copyright by 3\

| N/ Leader Architects. Lid
Me part of tis document o |
be modified, reproduced or
ransmitted without pricr
i wiitten autorization of the
cla;i ;ggg)ey pot . L érchivecr —
/r,l\"‘ —
soddle T {
[ T
- o £o
= L’ o
. 5=
SW |z
‘ 5 +19-2" bA™ £ g
# 3 celinglne % | 72
§§ g
asphalt shingles m
color per owner <
£
4 g
W 3
I flashing Q g,
L +11-2 < P
T2 second floor Ly F
0 g
/ N8t
alm. gutter w/ mil. @ B
roof edge guard N
& down spouts | g‘g
cement bord siding RS
per owner
License 184.007210) |
FF] Ihereby certify that these
ot . - drowings were prepaed
e — 4,;*9(;’; sil under my responsicle conirol
o . and fo the best of my
i 3}% _ first flaar +10" knowledge fully comply with
1 the pertinent Building Code
= Ty2°grode level
i proposed =
\ Architects seal
\ 1lliggle'vel
— At
ac it Yy
. S,
Sl
‘ F i
I J Sz
SALAN LESKIV: =
. = 3 ARCHTECT ° =
z % S
_______ - ! N = | = PR ==Y g || £ T PR i - N o SO &
T - — e, RUCISN
I~ T EL L NI _ Sl | T GE IR
: 't (R
= |_ fT El V T]Oﬂ ridge vent. cont. — oy chimrey pot s
TR _e evd wood brackels ——, {vpicel N 6—\
. SCALE:3/1¢'= 1-0" ridge vent. cont. ) —_— —- | 0126. 2022
{typical) \, i Expires: 1. 30. 2022
asphalt shingles Ll.l
color per cwner U
Z a
‘ Ww Z ug
| - - a2 2Z
a4 B e e &5 = E <5
3 celling line : 3 celling line i) n |
%m' e(w/dmrl ! Ll | Z .
= & guar
& down spouts ¥ o j ¥
5 h 1
‘ 5 Z O h
Hordie boord siding & = =W
per owner %3 z a I
% & a D
flashing & < oL
. n
EI S N RS~ L 2 0,
2 second floor o 2second floor W i - %
. £ —
gi o =
| g
[ Z
} 0
38" high wood raifng i } L = =——|,
i Project # 21-102
] ! | — —
Zf— sfone wiop around Date: 0126. 202
1 —
==5 HE .
10" fist floor 4 L1 = it fist floor +10" Drawn by: AL
—— I e 3L T w ,$ S Checked: LA
+2'grade level | - ——p— +2grade Ievgl —
proposed ogerty +0.00 grade fevel propose .
= g | existing Revision 1:
Revision 2:
Revision 3:
-8 4 MY e +__—B' | Sheet # A
-2 baosement - 7 -2 basement - =
~, Front Elevation I

) scalE g = 10 scale: c;hcwn/




PROPOSED WEST & NORTH ELEVATIONS

( Copyright by A

Leader Architects. Lid

Ne part of this document to
be modified, reproduced cr
transmitted without prior
wrilten auterization of the
Architect

clay chimney pot

asphalt shingles {typical)

color per owner

\5!.

saddle —

M

b m I gm
+19'2 1 =— — — — ok | &3
3 celling line -0 g .

S5W | &3
alum. gutter w/ mil. B k | =9
roof edge guard G — “ g
& down spouts T I | — H
28 Bz

8 >

cement board siding

per owner < |
+112 : x | §
2 second fleor b-l E
Q 5
< 2
W |38
~ QT
o = =]
36" high wood raiing E b
2y
I 3%
RS

stone wrap around
License 184.007210

+10 - . : = ] ] s (= ] i — ] —{ [l Ihereby certify thal these
t¥afear &, T ¥ = = e 2 ——— == L drawings were preparsd
-1 grade level T — a e = = = N _ under my responsiole cantrol
[ i i and fo the best of my

knowledge fully comply with
the pertfinent Building Code

Architects seal

I
i Wy
.‘ SOF 11y,
| Syeeing,
. S )11 Y WYY [N I SN S e Epten N BN B R s | I "z
-2 basement [0 Y] T T T B S JALANLESKIVE =
Sl W e e e - . E_ °,. ARCHTECT * g
: . e Sp &
—._ Right Elevation
Yt i —— — ’//,;VJE 001 O
Y SCALE: 3/16"= 10" LTI
_G 0126, 2022
Expires: 1. 30.202
L
||
Z 0
Ww Z 0
o - +19-2" _D_ o 2 z
? 3 celling line i E a -
asphalt shingles | | pd :
color per owner n: 14 j :
. > b I
i 4 2 8h
s 8 Io
a
= . < og
= s . e e e - = = — — —e—— T L E 0
= = 2 second floor W Z - v
alumn. gutter w/ mil. | 5
roof edge guard w
& down spous Z
___ cement board siding m
per owner
Project # 21-02
T - - b Date: 0126 202
- — = = el I | E | :I. o _éwf][i Drawn by: AL
= . in = 1 first [ .
- T T : . "T.1 grade level Checked: LA
Revision 1:
Revision 2:
Revision 3: .
L = LN | e g ) [ -@ I '\'
- ¥ oaement sheet #

. Rear Elevation B A-8
Nt SCAESSS T | Scale: as shown_/a




»

5/12
slope

5/12

2/12

4¢—slope

roof saddle

typ.

-~

o3

S o

w v
26.5'h.
third floor
area-,
calculation
line

slope—»

10/12
slope--{—*

19" second floor
—areda
cadlculation line

S

'I ‘ i \
| ‘ v
! ! B e
(1 | 1
= [— == |
| | ‘ 4+——slope :
[
| | 1 |
[
| T |
S !
| S8 !
=3 :
(T i I I
i g |
| [ | ! |
o o~ @ i |
‘ H 58 ! [
| o~
! |
|
10/12 |
| | +——slope
|£—___—L<E—_3‘LK
| [ |

Roof plan

/ SCALE:1/4" = 1-0"

o184

| ;
e

10/12
——slope

f Copyright by \]
Leader Architects. Ltd |

No part of this document to

be modified, reproduced o

trarsmitted without pricr

written autorzation of the
Architect

eco design. Ltd
1701 s. First avenue
Maywood, IL 60153

A

[ EADER ARCHITECTS

Leader. crchitect @ gmeil. com

708-715-5005

License 184.007210/ |

Ihereby certify that fhese
drawings were preped
under my responsible control
and fo the best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the periinent Building Code

Architects seal

\\\\\Hlu///,
\\g%_?f . .,'.L,lj_A,/(’;/,,
o° "o%{p
ALAN LESKIV:
ARCHITEC]

7,
oS2

11
g,
JROTTIN

”, N
i

')
AN
S0
:
bR
.
5

S
>

2

0 Ky
I
it

e

Expires: n0I2 |

~,
Z,
7,

CE

NEW CONSTRUCTION
1150 HIGHLAND AVE
LAKE FOREST *** [LLINGQIS

S5INGLE FAMILY RESIDEN

Project # 21-02
Date: 0126. 2022
Crawn by: AL

| Checked: LA

' Revision 1:
Revision 2:
Revision 3:
\ J
f Sheet # j!
A-12

\.  Scale: asshown //,

ROOF PLAN




R
3 celling line

+171-2" *
2 second floor

+10" :

-1 grade level

¢

-2basement

. building section

SCALE: 3/16"=

10"

Second flo

or

26-11"

First floor

i Bgsemenf

+0,00 grade level
existing

first floor +10"
1= == 3 = Ti2"grade level
pro

o + 192"

3 ceiling line

+11%-2"
* 2second floor

posed

8

P
" -2 basemnent

BUILDING SECTION

|

(7 Copyrignt by ™
Leader Archifects. Lid

Ne part of this document to
be madified, reproduced or
transmitted without prior
wiittens qutorizotion of  the
Architect

|

|

0 28
ok =3
- 33
W g
2k 58
S Z:
ok 2%
o0
[0)

14

< g

1 4 8

Wz

Q 5

3

W 32

~N 8%

30
~8
g4

License 184.0072°0

lhereby cerfify that these
cdrawings were prepared
under my responsiole control
and to fhe best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the pertinent Building Code

Architects seal

Wit
\\\\ggwo,f.,,‘.ﬂl,/_/vgf,,/
S SALANLESKIVE E
= 9 ARCHMECT ° 2
% Qe G
“, @,V\sfoo.,ae'g S
3 A
//,,“I”ﬁ?‘\‘\“\\\\
<‘_—\ 0126 022
| Expires: L0202

Ll
(W]
Z o
b z 0O
o 2 zz
= -
m g o2
w I z
r o 13
> b Ip
2 Z Qu
S 0 Ix
0 u]
N
g Zu
Ww z ~¥
_| 9
0
4
m
i Project # _a-m
Date: 01262022
Drawnby: AL
_Checked: LA
| Revision 1:
Revision 2
Revision 3:
N
( sheet# )
A-13

. Scale: asshown ‘/.l




COLOR RENDERINGS & IMAGES OF SURROUNDING HOMES

( |

Material Schedule
. eI - i
tem Material Manutacturer Color 3 Copyright by
t —_ Hicket E\snnlayne Leader Architects. Lid
Roof Asphalt shingles | “ SUPREMESHINGLES " | Estate Grey =L No part of this document lo
Siding Wwood " ALLURA " Biscoyne blus be modified, reproduced or
Trmy/ Fascia Wood Light gray transmitted without pricr
Gutiers Alurminum "ACM” Light gray wiitten ?A‘chogfggf’” of the
Windows Wood | "MARVIN" Light groy )
Garage door Wood "Geroge Solutions” tight gray — oA
" WILOWBROOK BROWN
Stone Natural stone CASTLEROCK " Sand Brown /—h\
|
n gy
24
k53
; (&} Bt
W | =g
= k = Q
if 4§
o= H
g g
W 3
Q 5
o
< Y
L 8
] § g
18
~
28
~ 2

License 184.007210 |

Ihereby certify that these
drawings were prepared
under my responsible confrol
and fo the best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the pertinent Building Code

HH ILDUM

Architects seal

g,

e ORI,
S JALANLESKIVE
Z § ARCHTECT ° =
@I S
o I/"iﬁ/(,rﬁ 00\\-\0&1\\
Hiny
~—  Front view o
o = < %\Mh_m..
0126, 22
Ll
[}
Z 1y
w Z 3o
o 2 3z
= |
m b g3
L i Z «
¥ o jg:
> § 3t
4 Z 8y
g 0 Ig
25 gt
g 2y
w z "%
1 g
U
Z
u
Project # o
D_cfe:_ Olﬁ:mz
Drawn by: AL
Checked: LA
| Revision 1:
Revision 2: -
i ision 3: — —
subject property
Sheet #

-~ Street view Highland avenue A-5




FIRST FLOOR PLAN

74

206"

13221

a7

26-10"

P

First Floor Plan

_ 6011 172" E—
. 8o .
e = S
| - — f:; — g
; - —_ € c o N -.
. 36 . L 1p-gr . 1R11172 . 112 1/2" . R .
dn =
N SRR oW R |
k) | 2@
| | |
1 e e — g s e e e A T
|_J 2 = - 1 T - / -
e . e o 7 s / masorvy fireplace
) e DLZJ Lo, / J / / 36 wicdo} 20"
) . —,7‘/ "/ . »0/ {deepx30°thigh)
e i ; v firebox, 36" damper =+~
o - I klfChe/D e I y . 13'x13" fiue, fiush hearth ) L
n° SUzZyhT 10’ , AZ91/4" PAYT . e . wigssloglighter, 2441 1/2" 7 H |
p P 7 / /; dir barrier on freplace wall - 7 7 7
oo N | D e
lcly,ar/;///). v : a4 ;s
garage . 7 |- yow: 2 ks %
R B ENaY R -
237.64sq ft Ciex P AR g
Yy araan - g

.

s

/
/7/- 7/7‘ /

IRRLCR VA

246’

SCALE: 1/4"

10"

{1 2

=

first floor’

1,505.04 sq ft .~
50/5 /0 bsqft
5912 ‘o

4
P
)/ e

2 h -
N o = | n 5 5 e
gafoge DL (¢ ' g3 '/;'-6'1/,4"_,', .
d My . . a2 w2 ) // v
-1 482,51 sq ft | LBYE d - front porch / "
A | ! . P
/) " | ©137.42s5qft
! = g . / s / //
= R s
s | = | L - y
i / y ; i l g&
1 // . R4 / : i X 82Uz ., 8-41/2° .
el ey 8 ~/ ‘ ‘
) "7// . F o l
! - =] — 16-1 1/4" \
A / s 1 . :
?
ve 1 ou =
L 5.8 .. 590 5-4" R 58 . 1
. B S SO 1 (2 U [+ 21 -4 B e I
e @Sy L
i I as a9 . ¢

68"

140"

| 24

&

Fol
&0

g-8

AT

344"

109127

1 '-O'f"‘+

f Cocyright by Y

\=/ Leader Architechs. thd |

No part of this decument to
be medified, reproduced cr
trarsmitted without prior
written cutcrization of the
Architect

I

53
T g
v} 9%
. G
foy -
2 £8
[} 4§
o 58
3 533
©

LEADER ARCHITECTS

| License 184.007210]]

Leader. architect @ gmail. com

A

708-715-5005

Ihereby certify that these
Jrawings were prepared
under my responsible conlrol
and to the beast of my
knowledge fully comply with
the pertinent Building Code

Architects seal

Wt

SheRlim,
§é R
S IALANLESKIVE 2
= 9 ARCHITECT = =
7 Clo AR
7, Ngge seso RS

1. \)
////’/Hﬁ?\\\\\\\\
0126, 202
_Expirei 1. 30.2022
Ll
0
Z Q
W Zz 0
o 8 zZ
=4 |
m b a2
w I3 z3
r x 93
> b Ip
2 £ B8u
S B T
< s ge
& fu
W oz ¥
_| g
0
Z
n
_FTojecriO_ noo2
Date: 0126. 2022
| Drawn byt AL
Checked: A
Revision 1:
Revision 2:
Revision 3.

T sheet#

A-10

. Scale: asshown /.l




SECOND FLOOR PLAN

f Copyright by \

teade chiects Ua

9 3 No part of this decument to
494 1/4" =S - be modified, reproduced or
. " e transmitted without prior
L 16-81/2 . 27-10 o written cutorizafion of the
; Avchitect

C S—

1701 s. First avenue

30"
Maywood., L 60153

eco design. Lid ‘

.@LEA DER ARCHITECTS

5/12

10/12

fi

dﬂoor / /

‘m?\gq
R % %

Leader. erchitect & gmail. com

708-715-5005

| License 184.007210 I

'/;
f%

N
3

22
200"

&

5/12

[ hereby certify that these
drawings were prepared
under my responsicle confrol
and io the best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the pertinent Building Code

85142

Architects seal

ity
\\\\\\ t1y,
QF 1L,

e,

A

o

e
sa0d 5\\

,
i

o
o
°
X3
%,
%,

>
S
m
a
=]
Py
O
///

= atlic
/ @ 3rd floor

/49705qh‘ //
bedroomS// '

Expires: 1.30.202

114"

510"

1012 1042

I s
dormer - / i /
a« to be calculcn‘ed

to floor area. /

‘ / @ 2nd floor

99 sc ft/ i

&, 7 |'sa.41 sqtk » |
o C1sioue 1 P R e el I e
~ //// y 19* second floor | 10/12 10712
=4 | // ———area ]

——
calculation line

10-2"

NEW CONSTRUCTION
1150 HIGHLAND AVE

LAKE FOREST *** [LLINOIS

/

e

SINGLE FAMLY RESIDENCE

Project # 21-%2
I Date: 0126. 202

44"

| Drawn by: AL
Checked: LA

— Revision 1:

. o o 49-53/4" o o e Revision 2:
g ' Revision 3:

o ——
~,_Second Floor Plan et )

) sCaEA = 10
A-11

. Scdle: os sfyi




PRELIMINARY SITE GRADING & TREE REMOVAL PLAN

CONDITION 1-6| a i b :—. )
(1=BEST - 6= * : —h - — i Copyright by
TAG# | SIZE SPECIES DEAD) o 5 Ash @ 1 | \& Leader Arctitects. Utd
[ 3 L] ; 172 H—____c:‘ll:::;vuod 43 1 35 22 Ametlcan Elm 3 | No p?;ic;fg\voclémenéto
uiberry - 1 [ ified, rey of
r S n .I t] n S P a n S 22 Cotlonwood 3 | » z Hisko 2 1 franmited wihout pricr
P ( ) ( ) e ‘ , ‘ ' g - o $ a7 18 Red Oak 3 | wiilten autorization of the
d 4 — —_— 38 18 American Efm 4 Architect
THE NORTH % OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 15 IN LAKE FOREST HEIGHTS, A SUBDIMISION OF THE SOUTH J OF THE NORTHEAST I} 17 Boxelder 5 ™ 7 Hickory 3 — —
% LYING WEST OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILROAD AND THE EAST J6 OF [ 21 Ash 4 | 20 B Hickory 3 '\_ 4
THE SOUTHEAST % OF THE NORTHEAST % OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD 7 7 American Elm s | 5 38 Ash 4
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 9, 1924, iIN BOOK "M" OF PLATS, PAGE 70, 8 10 Ash 4 2 ) Ash 4 - N
AS DOCUMENT 237997, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 9 8 Ash 4 L : )
PARCEL 2: 10 12 Red Oak 3 -
THE SOUTH % OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 15 IN LAKE FOREST HEIGHTS, A SUBDIVISION OF THE SOUTH )4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1 10 Red Oak 3 43 20 American Etm 3| in 23
% LYING WEST OF THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILROAD AND THE EAST J OF 2 12 Ash 4 .44 | 12 | Ash —— 2 ~ 53
THE SOUTHEAST % OF THE NORTHEAST } OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD 13 [ Hickory 3 |-_45 7 Ash 4 ' 6=
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED APRIL 9, 1924, IN BOOK "M" OF PLATS, PAGE 70, 14 10 Red Oak 3 || 48 14 Ash 4 S)ll.l B
AS DOCUMENT 237997, IN LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 18 10 Ash 4 T —47 25 American Eim 3 K ~ 38
s 13 Bur Oak ) I 7 Ash 4 kel E <
-7 10 Ash 4 49 ) Ash 4 Q Rs
[ 18 ] Ash 4 50 13 Ash 4 $Q
18 ifi Ash 4 | T 10 Ash 4 1 4
20 10 Ash 4 52 6 Ash 4 <
21 8 Ash 5 =83 10 | ShverMaple | 3 | §
22 ) Ash 4 54 6 Ash 6 14 8
23 7 Ash 4 55 3 Hickory 3 Ly T
24 9 Ach 4 56 6 Ash 6 Q 5
25 8 Ash 4 57 6 Ash 4 < g
26 9 Ash . 58 10 Hawthom 6 Lj G
2z 13 American Elm 6 5 15 Black Walnut 3 / ~ | 8%
28 17 Ash 4 Thank you, 2
5 | 7 | Ameicantin s low Loggen LA (] 42
0 12 Ash 4 Certiled Arboris! #177 |
B47-561-7061 o3
License 184.007210
Ihereby cerfify that these
drawings were prepared
under my responsible conrol
and to the best of my
knowledge fully comply with
the pertinent Building Code
LEGEND S——
Architects seal
M PROPOSED ELEVATION \\\\\}\%_gsul.%u//\/ /’/,/
~s75—  PROPOSED CONTOUR 3\ 4\3" .“w?{p/',
O POWERPOLE s s b3 E
@ e = SALAN LESKIV:
IE' ARCONDITION ‘:// (}d ARCHITECT -.::9 §
- % e, RPN
€ | e RS
——(  ASTING DRANAGE PIPE g
¥ FIREHYDRANT (/‘_"‘ »
® orunmer —1 012602
(O STORMWATER MLET L Ex—pires: II.CO.ZRZ_
'WATER MANHOLE |
© Ly
® Baox (]
©  ELECTRICMETER _ﬁ Z g
i w Z [}
© s = D O g Z
©  swenw "] = = |
P m b 2
©  czor < O=
g Ww 3 z.
WW  wiNpow weLL 2 X
- ¥ o 45
Q@ oswEER O >_ E T E
@  cownsPOUT ~ =] z 0 I
ws  somroworsmos O s 8 T
8P BOTTOM OF PIPE ﬁ — < U E
™" TOP OF PIFE O LL E L'Q Ll-l
El AIR CONDITION O) > L i — %
@~ DRAINAGE FLOW .g O | a|
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY 6 E Z
PAVER PATIO q) ‘ -
—s—  CONSTRUCTION FENCE GC') —_ 0
———  TREEFENCE L
DSXEZZ PROPOSED MOUNTABLE CURB @ (]') | Project # 21-102
[ZZZZ1 PATCHING - 9 Date: 0126, 202
ESEES0  PROPOSED B-6.12 CURB L -ﬂ'awnb_y: AL |
- Checked: LA
IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS: ?
TOTAL LOT AREA : 14942.65 SF RECORD P = Revision 1:
A e e 2 —
EXISTING ~ PROPOSED \‘n\‘i"}* kf? <L REFERENCE: PLAT OF SURVEY BY Revision 2:
HOUSE AREA = 0.00 SF  2237.39 SF SO/ moms o 4 ATK " Revision 3: 7]
§x TOM W. ATKINS Revision 3:
DRIVEWAY AREA = 0.00SF  1526.00 SF Nat REGISTERED E'N - .
PATIO AREA = 0.005F  548.34 SF Y | erorsssona N February 12, 2022 12/1n/14 i P
PATH AREA = 0.00 SF 226.43 SF 3 ENGINEER § lllinois Professional Engineer s
= . X £ & N
PORCHAREA =  0.00SF  140.80 5F E 4 e e sy Ay
ACPAD/GENAREA =  0.00SF 16.00 SF xpiratigndate: 02:22:20 SITE BENCH : Sheet# |
WINDOW WELLS AREA = 0.00 SF 78.00 SF Ta the best of our knowledge and belief, the drainage of the surface waters will not be changed by the CURB CUT CROSS T
construction of this site or any part thereof, or that if such surface water drainage will be changed, reasonable
IMPERVIOUS TOTAL = 0.00SF 4772.96 SF provisians have been made for the collection and diversion of such water into public areas or such waters will be ACROSS FROM 1150 HIGHLAND AVE.
PERVIOUS TOTAL = 14942.65 SF  10169.69 SF planned far in accordance with generally accepted engineering practices 50 as to reduce the likellhood of damage ELEVATION = 686.42
= * - to the adjoining property because of the construction of this site. -

e asshown
. Scd




PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN

Scale: asshown

g e 4 UB B[S0 |0 0p0sT T £ |
on f B el =
S Zn,t i 50055 £-804 g3E. 38 8|8 SIONIT xxx 1SFHOS IV g8 _
C @ O 33 " -
Jed . | SR8 B0 <% IAV ONVIHEIH DSLL HESE _
5D ~ | 50@ 6 & = = _ t _ Bl
~% |893s ~| §200%s 5 Q o= =) -
5% 8828 S1O3LIHINY YIQVI7mmm & 258080 |8 5| 5 |
BY 2s28% PH] "UBisep oo 3 5= |8 NOILINELSNOD M3IN . AT I e £
o et = 2 = = k
Skt Sl seetdE (5 3 .|el g 515ls
3 Bhate g z€-oa% ||8 @ o|ls| 2§l |2|3|2
S BEtE £l 85309k < S 3ONIQISIE AWMAVE FTENIS (§ 56 f T
W& _Mbhw mm.mmmm.m | s | alglo _.RmR R.
WoT LR INAITasEL
50 65 1981
191 G cee d
990097 Stwhsaan Aused P € AG pasn 2q sueid asa)
VoL WS U N 29E pincys Agiqer; ou sidade “auj ‘siaubed ynosagsoy
‘sueyd asaly) 40 asn 10 "Aled PN € 01 LNSOPSIY
*INIL ‘SHINIYV
H9NM0Y0FSO
& PUE AUB S2AJa53 AGAIRY U ‘SIALLIEY 4SNOIONSTY
€ W9 Bau|fS Jeajyallg 0L efjo)[maq eaelEg] Sl=413TV08
ot g3 eaduaipAd aepung Alagmens LU33ND Mous, e({o))ranb eaFuripAy i =
upjd 8dposSpuUP
3 -] aepAIoqy BIB(IN JIBIN, $1123U3p120 elny)
suaaifiaag
T o prqpay wiases SISUSPEUBD 5|3J3))!
[4 uE Alageajalas soueyug uwniny 3L g UWININYy, esopjipuesd X ajydueauly|
$a3J] [eluawewI0/A0ls Japun
ALULNYNO s JWYN NOWWOD JWVYN JINYLOE __
SINIWIHIND3IY 3dVISANYY ”_
8y $9Yauy uaWedeiday pasodosd e1oL
‘sayau| Juawaae|dsy palinbay
v T v & USpUN UE3pBulY CEEETm
ot z 5 WS Jead 1e8anueyy Aesppuey), euehisfjed studd
£ T € K3 wng yze[g EI[IBAJAS eSSAN s
v T v & anu dyny e1apdi|ny uospuapoun| mm
€ 1 £ o« yaaag ueadoung eapeajAs sndey ...M =5
T v £ WE wieaquioydoy ueaNawy BUBIU|j0E STUIdLe)| %.M
€ T € W€ skayang oo eiqejd snjnasay £ %
9 k4 £ W odey sywiodpay \S3ujodpay, wnigny a3y,
€ T € o ajdey aze|g uwmny ,326(g UWININY, IIUEWD31} 153y
SIHINI |
SIHONITVLOL  ALILNVNTG LNINIIVIdTY zs JWYN NOWWOD JWYNJINVLOE

1S ANINIDVTIY 33UL

6011

7




Agenda Item 5
624 Highview Terrace
Second Floor Addition, Porch Additions, Garage Demolition &
Replacement Garage

Staff Report

Excerpt of the Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes
Building Scale Summary

Vicinity Map

Air Photos

Materials Submitted by Petitioner

Application

Property Owners’ Statement of Intent

Project Manager Statement of Intent

Description of Exterior Materials

Plat of Survey — Existing Conditions

Proposed Site Plan

Existing and Proposed North & South Elevations
Existing and Proposed East Elevations

Existing and Proposed West Elevations

Color Rendering

Existing & Proposed Streetscape Image

Proposed Roof Plan

Existing & Proposed First IFloor Plan

Proposed Second Floor Plan

Proposed Replacement Garage Elevations & Floor Plan
Preliminary Site Grading & Drainage Plan
Neighborhood Images Submitted by the Petitioners
Sun/Shadow Images Provided by Petitioners
Alternate Design Concepts

Correspondence from Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting

Materials shown in italics are included in the Board packet only. A complete copy of the
packet is available from the Community Development Department.

Building Review Board
April 6, 2022



624 Highview Terrace

Consideration of a request for approval of a second floor addition to the existing single story home,
porch additions, demolition of the existing garage and construction of a replacement two-car
detached garage.

Property Owners: Jerry O’Brien and Laura Nekola
Project Representative: Chris Russo, project manager

Staff Contact: Jen Baehr, Planner

Summary of Request
The petitioners are requesting approval of a second story addition that extends across the full width of the

front of the home, the addition of open porches on the front and rear of the home, demolition of the
existing garage and construction of a replacement detached two-car garage in the northeast corner of the

property.

The second story addition is proposed to allow reconfiguration of the existing first floor space and
relocation of the bedrooms from the first floor to the proposed second floor. The second story addition is
located above the front of the home to allow the existing interior vaulted ceiling space in the family room, at
the rear of the house to remain. The front porch addition will replace the existing small covered stoop with
a more functional porch. A small porch is proposed on rear of the home to provide a covered entry into the
mudroom from the rear yard.

The existing garage is proposed to be demolished in its entirety and the petitioner is proposing to build a
new two-car garage generally in the same location as the existing garage. The new garage is proposed to
provide sufficient space for two vehicles and some storage space.

Action to Date on this Petition

The project as proposed requires zoning variances from the front yard setback and from the west
side yard setback. Although the Building Review Board does not have purview over zoning
variances, because the design and massing aspects of the second floor addition, which are under the
purview of the Board, create the need for the zoning variance, the following information is
provided. Requests for zoning variances must demonstrate a hardship that is not created by either
the current or a former property owner.

As background, on November 22™ 2021, the Zoning Board of Appeals considered the following
requests with respect to this petition.

» A variance from the front yard setback to allow construction of an open porch that
encroaches three feet into the required 40 foot setback. The Zoning Board indicated
general support for this variance.

» A variance from the side yard setback on the west side of the house to accommodate the
second floor addition as proposed. The required side yard setback is 10 feet. The existing
home is non-conforming to the 10 foot west side yard setback. The second floor addition
as proposed extends into the 10 foot setback approximately six feet, close to the same
distance as the footprint of the existing single story home.



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

» A variance to allow the structures on the property to exceed the allowable lot coverage was
originally requested, but is no longer requested. The petitioner revised the plans to reduce
the size of the garage to eliminate the need for a lot coverage variance.

The Zoning Board of Appeals questioned whether the requested side yard setback variance met the
applicable criteria and requested that alternative massing and designs be considered by the petitioner,
beyond those presented to the Board, in an effort to eliminate the need for a setback variance or to
reduce the extent of encroachment of the two story mass into the side yard setback. The Zoning
Board of Appeals requested review and input from the Building Review Board on whether, from a
massing and design perspective, other options are workable.

The petitioner provided two alternative concepts for the second story addition which are included in
the Board’s packet. However, the petitioners informed staff that the alternative concepts do not
accomplish the goals of the project, one of which is retaining the vaulted ceiling area over the family
room at the rear of the house. Staff encouraged the petitioner to further explore concepts that
potentially could accomplish their goals while also minimizing the extent of the encroachment of a
new second floor mass into the required side yard setback.

Description of Property and Existing Residence

The property is located on the north side of Highview Terrace, one lot east of Maywood Road.
Generally, the properties along Highview Terrace are larger in size closer to Sheridan Road and
become narrower moving west. The properties in the immediate area of the property that is the
subject of this request range in size from 7,300 square feet to 11,800 square feet. Lots of these sizes
limit how large of a house and garage can be constructed in a manner that is supported by the Code
requirements and in a manner that does not negatively impact neighboring homes or the character
of the streetscape. The neighborhood is comprised of modest homes constructed in a mix of
architectural styles. Based on available records, the majority of the homes along Highview Terrace
were built in the 1950s, although some homes date from as early as the 1930s. As a result of
construction of the homes being built many decades ago, most of the homes are nonconforming to
the current zoning setbacks in some manner.

The property at 624 Highview Terrace is 7,950 square feet and is rectangular in shape. The site is
narrow, as are most properties along Highview Terrace. The existing home was built in 1950 and is a
single-story vernacular cottage style home. The existing garage was built in 1959. The family room
on the north side of the home was a later addition built in 1964, this is the area where the vaulted
ceiling which the owners desire to retain is located.

Staff Evaluation
An evaluation of the project based on the applicable standards and staff recommendations is offered below
for the Board’s considerations.

Demolition

As noted above, the existing detached garage is proposed to be demolished in its entirety. Findings in
support of the partial demolition of the house and complete demolition of the garage are detailed below.
Criteria 1 — The existing structure itself, or in relation to its surroundings, does not have special historical, architectural,

aesthetic or cultural significance to the community.

Page 2



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

This criterion is met. The existing garage does not present any special historical, architectural, aesthetic or
cultural significance.

The proposed partial demolition of the house includes removal of the roof at the front of the home and
removal of the existing covered entry on the front elevation. The elements proposed for removal do not
have any particular significance.

Criteria 2 — Realistic alternatives, including adaptive reuses, do not exist because of the nature or
cost of work necessary to preserve the structure or to realize any appreciable part of its value.
This criterion is met. The existing garage is considered undersized for a modern day two-car garage. The

work necessary to make the garage functional would ultimately result in a large portion of the garage being
demolished and rebuilt.

The partial demolition of the home is proposed to allow the addition of second floor living space to the
single story home.

Criteria 3 — The structure in its present or restored condition is unsuitable for residential, or a
residentially compatible use; or fire or other casualty damage or structural deterioration has
rendered the structure (and/or remains) an immediate health or safety hazard.

This criterion is not fully met. The garage in its present condition appears to be useable although as noted
above is undersized for a two-car garage.

The single story, small home is suitable for residential use in its present condition. The current owners
desire additional living space.

Criterion 4 — The demolition and/or the replacement structure will not adversely impact the value
of property within the neighborhood.

This criterion is partially met. No evidence has been presented that the proposed demolition of the garage
and replacement garage will adversely impact the values of the properties in the neighborhood.

No evidence has been submitted to demonstrate that the proposed partial demolition of the residence will
adversely affect the neighborhood. The Zoning Board of Appeals raised concerns about the potential for
adverse impacts resulting from the second story addition as proposed.

Criterion 5 — The demolition and replacement structure will be compatible with and not adversely
impact the neighborhood character.

This criterion is partially met. The design of the proposed replacement garage appears to be generally
compatible with the character of the property and existing neighborhood.

The overall massing of the proposed second floor addition, although generally consistent with the massing
of the house to the east, is not generally consistent with the more refined massing of most of the homes in
this small lot neighborhood. The Board’s review and direction from a design and massing perspective are
intended to assure consistency with the quality and character of the neighborhood.

Staff finds that the criteria for demolition are satisfied and recommends approval of the demolition of the

garage and partial demolition of the residence subject to review and action on the proposed new
construction.

Page 3



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

Site Plan — This standard is met.
The existing footprint of the house will be maintained. The front porch addition is proposed on the east
side of the front elevation. The front porch is 6 feet wide and 20 feet and 3 inches long.

The proposed replacement garage is generally in the location of the existing garage, although the
replacement garage is shifted slightly to comply with the five foot accessory structure setback. The existing
driveway will be slightly expanded to accommodate the wider replacement garage. The existing curb cut will
remain.

Building Massing and Height — This standard requires further due diligence.

Based on the lot size, the Code permits a residence of up to 2,413 square feet. An additional 241 square feet
is permitted for design elements, elements as defined in the Code which bring a human scale to the
residence and serve to mitigate the appearance of overall mass such as single dormers, human scale covered
entries and screen porches. A garage of up to 576 square feet for a garage is permitted.

e Based on the City’s calculation methodology, the existing residence totals 1,649 square feet.

e The proposed second story addition totals 737 square feet.

e A total of 576 square feet is allowed for a garage on this property. The proposed replacement garage
totals 484 square feet.

e The new front and rear porches add 154 square feet of design elements.

e The square footage of the existing residence with the proposed addition is 2,386 square feet and is
below the maximum allowable square footage by 27 square feet, equal to 1 percent of the allowable
square footage for the property.

The existing height of the house is not included on the architectural plans, but based on staff’s measurement
from the plans provided, the existing residence is approximately 15 feet and 8 inches tall. The second story
addition will increase the height of the home to 24 feet and 2 inches. The maximum height allowed for a
residence on this size lot is 30 feet as measured from the lowest point of existing grade to the tallest roof

peak.

The project as proposed conforms to the City’s square footage and height limitations. With the proposed
addition, the home will reflect a full two-story massing from the street. Two story massing is not
unprecedented in this neighborhood, however single and one and a half story homes are much more
common.

From a design perspective, it is difficult to build a second story addition to a home that was originally
designed to be a single story cottage in a manner that does not appear disconnected and out of proportion.
The addition of the second story to the existing home appears to result in some awkward massing
particularly on the front facade in the area of the existing front facing gable and on the side elevations where
the second story addition appears unbalanced and top-heavy in relation to the existing home. The alternate
concepts provided based on staff’s review do not yet achieve a more cohesive massing which may be able to
be achieved through further study and refinement of the second floor massing.

»  Staff requests input from the Board on the massing of the proposed addition.

Page 4



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

Elevations — This standard requires further due diligence.

The proposed addition will present a full two-story massing on the front elevation. As noted above, homes
with single story and one and half story massing are more common in this neighborhood than a full two-
story massing. The home directly east of this property does present a two-story massing and appears to
loom over the surrounding lower profile homes. Continuing this massing pattern will impact the modest,
understated character of the neighborhood. Staff recognizes the petitionet’s need for additional square
footage through a second floor addition, however questions remain as to whether further study and
refinement could achieve a design that is a more appropriate and a sensitive solution that maintains the
character of the home and neighborhood.

The existing front and rear shallow gable forms on the house will be maintained. The proposed addition
presents a combination of steep gable and hip roof forms. Visually, the contrast in the roof types and
pitches on the existing home and on the proposed addition does not reflect a cohesive appearance.

The existing home has a variety of opening sizes and proportions, although almost all the existing openings
are vertically oriented. The proposed addition presents mostly double hung windows that are vertically
oriented however one horizontal window is proposed on the east elevation which appears to stand out from
the rest of the windows. The horizontal orientation of this window is proposed to accommodate furniture
in the bedroom. Full double hung windows like those on the rest of the home may not be workable in this
location, however a series of square shape windows or windows more proportional to the existing double
hung windows may be more appropriate and could avoid creating a contrast with the existing windows.

» Staff requests input on the proposed roof type and pitches.
» Staff recommends modification of the horizontal window on the east elevation to more closely
follow the window proportions and orientations found on the rest of the home.

Replacement Garage

The replacement garage is a simple, single story structure with gable roof form to match the existing
residence. Double hung windows are proposed on the west elevation of the garage. A hipped roof element
is proposed above the garage door on the south elevation.

Type, color, and texture of materials — This standard is generally met.

The exterior walls of the existing home are a combination of stone, brick, and cedar shingle siding. The
proposed addition reflects a combination of fiber cement shingle siding and fiber cement clapboard siding.
The proposed roof material is asphalt shingle to match the existing home. Fiber cement is proposed for the
trim, fascia, soffit and rake boards on the proposed addition. Aluminum clad windows to match the existing
windows are proposed. The petitioner did not provide information on the type of muntins proposed in the
windows. Clarification on the type of muntin proposed should be provided during the meeting. Metal
gutters and downspouts are proposed to match the existing home. The existing chimney is brick and will be
extended with matching brick.

As stated in the City’s Design Guidelines, no more than two wall materials should be visible on any exterior
wall. As noted above, the existing house already has three different wall materials, stone, brick and shingle
siding. With the proposed addition a fourth wall material is introduced, clapboard siding. The use of many
different wall materials can result in a busy appearance and distract from the overall design of the home.

Page 5



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

» Staff recommends replacing the clapboatd siding on the proposed addition with shingle siding to
match the existing house to avoid a busy appearance with the addition of a fourth wall material on
the home.

» Staff recommends that all trim, fascia, soffit and rakeboards be natural wood consistent with past
Board decisions and the City’s Design Guidelines.

Landscaping — This standard is met.

No trees are proposed for removal as part of this petition. Although the petitioner did not provide a
landscape plan for review, the petitioner’s statement of intent describes existing and proposed landscaping.
There is an existing deciduous tree in the front yard as well as a parkway tree located generally at the center
of the property’s street frontage. The existing trees in the front of the home can help to mitigate the
increased height and mass of the home as viewed from the street.

The petitionet’s statement of intent describes plans to plant native shrubs along the front of the home. As
the plans are more fully developed, a landscape plan will be required and include details on the new
plantings proposed for staff review to ensure that, at a minimum, foundation plantings are incorporated.

Public Comment

Public notice of this petition was provided in accordance with the City requirements and practices. Notice
was mailed by the Community Development Department to surrounding property owners and the agenda
for this meeting was posted at five public locations. As of the date of this writing, four letters with various
exhibits attached were submitted by the neighbor to the west expressing concern about impacts to natural
light due to the proximity of the proposed second story mass to the property line, within the required
setback area. The neighbor also raised concerns about existing and potential drainage issues.

Two additional letters were submitted to the Zoning Board of Appeals. One of these letters was submitted
by a neighbor to the north expressing general concerns about the potential for overbuilding on the lot and a
change to the character of the small lot neighborhood. The second letter was submitted by the previous
owner of the home to the west. This letter expresses concerns about the requested side yard setback
variance.

In addition, several form letters were submitted by neighboring property owners that generally express
support for the proposed addition.

Although many of the letters received to date are addressed to the Zoning Board of Appeals and largely
express concerns about aspects of the petition not under the purview of the Building Review Board, these
letters are included in the packet to provide the members of the Board with a full understanding of the
project recognizing that the massing and design review is closely linked with the encroachment into the
setback.

Recommendation

The Zoning Board of Appeals requested input from the Building Review Board on the massing and
design of the project and whether there are potentially other massing and design options that could
address both the Design Guidelines and minimize the need for or extent of a side yard setback
variance. Staff recommends that the Board offer comments and direction on the proposed design
and massing.

Page 6



Building Review Board — April 6, 2022

Options for Action:

» Continue the portion of the petition relating to the proposed additions to the house with
clear direction on the areas in need of further study and modification. And, approve a
motion recommending approval of the demolition of the garage and approval of the
replacement garage.

OR

» Recommend approval of the second floor addition, porch additions, demolition of the
existing garage and construction of a replacement garage based on the findings discussed and
presented during the Board’s deliberations subject to the following conditions:

1. Modify the horizontal window on the east elevation to more closely follow the window
proportions and orientations found on the rest of the home.

2. Replace the clapboard siding on the proposed addition with shingle siding to match the existing
house and to avoid a busy appearance with the addition of a different type of siding.

3. All trim, fascia, soffit and rakeboards shall be natural wood consistent with past Board
decisions and the City’s Design Guidelines.

4. All modifications to the plans including those detailed above, those made in response to
Board direction and changes made as a result of final design development, shall be clearly
called out on the plan and a copy of the plan originally provided to the Board shall be
attached for comparison purposes. Staff is directed to review any changes, in consultation
with the Chairman as appropriate to determine whether the modifications are in
conformance with the Board’s direction and approval prior to the issuance of any permits.

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a detailed, landscape plan shall be submitted and
will be subject to review and approval by the City.

6. Details of exterior lighting shall be submitted with the plans submitted for permit. All
fixtures shall direct light downward and the source of the light shall be fully shielded from

view.

7. A plan for construction parking and materials’ staging shall be submitted for review and will
be subject to approval by the City’s Certified Arborist, City Engineer and Director of
Community Development. Offsite parking and shuttling workers to the site may be
necessary due to the narrow street.

Page 7



The City of Lake Forest
Zoning Board of Appeals
Proceedings of the November 22, 2021 Meeting
EXCERPT

A regular meeting of the Lake Forest Zoning Board of Appeals was held on Monday,
November 22, 2021 at 6:30 p.m., in Lake Forest, lllinois.

Zoning Board of Appeals members present: Chairman Michael Sieman and Board
members Pete Clemens, James Moorhead, Nancy Novit, Laurie Rose, Ari Bass and Lisa
Nehring.

Zoning Board of Appeals members absent: None

Staff present: Michelle Friedrich, Planning Technician and Catherine Czemiak, Director
of Community Development

L2 23

5. Consideration of a request for variances from the front and side yard setbacks to
allow construction of a front porch and a second story addition at 624 Highview
Terrace. A lot coverage variance is also requested.

Property Owners: Jerry O'Brien and Laura Nekola
Representative: Chris Russo, project manager

Chairman Sieman introduced the agenda item and asked the Board for any Ex Parte
contacts or conflicts of interest.

Board member Nehring stated that she met Mr. O'Brien when she visited the site but
did hot have a conversation with him.

Board member Novit stated that she also met Mr. O'Brien when she visited the site,
and he reviewed the architectural design of the proposed addition with her. She
stated that despite the interaction, she can review the petition objectively.

Board member Bass stated that he exchanged pleasantries with Mr. O’Brien when he
visited the site but had no discussion about the petition.

Hearing no further declarations, Chairman Sieman swore in all those intending to
speak and invited a presentation from the petitioner.

Mr. Russo introduced the petition and stated that he has worked with the property
owners over the course of the last year to develop a plan that meets the desires of the
family. He noted that this project has been on the Zoning Board’s agenda twice in the



Zoning Board of Appeals --- November 22, 2021

past but was removed in response to concerns raised by the neighbor to the west. He
stated that the neighbor’s concems have been taken into consideration. He stated
that the owners are withdrawing the request for a variance from the lot coverage
limitation. He stated that the existing house is modest, and the owners wish to stay in
the home and expand it fo make it functional for their family. He reviewed the
proposed changes to the floor plans noting that office space, a mudroom and a
laundry room will be added to the first floor if the bedrooms are moved into a second
floor addition. He stated that the second floor addition will be built out with three
modestly sized bedrooms and two bathrooms. He noted that the family room is in the
rear portion of the existing first floor and has a vaulted ceiling which the owners want
to keep. He stated that to preserve the vaulted ceiling space, the second floor
addition is pushed toward the front of the house adding that the front of the house is
the best location for the second floor addition to minimize impact on the neighbor. He
presented an alternate plan that complies with the side yard setbacks and extends
north to south over the length of the house. He noted however that the alternative
design eliminates the vaulted ceiling in the family room and impacts light to the
neighboring home to some extent. He stated that a sunlight/shadow study was
completed and presented screen shots from the study. He stated that the design is
sympathetic to the neighbor to the west with respect to the roof forms and the length
of the addition from north to south.

Mr. O'Brien stated that he has lived in the neighborhood for about 12 years adding
that his children attend school in the community. He stated that the proposed
improvements will allow the family to grow in the house and allow him and his wife to
age in place.

Ms. Friedrich stated that the neighborhood is comprised of small lots platted in the
1920’s and is built out with homes. She stated that given the nonconforming nature
of many of the homes in the neighborhood, requests for some variances are
reasonable. She reviewed the aspects of the proposed project that encroach info
the required setbacks. She noted that an open front porch is proposed in the front
yard setback and a second floor addition is proposed within the side yard setback.
She stated that a rear porch and a replacement garage are proposed, and both
comply with the required setbacks. She stated that based on Mr. Russo’s
comments, staff understands that there has been a reduction in the footprint to
eliminate the need for a variance from the lot coverage limitation. She explained
that the existing house is sited just beyond the 40 foot front yard setback and a
variance to allow a new front porch to encroach into the front yard setback up to
three feet is requested. She stated that the open front porch could help to reduce
the appearance of mass of the front fagade and present a human scale element
to the streetscape. She noted that the existing house, including the eave and
gutteris 3'10 14" from the west property line. She stated that as proposed, the
second story addition is pulled in slightly and is located 4'2 %" from the west
property line including the eave and gutter. She noted that the property to the

Page20of 7



Zoning Board of Appeals --- November 22, 2021

west is a corner lot and as a result, the rear of the neighboring home abuts the side
of the property in this petition. She noted that the proposed second story addition
extends 24.5 feet from north to south and increases the height of the house to
approximately 24 feet in height. She noted that three letters were received from
the neighbor to the west noting concerns with drainage and limits to sunlight
reaching his home as a result of the addition. She noted that another letter was
received from a neighbor on Northmoor Road expressing concerns about granting
a lot coverage variance due to drainage issues in the neighborhood. She stated
that ten letters of support for the project were received from other neighbors. She
stated that staff recommends continuing the petition to allow the petitioner to
continue to explore alternatives that comply with the setbacks or require variances
of a lesser magnitude.

Chairman Sieman invited questions from the Board.

In response to questions from Board member Nehring, Ms. Friedrich stated that she was
unsure if a variance was granted for the second floor addition on the house to the
east of the property in this petition. She confirmed that the City Engineer has
preliminarily reviewed the drainage and grading plan and indicated support for
installation of a storm sewer along the west property line which was recently added to
the plan to help address standing water issues. She stated that the City Engineer
encouraged consideration of locating the drain more centrally in the rear yard to
collect water in that location.

In response to questions from Board member Bass, Mr. Russo stated that the potential
for an alternate plan, somewhere between the preferred plan and the alternate
presented, was not studied. He stated that the property owners want to achieve a
certain amount of space. He stated that if the second floor is extended over the
family room, eliminating the vaulted ceiling, it makes sense to extend the addition the
full length of the house north to south.

In response to questions from Board member Clemens, Ms. Friedrich confirmed that
the City Engineer can be asked to provide input on the appropriateness of the
downspouts from 634 Highview Terrace draining onto the 624 Highview Terrace

property.

In response fo questions from Board member Moorhead, Ms. Friedrich confirmed that
the proposed second floor addition conforms to the 30 foot height limitation. She
added that the alternate plan presented to the Board was not presented to staff for
review prior to the meeting.

In response to questions from Board member Nehring, Ms. Friedrich stated that she
knows that some variances have been granted in the past to homes in this
neighborhood. She stated that she does not know the specifics of the variances or

Page 3 of 7



Zoning Board of Appeals -—- November 22, 2021

how they compare in magnitude of impact on neighboring properties to the current
request. She stated that staff can conduct a study of variances in the neighborhood.

Board member Nehring noted that the house to the west has a large overhang on the
east elevation which likely limits the amount of light entering the home.

Hearing no further questions from the Board, Chairman Sieman invited public
testimony.

Donald Pochopien, 155 Maywood Road, stated that he is the owner of the property
immediately to the west. He noted that his eave is 27 inches deep. He stated that
information was provided in his letter showing how the light to his property will be
impacted by the proposed addition. He commented that he does not think a storm
sewer is necessary but noted that the downspout at the northwest corner of the house
at 624 Highview Terrace could be redirected. He noted that a swale may also be
helpful along the shared property line.

Hearing no further requests to speak from the public, Chairman Sieman invited final
comments from the petitioner.

Mr. Russo stated that the owners believe they should be permitted to build a second
floor addition and that they need to find the best way to do it. He acknowledged
that the alternate plan presented is not a good option and is not sensitive to the
existing house, the property owner, or to the neighbor. He noted that a short length of
wall, from north to south, will be less impactful to the neighbor and provides the best
design, architecturally. He noted that the room sizes proposed on the second floor are
minimal.

Board member Rose commented that it might be best to learn more about this areq,
have staff conduct some research, and allow the petitioner to explore other options
for expanding the home.

Board member Moorhead stated that the sunlight/shadow study presented is
confusing. He stated that he believes that the owner of the property at 155 Maywood
Road is correct that there will be an impact on light to his property. He stated that it
would be helpful to present a sunlight/shadow study for a winter day. He added that
it would also be helpful to understand whether there are other viable alternatives for
expanding the house. He stated that the variance request is like the request
considered by the Board for the 2 June Terrace property which was also a situation
where the houses were side by side, without a driveway separation. He noted that
many of the homes on Highview Terrace have buffers of land or a driveway between
them except for a few single story homes. He noted at this time, he is not inclined to
support this petition because the criteria do not appear to be satisfied. He stated that
he is willing to consider alfernate plans.

page4of 7



Zoning Board of Appeals --- November 22, 2021

Board member Clemens stated a willingness to support the petition. He noted that the
house to the east overshadows the single story home at 624 Highview Terrace. He
noted that the proposed addition is lower in height than the house to the east and is
consistent with other additions in the neighborhood.

Board member Nehring agreed with Board member Clemens that other homes in the
neighborhood have been expanded. She said she supports the property owners’
inferest in expanding their home to allow them to stay in the neighborhood. She
stated that the alternate design that was presented is not attractive and would not be
consistent with the character of the neighborhood. She stated support for the design
of the proposed addition but acknowledged that the increased mass could impact
light to the neighboring property.

Board member Bass agreed that the proposed addition is in keeping with additions to
other homes in the neighborhood.

In response to a question from Board member Bass, Ms. Friedrich stated that the
alternate plan was not provided to staff in advance of the meeting and was not
included in the Board’s packet. She stated that as noted by the petitioner’s architect,
the preferred plan retains the vaulted ceiling in the first floor family room at the rear of
the house. She added that any addition that is proposed will be subject to
consideration by the Building Review Board. She confirmed that the Board could
choose to continue consideration of the petition to allow further study by staff and the
petitioner.

Ms. Czerniak offered that the Building Review Board would be able to offer some input
on the design aspects of various options for expanding the house. She noted that the
properties in this neighborhood are small and there are limits fo what can be
accommodated on the properties.

Board member Novit stated that she understands the various perspectives on the
petition. She agreed that sometimes, a small lot cannot accommodate everything
that is desired. She also agreed that the petitioners should be allowed to do what
they want on their property. She noted in the past, the Zoning Board of Appeals has
granted variances for very specific instances that were not infended to set a
precedent for every property in the neighborhood. She stated that she is interested in
learning more about the variances that have been granted to date in this
neighborhood. She stated that she does not like delaying action on a petition but
noted that she is not sure that either of the options presented are the best solution for

the property.

Chairman Sieman agreed with Board member Novit's comments. He stated that he is
struggling to find the right answer. He stated that additional data may help guide the

Page 5 of 7



Zoning Board of Appeals --- November 22, 2021

Board to the right answer. He asked for clarification on whether the residence to the
west is conforming to the setbacks. He stated that a desire fo retain the vaulted
ceiling in the family room is not a hardship to support a setback variance. He stated
support for a variance for the front porch. He stated that it is his understanding, based
on the petitioner's presentation, that a variance from the lot coverage requirement is
no longer requested.

Board member Nehring noted that the front porch addition is part of the overall
design which could change based on the Board's discussion to date. She suggested
holding off action on the variance for the front porch addition.

Hearing no further comments from the Board, Chairman Sieman invited a motion.
Board member Rose made a motion to continue consideration of the petition to allow
the petitioners time to explore other alternatives and staff time to research other

variances granted in the neighborhood.

The motion was seconded by Board member Novit and approved by a vote of é-1,
with Board member Clemens voting nay consistent with his earlier comments.

Chairman Sieman asked that the Building Review Board review various concepts
developed by the petitioner and weigh in on the design aspects of the proposed

project.

In response to questions from Board member Rose, Ms. Friedrich confirmed that the
petition is currently scheduled for Building Review Board consideration in December.

Board member Moorhead stated that in his opinion, the Building Review Board may
provide valuable feedback.

In response to questions from Board member Novit, Ms. Friedrich confirmed that staff
will research whether drainage was discussed at the time the addition to the house at
634 Highview Terrace was considered.

7. Public testimony on non-agenda items.

No public testimony was presented to the Board on non-agenda items.
8. Additional information from staff.
Ms. Friedrich noted that the next meeting is scheduled for Monday, January 24, 2022.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:41p.m.

Page 6 of 7



THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST BUILDING REVIEW BOARD -- BUILDING SCALE INFORMATION SHEET

Address 624 Highview Terrace Owner(s) Jerry O'Brien and Laura Nekola
Architect Chris Russo, Project Manager Reviewed by: Jen Baehr

Date 4/6/2022

Lot Area 7950 sq. ft.

Square Footage of Existing Residence:

1st floor 1649 + 2nd floor 0 + 3rd floor 1] = 1649 sq. ft.
Design Element Allowance = 241 sq. ft.
Total Actual Design Elements
(To Be Removed) = 28 sq. ft. Excess = 0 sq.ft.
Existing Garage 463 sf actual ; 576 sf allowance Excess = 0 sq. ft.
(To Be Removed)
Existing Garage Width __ 18-4"  ft. may not exceed 24" in width on
Jots 18,900 sf or less in size.
Basement Area = 0 sq. ft.
Accessory buildings = 0 sq. ft.
Total Square Footage of Existing Residence = 1649 sq. ft.
Square Footage of Proposed Additions:
1st floor 0 + 2nd floor 737 + 3rd floor 0 = 737 sq. ft.
New Garage Area 484 sq. ft. New Garage Width 22' ft. Excess = 0 sq. ft.
New Design Elements 154 sq. ft. Excess = 0 sq.ft
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE = 2386 sq. ft.
TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE ALLOWED = 2413 sq. ft.
DIFFERENTIAL = 27 sq. ft. NET RESULT:
Under Maximum
27 sq.ft. is
1.14% under the
Allowable Height: 30 ft. Actual Height 24'-2" Max. allowed
DESIGN ELEMENT EXEMPTIONS
Design Element Allowance: 241 sq. ft.
Front & Side Porches = 154 sq. ft.
Rear & Side Screen Porches = 0 sq. ft.
Covered Entries = 0 sq. ft.
Portico = 0 sq. ft.
Porte-Cochere = 0 sqg. ft.
Breezeway = 0 sq. ft.
Pergolas = 0 sq. ft.
Individual Dormers = 0 sq. ft.
Bay Windows = 0 sq. ft.
Total Actual Design Elements = 154 sq. ft. Excess Design Elements = 0 sq. ft.




B gEozs
t 3
™ avel

Vi

Sran:

3

g

Area of Request
624 Highview Terrace







Area of Request
| 624 Highview Terrace




214 PM Fridun4g o 7 95% EE

Done CCF_000063 Open in Books @ [/f]

LAKE TOREST

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

PROJECT ADDRESS G4 H"ﬁHVlEN —T'Eﬂgﬂtg’

APPLICATION TYPE
RESIDENTIAL PROJECTS COMMERCIAL PROJECTS
[ New Residence [J Demoalition Complete | [[] New Building [OJ Landscape/Parking
% New Accessory Building [] Demolition Partial [ Addition/Alteration [] Lighting
Addition/Alteration [J Height Variance {7] Height Variance ] Signage or Awnings
[J Building Scale Variance ‘g Other DETACHGED | M ey 0
GACAGE DEMY
PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION ARCHITECT/BUILDER INFORMATION
Terry OBRiEN $laugaNekith  cprig Russo
Qumer of Property Nume and Title of Person Presenting Project
24 HiquView TerrACE ALA A\ TEETS B PLANNERS, Inc.
Cumer's Street Address (may be different from project uddress) Name of Firm
Laxe Bxest | coo4S  2eoo Bawan Ro.
City, State and Zip Code Street Address
B8431-346- 2434 . CreaML ke, L oo 4
Phone Number Fax Number City, Staie and Zip Code
b lyer © \uno. com 81S-3128- 9z00
Emarl Address i - Phone Number Far Number
CRUSSOD ALAARCHITELTS. CoMm
Email Address
- /7 A :
cnek's Signature T = Reprebautive's Signature (Archilect/ Builder)

The staff report is available the Friday before the meeting, after 3:00pm.

Please email a copy of the staff report KOWNER MEPRESENTATIVE

Piease fax a copy of the staff report O OwWNER [0 REPRESENTATIVE

I'will pick up a copy of the staffreport at . G
the Community Development Department OWNER [ REREESENTATIVE




Lake Forest Building Review Board
220 East Deerpath
Lake Forest, IL. 60045

March 24, 2022

To Whom it May Concern,

We are writing to you today regarding our property located at 624 Highview Terrace in Lake

Forest, Illinois.

It is our intention to remodel our existing 1951 vintage cape cod single-~story structure with a
partial second floor addition and enlargement of the existing front porch. While we love the
location and aspects of our home, after living here for ten years, we realize that the residence’s
design does not lend itself to convenient modern living and we hope to rectify this situation for
ourselves as well as future owners of this property. To this end, our renovation will add: a
first-floor laundry / entryway / mud room and an office space / guestroom. The first-floor
Jaundry is desirable because our washer and drier are in the basement which is accessed by a
narrow stairwell which does not meet current building safety code standards and is too narrow
for a complete handrail on either side, which poses a safety hazard. The laundry room will do
double duty as an entryway / mudroom and provide our house with a much-needed place to
store shoes and coats which is lacking in our current residence and a desirable accommodation
for family living. The first-floor office space will make it easier to work and study from home
and give us the ability to have a spare room for guests. The proposed new second-floor
bedrooms and baths, while modest in size, are configured to more modern, usable, standards

while maintaining the charm of the existing home.

As it is the Building Review Board objective to manage structural changes that impacts
established neighborhoods, we appreciate that there are several criteria that you need to

consider when approving our design request and we would like to address them in this letter.

First, the location and appearance of the requested structure must be considered in relation to
its immediate neighbors and the general streetscape. We believe that our second-story
addition is compatible with the overall appearance of our block. Many of the neighboring
houses are two story residences that have been originally constructed or remodeled to

accommodate the needs of families in a similar manner to our petition. These neighboring



homes are placed on similarly sized lots with the same non-conforming setback issues that our
property faces so that the second-~story addition we are proposing, although encroaching on to
our west-~side setback, will not stand out as unique to our property. It should also be noted that
the average square footage for several of these homes is comparable to the square footage of
the home we are requesting. Please refer to the attached pictures and accompanying details
that illustrate how our addition will be in keeping with the current streetscape of our

neighborhood.

We also considered architectural style and functionality when we limited our design to
construct the second-story addition over just the original front portion of our home. After
looking at various options with our architect which required either diminishing the size of our
second story or extending our addition over the vaulted ceiling of our great room we
determined that neither of these choices provided either functional room sizes or a pleasing
architectural style. This situation is also in keeping with previous neighborhood building
requests as it can be noted that owners of the property to our immediate east (634 Highview),
argued in their approved zoning variance that, “in order to produce a workable layout of the
second-floor addition, the entire width of the original structure . . . would have to be utilized
even though a portion of that addition will encroach into the required side yard.” Therefore,
although our design does encroach on current setback allowances, it is consistent with the
building plans allowed for our immediate east-side neighbor and maintains the character of

the present neighborhood.

A second criteria that needs to be considered is the scale of the home as regards its massing and
height. We feel we have been successful at minimizing the massing impact by creating a
design that steps the second-floor footprint backward, has hipped roof profiles to minimize
pulkiness, and enlarges the front porch with a shed roof across to break up the most prominent
portion of the addition and gives the design a more human scale. We feel that the use of
horizontal and shake siding finishes also serves to lighten the overall mass of the addition,
while blending harmoniously with the shake siding and masonry of the existing home. The
scale and height of the addition and garage are visually compatible with site elements and
adjacent buildings. The proposed additions are consistent with the existing architectural style,
while the proportions of the elevations, and visual continuity of the rooflines, are harmonious

with the existing residence and the surrounding neighborhood.



A third criteria that is considered is how landscaping will be maintained or added to enhance
the building design. It is our plan to use existing parkway and front yard maple frees, along
with bushes and other landscape features to diminish the mass of the addition from the
streetscape. Any required new landscaping features shall be consistent with the existing
natural environment on both our property and surrounding properties. We intend to primarily
use plants and shrubs that are native to Illinois and can withstand the full sun exposure and
dry conditions which exist on the front-~side of our residence such as Lead Plant, New Jersey

Tea, or St. John’s Wort.

Lastly it is important for the type, color and texture of the materials used to be considered. Our
architect assures us that the proposed exterior materials will be of the highest quality,
appropriate for the intended use and consistent with the existing style of the residence. We are
planning on maintaining our current color scheme of moss green siding with cream trim and
dark brown accents. Our choice to add horizontal siding to the front along with the current
masonry and shake siding is purposeful in that it helps, as was mentioned above, to minimize

the appearance of the size and bulk of the second-story addition.

We recognize that it is the job of the Building Review Board to consider requests very carefully
to maintain the character and value of local properties. We believe that the additions that we
have presented before the Board will enhance not only the comfort and livability of our home
but will be an asset to the Northmoor Neighborhood as the alterations made to our home will

increase the appeal and value of our residence for years to come.
Thank you for your time and consideration,

Laura Nekola and Jerry O’Brien



A L A Architects & Planners, Inc.

2600 Behan Road (at Route 176) Phone: 815-788-9200
Crystal Lake, L 60014 Fax: 815-788-9201
June 3, 2021
City of Lake Forest
Building Review Board

Letter of Intent for Variance Request
800 N. Field Drive
Lake Forest, IL 60045

Re:

Letter of Intent for Building Review Board
O’Brien Residence

624 Highview Terrace

Lake Forest, Illinois 60045

ALA project #20328

Jerry O’Brien and Laura Nekola are longtime residents of Lake Forest. They love the
community and intend to remain here, in this house, well into their retirement years. While Jerry
and Laura love their 1951 vintage 1-story Cape Cod, the home has some design flaws which they
would like to address at this time. The proposed changes presented for your consideration
include a partial second floor addition to the residence, the enlargement of the existing front
porch, the addition of a covered rear entry, and a new detached garage.

The only solution available to address their family’s needs on this lot is to create more space by
building up and relocating the existing bedrooms to the second floor. In addition to capturing
much needed living space on the main level, the second floor addition allows for opportunities to
create a mud room, with more convenient access to the detached garage at the rear of the house,
and to bring the laundry room up from the basement to the main floor. The proposed new
second floor bedrooms and baths, while still rather modest in size, are configured to more
modern, usable, standards while keeping with the charm of the existing home.

We feel we have been successful at minimizing the massing impact by stepping the second floor
footprint backward, choosing hipped roof profiles to minimize bulkiness, and enlarging the front
porch with a shed roof across to break up the most prominent portion of the addition and give the
design a more human scale. We feel that the use of horizontal and shake siding finishes also
serves to lighten the overall mass of the addition, while blending harmoniously with the shake
siding and masonry of the existing home. In addition to these design features, existing parkway
and front yard trees, along with bushes and other landscape features further diminish the mass of
the addition from the streetscape. This allows us to create a usable front porch to socialize with
neighbors and help reduce the overall massing.

The scale & height of the addition and garage visually compatible with site elements and
adjacent buildings. The proposed additions are consistent with the existing architectural style,
while the proportions of the elevations, and visual continuity of the rooflines, are harmonious

S VOFFICE\Building & Zoning Correspondence\City of Lake Forest\O’Brien Building Review Board Letter of Intent.do

> &



| 1
; Architects & Planners, Inc.

2600 Behan Road (at Route 176) Phone: 815-788-9200
Crystal Lake, IL. 60014 Fax: 815-788-9201

with the existing residence and the surrounding neighborhood. Any required new landscaping
features shall be consistent with the existing natural environment on both the subject property
and surrounding properties. Proposed exterior materials are of the highest quality, appropriate
for the intended use and consistent with the existing style of the residence. Wherever possible,
the proposed design maximizes the distance between buildings on site and on adjacent
properties. The size, scale, and nature of the additions are consistent with the existing
streetscape and character of the neighborhood.

We look forward to discussing the proposed design with you in further detail and welcome any
questions you may have. We believe that these proposed changes will only provide a positive

benefit to the homeowners, their neighbors, and the City of Lake Forest.

Sincerely,

Christopher Russo
Project Manager



A L A Architects & Planners, Inc.

2600 Behan Road (at Route 176) Phone: 815-788-9200
Crystal Lake, IL 60014 Fax: 815-788-9201

Description of Exterior Materials at 624 Highview Terrace

Existing 1-Story Residence with 2™ Story Addition:

Existing Stone

Existing Facebrick

Existing Cedar Shake Shingles

Existing Cedar Fascia & Frieze Boards

Existing Metal Gutters & Downspouts

Existing Asphalt Shingle Roof

Existing Stone Sills

Existing Aluminum Double Hung Windows

New Windows to match existing

New 6” Horizontal James Hardie or Engineered Wood Siding

New James Hardie or Engineered Wood Trim, Frieze, and Fascia

New James Hardie or Engineered Wood Shake Shingles, match existing style
New engineered wood or composite gable details & porch column surrounds
New Metal Gutters & Downspouts to match existing

New Double Hung Windows, match style of existing

New Facebrick for chimney extension, match existing

New Asphalt Shingles, match existing

New Standing Seam Metal Roof

New Detached Garage:

Stone, to match existing residence

Facebrick, to match existing residence

James Hardie or Engineered Wood Shake Shingles, to match existing residence
New engineered wood or composite gable details & brackets

New Asphalt Shingles, match existing residence

New Standing Seam Metal Roof

Garage & Service Doors as selected by Owner, match style of existing residence
New Metal Gutters & Downspouts to match existing residence



LAKE FOREST

THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS

Facade Material
Stone ¥ Wood Shingle ~ S
Brick O Aluminum Siding
Wood Clapboard Siding O Vinyl Siding
Stucco O  Synthetic Stucco
0O  Other
Color of Material
Window Treatment
Primary Window Type Finish and Color of Windows
Double Hung 0, Wood
Casement Aluminum Clad
O  Siiding Vinyt Clad
Other 0O  Other
Color of Finish
Window Muntins
O Not Provided
O True Divided Lites
Simulated Divided Lites
0J  Interior and Exterior muntin bars
O interior muntin bars only
Exterior muntin bars only
O  Muntin bars contained between the glass
Trim Material
Door Trim Window Trim
% Limestone § Limestone
Brick Brick
O Wood o Wood ~ ENAINEBXED
[0 Synthetic Material Synthetic Material ~Seam/ES WARIE
O Other O  Other

Fascias, Soffits, Rakeboards

0O  wood
B Other ENAINGEED WD o€ SAMES Huedie
O Synthetic Material




THE CITY OF LAKE FOREST
BUILDING REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION

DESCRIPTION OF EXTERIOR MATERIALS — CONTINUED

Chimney Material
X Brick
OJ  Stone
O  Stucco
B Other CAST SToMG CAP
Roofing
Primary Roof Material Flashing Material
O  Wood Shingles O Copper
O  Wood Shakes K Sheet Metal
0O  Slate O  Other
0  ClayTie
BX  CompositionShingles____
X2 Sheet Metal D NEW PLECHES $ GARAGE OVERWANL ONLT
00 Other
Color of Material
Gutters and Downspouts
O Copper
O  Aluminum J
O omer  EXS METHL UNENWIN, NsW win MATTH ENST ToBE
Fap Verifnep
Driveway Material
X Asphalt
Poured Concrete
D Brick Pavers
[J  Concrete Pavers
[0 Crushed Stone
O  Other

Terraces and Patios

O

Bluestone

3 Brick Pavers

[J  Concrete Pavers
%~ Poured Concrete
O  Other




EXISTING PLAT OF SURVEY

49vavo
HWVHA

al

i

are—] ‘% 20 NOKEd

. : Ty By \Iuﬁ..r!.:u,_oﬁ.r.nu
5 V0 es 4o manar N b i
N & Lo - ) 3
FO : g 1
& .ooni# 200k 40 Ehinad

‘a0 IR
dhus 40 MR

SIONITTI ‘159304 @iv1 “dovaddl MAIAHDIH 29 SS3daav

.mnow:.ﬂ_ .E:.m% ARV zr ‘Nyigidan L_M_mwzwzon_ mww_“_%g%.? 40 1sv3
o T £F JIHSNMOL ° OILIES 40 HALHVAD LSVAHLYON - 4314vab LsSYIHINON
el %...zﬁ.__o NOISIAKIGNS §,AVI GNV NOISNIA NI TV ‘¢ 107 d0 Livd GNY 0V ONV 6 8 L '8 CE

gans ¥ 'SOVAYAL UOOWHIHON Ol NOLLIQAV 1Sdid SAIMEY "D T ONT ¥ MO0 NL 21 107

jo
AFA¥AS 40 LV1d

SLOT 40 NOISIAl

o -t
~7

S B RESL S UM AR

:
1

311

SRt




I =

I 4

O'BRIEN RESIDENCIE

6524 HIGHVIEW TERRACEK
I1T. 60045

ILAKE FOREKEST,

NOTES:

2. VERIFY TREES T0 BE RENOVED WTH OWNER E300° PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
3, VERIFY STRUCTURE LOCATICN WTH GTHERS . 4201 RIGHT EXIST & PROPR
: . A202 LEFT EXISP, % PROBOS]
STE PLAN DEPICTED REPRESENTS A REFERENCE LOCATION HIGHVIEW TERRACE 4203 CONTEXT ELEVATIONS), 7
ONLY, NOT TO BE USED FOR STAKING, EXCAVATION, ~7T P / Y G
FOUNDATION LOCATION OR BUILDING OF ANY KIND. REFERENCE S”'E PL AN _ PROPOSED OP'HON 47 %///% W
(IVL ENGINEERING FOR ACTUAL HOUSE LOCATION AND VERIFY {E —— |72 T
I FIELD NO PORTION OF THE STRUCTURE EXTENDS OVER oy - =100 (1
SETBACKS, BULDING LINES OR EASEMENTS. HOTE TO OWNER & CONTRACTORS: YL 3
VERIFYNG ALL STTE RELATED BFORMATION HAS BEEK TRANSFERRED TO THE OWNER & CONTRACTORS AND HAS NIT BEEN S /é////? ;, “
£, REFER TO CVIL ENGNEERING PLANS FOR UTIUTY INFORMATION. ﬁgﬁﬁgﬁm%ﬂﬁ“ﬁwﬁﬁﬁwm - L;/J;” -
5. BOUNDARY BASED UPON PLAT OF SURVEY FURNSHED TO o : 35
ARCHTECT BY OWNER. VERFY LOT DIMENSIONS IN FIELD. A e e i
COPYRIGHT ASDATED (©
1 | = | 3 | 4 _ =} - LA e P |

. VERIFY UTILITY LOCATIONS.

23.00’

PROPOSED|GARAGE

w-pl’

REDUCED BY 92 SF N

|
" |
:\—EXTENT OF | | ‘
EAVE & GUTTER | |I
| '\EXISTING GARAGE |
| TO BE REMOVED 1
L il
| | I
T
| | |
|
| .
| I | |
| | . | | I
| s EXISTING : ' = (111
1l I fea) | | =
| = 1|STORY FRAME % i = -
. S| |7 1& MASONRY | == T s I
Yo | T : | | MO
| e %”VRESIDENCE | =
| =) =
TS | T EXTENT /E% E ||
il (T ot A 7 = |
[ | EAVE & = - =
[ H[]] FLLL ‘ HITT currert 2, / - l
' EXISTING _ﬂzr-?s%r.ﬁ/ = /ﬁmfff//% = 0-0f '
| 1-STORY FRAME . OFL 151 ks er s asr vl | T
|| " ===
. lRE|SIQENC|I£ | FEN \ I— [ i
[ | ‘ Bl 0 proos
| 1 i 20 | 2—-STORY FRAME
| | SONNPROPOSED 2ND I eaolor || & MASONRY ||
i e N (|||l
| i 7 GUTTER I | |
| [ i ‘| } g XTENT| OF | | |
| \ ; it PORCH F!\VE |
“ | \ . ‘&‘?‘ —:;GUTER “ I ‘
I | 0977777 NSNS T | | =
il ‘ UL 111111 g _{‘%.:mm_ | |‘ UL
40" FRONT YARD = | /== I— —"i‘
| F
BORCH 10 BE |
LNEW COVERED
REMOVED FRONT PORCH
E .
=

PROPOSED SITE PLAN

|

PROPOSEDOPTION ~ #:%

E
M)
b 4
g
i
<
e
- =
g &
e
25EE SR
ES-z%mz |
2 3
SF2SEy
8 ===

IMPERVIOUS CALCULATIONS.
LOT AREA:

ALLOWABLE BUILDING COVERAGE AREA:

EXISTING BUILDING COVERAGE:
{HOUSE, FRONT PORCH, GARAGE)

PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE:
(HOUSE, FRONT PORCH, REAR PORCH, GARAGE)
EXISTING TOTAL LOT COVERAGE:

PROPOSED TOTAL LOT COVERAGE:

DRAWING INDEX

A00D SITE PLAN, DRAWING INDEX,
GENERAL NOTES

A101 FIRS’% %OOR DEMOLITION PLAN

FIRS
A102 SECOND FLOOR DEMOLITION PLAN
SECOND FLOOR PLAN

A200 FRONT & REAR EXIST. & %

:
54}
225
ZEE:
52
[~
£5°
7,950 SF "
g5
=82
2385 SF (30%) a2
S2a
223456 SF (28.1% =2
i =21
%E [
247347 SF (31.1%) ;‘%
2E
[t
By
384647 SF (48.4%)
431243 SF (54.3%) ¢
= |5
£ 83 g
E




L

EXISTING & PROPOSED NORTH & SOUTH ELEVATIONS

CHMSEY HT.=2-0" 0 100"

M

WE -9

| HAMEd 404 SSVTIRY

18 104 SSVATRI
- 3 z-9i-+ | INERAOTRAN( NOISIA
0B 6+ |18 1z-50 |ma oeaa-zk [ta oe-Li-t) w8 0z-lo-uif | NDISAQ AUVNUWIRIA

NDIS3 TVALIONOD

$H009 1 'LSHIOI THVT
TOVIUIL MITAHOTH 29 Hi
HDNAJISHY NARIEO 2

90 ‘SEQUUEJ % SPANDTY

__ NOUVATRINOWOLSI,

COPYRIGHT ASPATED ©
ALA Archilects & Planers, Inc. |

2" [P SNARTSDE SHINGLE-STOP TRM ON

WATOHNG FACEBRICK & CAST STONE CAP
8" LP SUARTSDE FASCA BD.
AS SELECTED BY ONER

" STANDING SEAM

~—— STAGGERED CUT SHAKE (P SMARTSIDING
METAL ROOF

|—— ALUMNUN ORI EDGE ON
8" LP SUARTSIE FASCA BD.
"~ DOUBLE HUNG WHOOWS

|~ SADLE

K

=

[7———6" HORIZONTAL P SHARTSIING
o6 (P SHARTSIX CORMER B0,

I~
[

i

=
i -

g

[

e

FLEES =i

s

1-0"
1-0"

B

12

N

p—

e
e

T

W/ 11X 8 WRAP TOP & 1 X 18 BOTTON

P, COUNN CONSTRUCTI

TR 6 X 6 POST W/

10 X 10 SQUARE COL. WRAP

INFLL EXSTHG NASORRY
OPENNGS W/MATCHRNG BRICK—

CONT. RIGE VENT (TYP. ARL

[T

HH@

¥

Jll

{ 43) REAR ELEVATION

A0

E € ) FRONT ELEVATION
A200

CONT. GUTTER & DOWN SPOUT SYSTEM,
MATCH DUSTING. ACTUAL LOCATION OF

CONCRETE SPLASH BLOCKS © ALL DOWN
SPOUT DISCHARGE. AREAS —

DOWN SPOUTS TED. N FIELD. PROVIE

BAST, STONE ————— o

ST, CEDAR SHAKE j
NEW STONE SILL-

-0

T

T

7
-

1

A0

@ EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION
\A




EXISTING & PROPOSED EAST ELEVATION

_ 10282E02 =m0 04

k' 7 k) 2| 7 HOISIA It
I | LIRgad d0d AsvETad |
MR L3
@9 04 TSV
|

[ F A R e L] TRE 4GB0 Z-9 | ININOTIASA NDISAN
W Kby M8 1-K-0 |8 026201 |8 Qp--zi  [me 0c-io-in§ | NDISEQ ASYNINTANd
_ NDISIO TYDLEINGD

Iob Number
20328
Sheat Namber:
A

._“ T076-88L-518 e SSLNE S8 tavoydoey
AR :“ Eq& wegag 09T
FOVHUAL ATIAHDIH 79 __ "OU] ‘SIAUTIR]] 29 SIARHYDIY
_ ONICISTINANEO S :

[ Iy _msnm_ 3 | s . ;
] mw
=
=1
O +
T
0o o
()
LLl
O
0o
O g
o it
gs
0 . .
13| Il i — -
1 |
=
[a)
=
bt
o = 0
i =
= =
© o]
= =
oS =
@ c
HHHHHEHHE ,._. ¥
pth el _




EXISTING & PROPOSED WEST ELEVATION

PROPOSED OPTION |

<

S009 1L ISTIOL TAVT
HOVWYLL MIIAHOIH 79
__ SwIsmEmso

B -6+ Tm fz-l0-0  |org 02-82-2) |8 Gz-21-21  |ME B:S:ﬁﬂ

EXISTING LEFT ELEVATION

/=10

D)

QU] SISUUE| 3 SPATPIY

6.C. TO PROVIDE PROPER § GF
REQUIREMENTS & OCAL CODES

ROOF YENTS PER SULDNG

KOTE

%

WFILL EXNSTING MASONRY

OPENINGS W/MATCHING BRICK

1/47=1-0"

@ LEFT ELEVATION
\Mz/

COPYRIGHT AS DATED ©
AL A Arciters & Plaavers Inc.




—————— = = t—qﬂl

COLOR RENDERING |-

-~

P D
,m-.'-'ﬁl'-:‘n-
P LTI




e

13

o = T - = .
W A ) O, T _mmm_mmu ___ I I WEFBRLSIECE  OGaLIgvoop) N i
— = RAAE VIR i I #1009 Slou] O] BT (o9
@A 404 ASVaTHH | o Lsaaod oy Ml 9L1 'V 18 Peoy Ueeg 097 g _ Wm e
L RBI-H-L (B R-V-9 (RBIE-H-6 (A0 I2-8l-F | INEMJOTIAZ NDISEQ |
V-t M8 1Z-R-0 |18 02-Gz-2l e 0e-Li~Cl _as._w.u_ NOISIQ RVNIATIRd 1] 720 | Q0] ‘SIAUNR[J % SPINYITY I 2 WM
OIS RENITIAE] FOVINAL MAIAHOIH TS [} 2
Sy *|_w B _ 2 2. . _ HONHQISEY NINEO 5 A, i g i

SN e i E— —

—- — — — 1

EXISTING & PROPOSED STREETSCAPE IMAGE

o4
2l
8=
e 7
O
()
LLl
)
O E 2
O
O
‘e
0o |
3 2
= =g |
@ . @
£
B b g
S
! [ e
m 4 :_:__E: i m

(x} PROPOSED FRONT ELEVATION
B

@ PROPQSED FRONT ELEVATION
_1

_ % __:__:_7, .

b

5

PROPERTY LNE

g e by
mm| = — :
mm e ———
— mm
=———— I
I —_————
— = —— =
= - g L =
mw = = =
= = —_— |
i 20 — v
A g —— =l
= | 2l — &
—_———————— B —_———————— (=]
———— 2ey — 2se o
— | —_—
mm W mm\ M w mm
——— —_—————————————————§
_———————— |
— @ _—— i
—_—— H|
L =] Mll
= ]
—— ———————— -]
B _——
S ¥
-




— PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

—
i
=]
w =
i (I
| il
2
- z‘ B |
S5
T e
ettt
SHEl
~ 2T
b3
3z s
==
- Bz
|1
B e
el T
== =l
|§§§g| ]
1S5S el | e
izﬁzga
Ba=g2s ||
g H3EF 2
& %;EEEE |

g
B23
282
ZEg
=
EEH
e

ROOF STRUCTURAL SPECIFICATIONS

NOTES

(® =2 X 6 RAFTERS @16° 0.,

D = 21 + COLAR TES 848" OC.

@ =2 %8 RAFTERS @16" OL.

(@ =2 X6 COUAR TES @48° 0.

@© =2 X 10 RAFTERS @16” 0

® =28 00UAR TS 848 0.C.

@ =12 Y12 RAFTERS @6 0L,

@ = CHUNG JOISTS PER FLOCR PLANS

© =2 6 CHUNG JOISTS 815”02,

@ = PRE-ENGNEERED ROOF TRUSSES 624" 0.C.

® =28 CHUNG JOISTS 846" DC.

@ = PRE-ENGNEERED SCISSOR TRUSSES OR NODIFED |

@ =210 CHUNG JOISTS &5" 0L

CEUNG TRUSSES €2¢° O3, (SEE PLAYS FUR CELNGS)

@ =212 CEAING JOISTS 816" 0.C.

@ = PRE-ENGINEERED ATTIC TRUSSES 624" 0.

AL EAVES AND RAXES 1'-0" UNLESS OTHERWSE KOTED

AL RDGE, HIP AND VALLEY BOS. TO BE THE FLL DEPTH OF
THE CUT END OF THE RAFTER UNLESS OTHERWSE NOTED

FURR DOWN RAFTERS AS REQ) N VAULTED CELNG AREAS TO
CHED IR

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

ROOF PLAN, SECTION DETAIL,

WL = 34 L NEROUAN |1

15 =1 34" L5 MERGSAD 1S
I = {305 BURT P POST - RALE
ACH DRECTGH FOR WAL 0 SRACED
T 190

Q8. = OVER BULD DR = DOUBLE RAFTER
ER = EXTENDED ROGE  EV. = EXTENDED VALLEY
U8, = WDER BMD  EH. = EXTENDED HP

=)

ROOF PLAN

ALLDW FOR NSIATON AS SPECFED Y THE BULCKSG
SECTON SPECS,, PAGE
40D BLOCKNG @ RAFTER BEARNG TO MANTA OVERHNNG FROPLE
TROUGHUT UNLESS OTHERWSE NOTED s 5
PROVDE ARCHTECT WITH INOIMOUAL ROGF TRUSS LRAMNCS AND & =1 3
RODF TRUSS LATOUT PLAN SHOWNG ANY EROR PORT LOADS = g
CAUSED BY TRUSSES WHICH ARE STAPED AND “glezgid
SGHED BY A UCENSED ENGRNEER FOR AL PRE-ENGHEERED DIS8F
TRUSSES FOR APPROVAL PROR T0 FABRIGATRN. g Egs
= |83
EES
FROVDE SNPSON ‘t25K" HIBRCAYE CLPS @ EACH RAFTER =3 E £8
g 838
S g,:
2858
=5 g
2 i
= @

&

/8=

ALA

Job Nuaaber ﬁ
20328
h Shest Nrmber:

A300

COPYRIGHT ASDATED ©
ALA dchitcts & Pz, . |

o Reme 20328300 Hil|{]|




EXISTING & PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ki LY W A ] o g (I i —— T
[ Uz 508 SvATRL I ocssesimms  ooesasgrs ovondoisy {
: [} ”ﬁmwﬁ,ﬁ% | FI009 S0 ‘97T PIsKI)y _
WOGGL (ROl BB U+2 |K0 755 |W9 s | INIRAOTARG NOISSL Sp009 T1 '18TM0d TIVT SLTY 2 PFOY TR 009 |
WB -5 |8 - 050 |Y6 -0l |Ma G201zt ‘:V\E.s.«_n ﬂwﬁm %:ﬁ%w% HOVIMAL MIIAHDIH 429 U] ‘SIOUTRL] 3 SIOMOTY xr
g R 1 — _£n HONIAISHY NAEE.0
© 48
_— 1
22
£ 8
O 1
| P . A. i) £
; I
- — s 1 7 1 .
e
o= i |
gz . i I "
D by mm L | =
=
7P, y : | )
¥ | g
I =l |
O g = g =
k™ =1 = o | —
B <) ]
< = £ 2
P m = iz m B | M
[= I
O 2 |
27 I
R 5 4 T |
= ] | * m
O | : — g
7 | me = | = I 42
== I I I |
© S| =2 1 b | 0
. _ i _
B =z _ |Le———
. B i Pt
|||||||||| 2 I8 Ul )
— gal | = I 1
_.@ o “ ow =
8 e tr o =5
7 |l mm Bl po——————— e — = — S
R - e I 1 ¥ g A
_ = ! ] PR p— “ " z * MMm 0 |
|||||||||| A I g— ofiE @
—F—A| |~ i i O E &
1 ¥ = =
Mmm I
= - ®
. BIZ
4] — —T | i o I - T i | —) \ ' _‘._ ] N
£l |
¢ ¢
g g8 2
b &Mm
mmm
™
muwm
-
=3
Bafec
¥ )
|
B2
£2 L =
mn [== W
G =
£
g
Ma
3 e o he—— — n
== = =
= L
[ = ..ml _|., m “
=] =g ] _ — g |
_r* an.M [=< -5 M_mm _M_m
| z 8¢ ,/irg &
2 | 1 = =
= =" I d =
2 =L . == I_
Z _ 7 ==
L & | S
I T Ve ! i <
| I Vs | " Pt
I ! (N T : [N [
i AN I z
A F=a B ) ) _|" |||||||| == . T - i L
1 0 H [ W j@ ll 8 ! b
B B e— | I I - H = L w
N = ..|q~ I I b= o prm 2 Tl =
=z T/ I I = __F\\nMu = b | = N
o] =t r\x/_ I I mm = = Al =
M &gl k== Ll I g no=l - & =
| i : ! | of noEE =
|| “2 ¥ 2 1= e
= .Ml. ,ﬂuy [ — At - “\IIIIII_.I|J @
(il e | oo o | | -
= ke | | | N -
: - = s = " = o S e i —
B —
r -




| _ 20TB2E02  #mwK °md

k| w ki W NOISIA I
| | | R¥Ed 304 ASVATE
I ATART TYHIA __ |
I g o asvam | i

(

PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

TSBRLSIO M 006 8RLSHR uoudaL I
#1009 STOUT 231 D) (g
' J ——| O9_Hod NI, G000 T IS0 T L1 14 Te RO VR 009G [ W% =]
LR .aa R-H=l | MBS (W9 (WA -8l | LNAMCTIAIN NOISAd 5
WOUGr |9 R-0 [ oeg- [ oe-ii-et A orio-aif | NOISHD RVNIATIEN FOVIYILMTIAHOTH 19 | JU] ‘1R[] % SIOSNYIIY 5 _ WM
_ d NDISAQ TVALJIINCD ; o
5 ¥ 3 2 1 =

HONAQIST NATHA o

ENOTSIRT TVIT R
2|
O t
—
O N
[
Lil
O
— —
O
0~
O
: o]
i e j —
o —
ﬂlw_?l .............. .
1 i3 d
SH--
| _ m J
: i
: z
| 1 i .W.
| SR S
— e ]
ﬁ _mm = _
® ! = Fa
mﬁ | !
m.| _m m_
O
N 1 (a4
i — | g g
= “ £z &= ¥
D H mmmm _ 2 T @ - g i m
| gy |12/]F : : S
H_V_ | C”mm,h_,_“ : | m
| T | I e | B
I | I | === Ty | N
L | 7 — 1 = d —_—) ———————% H
. B |
4]
|
N
L]




THR-ARGK S0IDF3-20URSF

RIGHT ELEVATION

000 HUNG WNDOHS AS SFIFCTFD

1/£=1-0

s
___________________________ i
______ e |

5
k-
g
=2
g,
B T

@ FOUNDATION PLAN
A

2

1/F=r-0°

7y

CONT. RIBGE VENT (TYP. ALL RIOGES)

8 1P SHARTSOE
FRIEZE. BOURG-— |

THIN-CUT BRICK,
MATCH EXST.

THI-CUT STRHE,

e

S Sy

1/4=1-0"
2 LP SHARTSIDE SHNGLE-STCP TRIM ON
172 g
’ ,—— | ”/— %ﬁﬁ:ﬁg% E;SSIA% — ALUNINUM ORP
8 1P SUARTSIN
14 & LP SWARTSI
T % T il TYP. 8 EAE
11 = o : e
¥ -
: | T ' A T M
> A3 > 3
B | e | e | o :
—I—.—I | = = | s __ -{g
Tl =
LU =
/) FRONT ELEVATION
500 1=r-0
}_ -
' :
g
_ :
2 CAR GARAGE
5/8° FRECODE TYPE “XC GP. 0,
0 CEUNG & AL WALLS

M-

2 X 12 ONG. JOISTS

86* 0.

iy

(e FLOOR PLAN

A300

1VF=1=¢"

PROPOSED REPLACEMENT GARAGE ELEVATIONS & FLOOR PLAN

58

w| &

Fi
TEETT]
- EZ

Z[T
- kg
g §§
3T g
s
by
_ |
25
- |87
2|7
| ]
==l | g
fnze ¢
s
Egnmﬁug
zQ,23
EEEEEEE
gl=B=zgR

624 HIGHVIEW TERRACE

LAKE FOREST, IL 60045

O'BRIEN RESIDENCE

GARAGE PLANS & ELEVATIONS

S &
= S
Sle=a
=g
L |
]
=zg5
(=™ é"‘.
= |58
ziEgE
S 883
= g&8
= g
= -
< g
2

ALA

COPYRIGHT ASDATED ©)
AL A Architects & Plazners, [nc.




PRELIMINARY SITE GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

> _—|sn1 FENCE
e ST FENCE]

TREE PROTECTION - FENCING

Brio e _:}:’/\ “.’_"’-’\AJWE
= €2 &7
NG

GF=691.30
T/F=691.80

TO
BACK SIPHON
OR SUMP

174" OR LARGER
SCREENING

oSt

!
NEW 4 IN. PVC OR PE POST _AND FENCE DETAIL
PLASTIC PIPE

. The Fance sholl be located o ainimun OF 1 F0OT outside the drip lne

of tha ree 40 e saves and bn o some haer whan 5 Fevt o the
AIR GAP DETAIL ol e
. Fence posts sholl be either stondard steel pusts or wovd posts wth
imacn Lrovs sectionat arsa of 30 58 In
e ey o e ehimer 40 g snoe Fence. 40 olasei ses fencid
or any other meterial o5 approved by the engineer/insorctor,

& MRS [T

N

N
L
l.

AR

NN
150" o

—

NN
ium

oS
i

\
i

155
MAYWOOD

e

634
HIGHVIEW

_\\_

O\

EROSION CONTROL MEASURES NOTES

VEGETATIVE COVER

1. St fence sholi be instalied along the entire edge of the property. e R i‘gﬁzm{&mw&tﬁmé
2. Foliowing final grading, oll expsed oreos sholl bs seaded ond mulched BOOK, FERTLIZE AT 130 LGS/ACRE OF NITROGEN AND 40 LES/ACRE BACH OF
within 10 Calender deys of fina! groding. EHOSFECRUS] ANO FOESSRAS
3. Al drop inlcts on ond adjacent to site sholl hove silt socks batween lid ond frame. z Y?wwgg; g?"; - Safgnﬂ&”gmfgi b BELCVESE; RYE D:WWDEIA-‘;:E .
4. Unless otherwise indicoted, all vegslative and structurol srosion and sediment conrel PUCED AT A 47 THKKNESS IN AREAS SEING PREPARED FOR SEED.
practices will be canstructed occording to minimum stonderds ond specifications in the
Winoig Urbon Monuol revised February 2002. 3. ‘;‘,’;ﬁ"ﬂ: ;ﬁg%#;?wx‘;g "wa" mi‘?‘o": s
5. The McHenry County Department of Planning & Devaioprment must bo notified A0 S STALES, INSTAL s O MAURAGTURER'S
one week prior lo the pre—construction conference, one week prior to the
commencement of lond disturbing activities, ond one week prior to the final inspection.
6. Temporary seading or stobilizotion shall be established in any area which is not under [Siabilization luan [FeEs heam lapr |mar | Jun|JuL [avs SEF.UCTiNC\'l pE-:
octive disturbance for @ o 7—doy time frame. e - = 1
7. A cogy of the opproved erosion ond sediment contro) plan shall be mointained on Sceding | AEA 3 Swp 1 l
the sie of ol times. Fermgnent 500 |
. . . . - - |Seeding. W
8. The contractor is responsible for installation of any oaditional erosion control T T
meosures necessery fo prevant srosion and sedimentation os dalermined by Sowding ——
McHenry County. B 3
Sodding o T I el
9. During dewatering operotions, waler will be pumped into sediment basins or silt
trops. Oewotering into drain tiles or stormwotor structues is strictly prohibited. [ Mulching [ 1
Corpramised drain ties shoutd be immediately bendened of repaired.
. i OWNER TION
*| CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF LAW THIS DOCUMENT AND ALL
CONTRACTOR CERTIRCATION ATTACHMENTS WERE PREPARED UNDER MY DIRECTION OR SUPERWISION IN
CE B ACCORDANCE WITH A SYSTEM DESIGNED TO ASSURE THAT QUALIFIED
H [ G [/ & | CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF LAW THAT [ UNDERSTAND THE PERSONNEL PROPERLY GATHERED AND EVALUATED THE INFORMATION
. ¥ “"Enéﬁ::g"‘;‘%':f o rg‘f (gg;g‘)l PE";":?T"‘: m:%;“;m" | SUBMITIED. BASED ON_MY INQUIRY OF THE PERSON OR PERSONS WHD
HARG MANAGE THIS SYSTEM, OR THOSE PERSONS DIRECTLY RESFONSIBLE FOR
R T O A B croN Eeh O TinEs GATHERING THE INFDRMATION, THE INFORMATION SUBMTTED 1S, TO THE
S PAR OF THIS CERTPICATION- BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, TRUE, ACCURATE, AND COMPLETE.
_s_ S — = d ) AM AWARE THAT THERE ARE SIGNIFICANT PENALTIES FOR SUBMITTING
= SCALE: 1°= 10" FALSE INFORMATION, INCLUDING THE POSSIBIUTY OF FINE AND
WARNING | WPRISONMENT FOR KNOWING VIOLATIONS.
- ) CONTRACTOR DATE
4 10 20 b——— — | poanirm DATE
DATE FENARKS — T Batt
etz oo ;IN_E—HRM» , 1814 CRANDSTAND puce  ||LAKE FOF IESéF i EESID Eas 1"=10"  |6/8/21
g =21 __LPER OWRLE el M ELGIN, ILLINDIS 60123 BR EN —
& 4 BR ENGCE
P == d’) phone 847.697.7095 ENRRE: SR o 00 .
CALL BEFORE YOU DIG

fox B47.687.7099 625 HGHYEW TERRACE AMC 5728
— 1| SCHEFLOW schefloweng.com vccxs o Cay

— Seginerrs e || GRADING AND SOIL EROSION CONTROL PLAN |rcc 2 of 2
5728

6728




NEIGHBORHOOD IMAGES SUBMITTED BY THE PETITIONERS



Adjacent Neighboring Residences

634 Highview Terrace

1951 - 2 story — 9 rooms

5 bedrooms, 3 bath, 2,836 sqft, 7,915 sqft lot

Master bedroom: 16'9"X14’ (2™ floor)

Other bedrooms: 10X11'7” (2" floor), 15’1”X11’8" (2" floor), 13'8"X10’ (2™ floor), 16’6"X10’ (15! floor)
Lot Dimensions: 53X150

Combined setback between 624 and 634 = 15'43”

Variance Granted 9/26/1994 (excerpts of Zoning Board meeting minutes)

Petition: Request variation from interior, side-yard setback requirements to allow the construction of a second-floor
addition over and existing single-level residence.

Property Description: . . .The existing residence on this property is a small, 1950s ranch, which was originally built
4.64 feet of the west property line.

Request Description: The petitioner is requesting a variance to allow the construction of a second-floor addition
that would encroach into the required interior, side-yard setback by 5.36 feet.

Key Issues:

1. In order to build a viable, second-floor addition over the footprint of the existing residence, that addition
will necessarily encroach into the required side-yard area along the west side of the property.

2. The house was originally sited nonconforming to the property’s side-yard setback, prior to the enactment
of the present Zoning Code.



Hearing Report:

.. .They stated that the existing home to which they are proposing a second floor addition, is presently encroaching
on the property’s west side. They also stated that they had worked with the staff to achieve an addition which would
be consistent with the prevailing character of the neighborhood. He noted that there are other similarly sized, two-
story homes in the area, one of which is the neighbor immediately to the west [east].

. . .[the petitioner] stated that when they purchased the home in August, it was their intention to build a second floor
addition but their realtor had not informed them that the house was presently nonconforming.

.. .Furthermore, [a board member] stated that the [petitioners] are a couple with plans to raise a family, and
therefore, the enlarged house is practical.

Zoning Board of Appeals Findings:

1. The variance, if granted would not alter the essential character of the neighborhood because the remodeled
home will be similar in scale and design to many of the homes found in the immediate area.

2. The conditions upon which this petition of variation are based are unique to this property and are not
applicable to other properties within the same zoning classification, because of the fact that in order to
produce a workable layout of the second floor addition, the entire width of the original structure (18 feet at its
narrowest) would have to be utilized even though a portion of that addition will encroach into the required side
yard.

3. The hardship on this property is not caused by the petitioner but rather, is satisfied by the fact that the original
house over which the addition is to be built, was originally constructed nonconforming to its setbacks, prior to

the enactment of the present Zoning Code.

Letter from Petitioner:

.. .If the second floor addition were to be built within the setback code the elevations would be out of character with
the majority of the neighborhood. The home would look very contemporary and out of proportion. We are
interested in turning the current 1 story ranch into a classic colonial looking home. My architect (Ed Mindak) and |
discussed various alternatives that would allow the addition to be within the setback code and in all instances the
home would be out of character with the neighborhood.



155 South Maywood

Pl m -
o N I

1954 - 1 story — 7 rooms

3 bedrooms, 2 bath (1 in unfinished basement), 1,389 sq ft

Bedrooms: 13X12, 10X10, 10X11

Lot Dimensions: 73X150 sqft, 11,064 sqft

Combined setback between 135 S. Maywood and 624 Highview = 13'84” between properties
Redfin Listing — March 2020

What a setting! Imagine looking out over South Park, walking to the playground, or hopping on the bike path!
Minutes to downtown Lake Forest and train stations either in Lake Forest or Ft. Sheridan! Solid and Sturdy, one
owner home, affords a LOT of options! It is in need of TLC (rehab) or city would allow new home of 2848s. f. plus
576 s. f. for garage. - Create your perfect place! Great corner lot. Currently three bedrooms, 1 bath, plus one bath in
basement, hardwood floors, fireplace, kitchen with breakfast table area. Full basement. Three car garage with large
being sold in AS IS condition. Truly a nice opportunity to live in a beloved neighborhood!



135 South Maywood

1937/1947 (?) 1.5 story — 10 rooms — 2013 addition

4 bedroom, 4 bath, 3,045 sqft

Lot Dimensions: 150X73, 10,968 sqft

Trulia Listing:

Chamming 5 bedroom, 4 bath East Lake Forest Cape Cod across from beautiful South Park. Walk to Market square,
train, beach, college. Cozy living room with fireplace and bay window. Large family room. Sunny new kitchen with eat-

in bay window. Ground-floor master with luxurious bath and walk-in closet. 3 bedrooms and 2 baths upstairs. Fenced
yard. Stone patio. Attached 2-car garage. Fully finished basement with additional full bath.

Neighborhood Description

Very friendly family neighborhood, with a wonderful park across the street. You will love the open feel because of the
view from this house. Bike path is easy you get to, and tennis court and baseball diamond with batting cage will be
handy for the older kids. For the younger ones, the playground will delight. Stroll toward the beach or college and you
will be stunned by the many beautiful multi-million dollar homes nearby.



631 Northmoor

1999 - 1.5 story — 9 rooms

4 Beds - 3.5 Baths - 2,131 Sq Ft, 7,841 sqft lot

Master bedroom: 15X15 (with full master bath) (2" level)

Other bedrooms: 15X12 (2" level), 16X12 (2™ level), 12X12 (2" level)
Lot dimensions: 53X 150 sqft, 7,840 Sq. Ft

Redfin Listing 2014:

Superb East Lake Forest location next to South Park in Northmoor subdivision! Charming 1999 Cape Cod w/ great
floor plan. Wonderful kitchen w/ cherry cabinets , granite counters & Stainless appliances opens to FR w/ FP. DR w/
hardwood flrs & built ins. Cozy living rm. Master w/ 2 walk in closets. Finished LL w/ kitchenette/bar & bath. Fenced
yard & 2 car detached garage. Walk to park.



Highview Streetscape

644 Highview Terrace

=

1959 - 2 story — 10 room

3 bedrooms, 2.5 bath, 1,531 sqft, 8,041 sqft lot

Master bedroom — 11X25 (2" level)

Other bedrooms: 12X14, 11X12 (all on 2" level)

Dining room: 13X13 (main floor former 4" bedroom)

Lot Dimensions 53X150

Redfin listing:

Charming Cape Cod home located just steps to South Park. Beautiful hardwood floors, updated kitchen with granite
countertops, lovely sunroom used as eating area. Wooden beamed ceiling, marble fireplace, French doors. Finished

basement with office and half bath. Dining room originally 4th bedroom and can be converted back. Nice backyard
with 2 car garage. A truly delightful home!



605 Highview Terrace

1949 - 2 story - 9 room

4 bedroom, 2.5 bath, 1,550 square feet, 7,405 sqft lot

Master bedroom: 15X13 (2™ level)
Other bedrooms: 9X6 (2" level), 16X9 (2" level), 15X12 (basement)

Lot: 50X150
Variance Granted 11/26/1990 (excerpts of Zoning Board Meeting Minutes)
Petition: Request for variation from interior side yard setback requirement to allow retention of an addition which is

located within 5.93 feet of interior side property line, instead of 10 feet as required by the Zoning Code.

3. The hardship on this property is not caused by the petitioner but as a result of the Zoning Code, and that the
Code requirements for side yard setbacks have been increased from the requirements in existence when the house
was constructed.



613 Highview Terrace

1953 - 1 story

1.5 bath, 1,094 sqft, 7,436 sqft lot



619 Highview Terrace

1947 - 2 story — 7 rooms

4 bedroom, 2 bath, 1,641 sqgft,, 7,431 sqft lot

Master bedroom: 19X10 (2™ level)

Other bedrooms: 14X9 (2" level), 12X10 (main level), 13X11 (main level)

Lot Size Dimensions:148X51

Combined setbacks between 619 and 627 = 14'6”

Redfin Listing:

Move right into this 4-bedroom Cape Cod Charmer in the desirable Northmoor neighborhood just steps from South
Park and close to town & train. Light & bright 1st floor offers multiple living options with 2 bedrooms, a full bath, and
living room with cozy fireplace. Newer white kitchen has sunlit dining nook with large bay windows and handsome
hardwood floors. Second floor includes spacious master bedroom with its own private sitting area as well as full bath
and 4th bedroom. Stone-tiled patio and lush enclosed backyard with southern exposure make home perfect for

entertaining. 900+ square foot basement includes high ceilings/recessed lighting. Building plans for an addition also
available - so many possibilities. Come see this affordable and adorable gem!



627 Highview Terrace

1953 - 3 story — 11 rooms

4 bedroom, 3.5 bath, 3,529 sqft, 7,414 sqft lot.

Master bedroom: 14X16 (2™ level)

Other bedrooms: 13X13 (2" level), 12X13 (2™ level), 14X15 (3™ level)
Office: 11X 14 (main level)

Lot: 50X150

Combined setbacks between 627 and 633 = 11'56”

Combined setbacks between 627 and 619 = 14'6”



633 Highview Terrace

1959 - 2 story — 8 room

3 Bedroom, 2.5 bath, 2,456 sqft, 7,562 sqft lot
Lot: 50 ft front footage 150 depth footage
Combined setbacks between 633 and 641 = 11°62”

Combined setbacks between 633 and 627 = 11°56”



641 Highview Terrace

10f29

1937 - 2 story — 8 rooms

3 bedroom, 2 bath, 1,691 sqft, 7,366 sqft lot

Master bedroom: 12X15 with master bath (2" level)
Other bedrooms: 12X9 (2" level), 10X11 (main level)
Lot: 50°X150°

Redfin Listing:

This lovely home backs up to old growth woods and bike/walking paths in this desirable east Lake Forest
neighborhood, close to Market Square and Lake Forest Beach. You will find hardwood flooring throughout the main
level, the foyer is flanked by the living room (wood burning fireplace and leaded glass window) to the right, and
dining room (custom hand painted wall mural adding subtle beauty) to the left. Straight through the dining room is
the gleaming updated Ovation kitchen in solid wood custom cherry inset cabinets with a black wiped glazed air loom
finish and granite counter tops. High end appliances include Wolf dual fuel range/oven and Wolf microwave drawer,
Subzero refrigerator with custom solid wood panels, Ascot dishwasher, Julien under mount stainless steel deep sink
with Rohle faucet. First floor bedroom and walk-in closet. Next to beautiful white full bath with vintage tub, Kohler
sink/fixtures, subway tile and charming small tile flooring. Upstairs the Master spa awaits with an open shower,
tumbled natural stone tile, heated towel bars, and Grohe fixtures. To the bones of this Cape Cod beauty is a new
high efficiency boiler offering comfortable radiator heat, a new 50 gallon hot water heater, a new roof, and new solid
wood garage doors. The basement is full of custom storage cabinets that are all yours! The private backyard
features a multi-level cedar deck and well-planned annual gardens. A truly well cared for and delightful home with
the right balance of original charm and updates. An addition to the south of the home is possible. This is truly an

immaculate gem!



651 Highview Terrace

1939 - 2 story

2.5 Bath, 2,566 sqft, 7,423 sqft lot
Combined setbacks between 651 and 659 = 8’
Combined setbacks between 651 and 641 = 11°62”

Lot: 51°X150’



SUN/SHADOW IMAGES SUBMITTED BY THE PETITIONERS

(REFERENCED IN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING MINUTES
AND CORRESPONDENCE)



SUN STUDY - EXISTING CONDTIONS

(O’Brien Residential Sun Studies | ;_

VAL A A
ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS, INC.

Existing on June 20th

e

5:21-6:21 AM 6:21 - 7:21 AM 7:21 - 8:21 AM 8:21 - 9:21 AM 9:21 - 10:21 AM
//s-.\u : f = '/\\”%] e | ‘ | — 2l o =2 1
§ *:jiE | _j—*‘.ﬁ\t._i_——jﬂ .
10:21 - 11:21 AM 11:21 AM - 12:21 PM 12:21 - 1:21 PM 1:21 - 2:21 PM 2:21 - 3:21 PM

3:21-4:21 PM 4:21 - 5:21 PM 5:21- 6:21 PM 6:21 - 7:21 PM 7:21 - 8:21 PM

Lake Forest, lllinois




SUN STUDY - PROPOSED CONDITIONS

O’Brien Residential Sun Studies

Proposed on June 20th

g

5:21 - 6:21 AM 6:21 - 7:21 AM 7:21 - 8:21 AM 8:21 - 9:21 AM 9:21 - 10:21 AM

10:21 - 11:21 AM 11:21 AM - 12:21 PM 12:21 - 1:21 PM 1:21 - 2:21 PM 2:21 - 3:21 PM

3:21 - 4:21 PM 4:21 - 5:21 PM 5:21 - 6:21 PM 6:21 - 7:21 PM 7:21 - 8:21 PM

Lake Forest, lllinois




ALTERNATE DESIGN CONCEPTS PROVIDED BY PETITIONER



COPYRIGHT AS DATED (©
1 | =2 1 3 | a4 | =) | [ | rd ALAAm«uuum:mJ_

1 | =2 | 3 I 4 I 5 I & | 7 I
z
K
I 4
O'"BRIEIN RESIDENCIK = | 5
Bl=
IE]
24 HIGHYVIEW TERRACIE N n 05
“ - — I <
[
LA K FORESTD IT. 60045
9 .:IML | le
:E z
53.00° 18]
E?é‘és 2
B 2 £ EEEE%EZ
- ggzl =1
ezt
| ‘ | ‘
|
N—extent oF ‘ | ‘
B EAVE & GUTTER || | | |
it | S s | It
(]| | 35" REAR YAl |
I | Il ;
7-il §-64 |
i ¥ ¢
=
1 | IFROPOSZY e =
ik (I w), e | agn o New 2
| 5 . s —
h I 7 S
Il _ . M
4 i | .
L1 L = ;5% ;ﬁff = | |
| =N o =g AT P
o / . > | I 5.
| — al “ | | Sg =
| _/."'j! g S I 2E
c " == - A +
| | ||| EAVE &/ /" ;." B ff'i]
| 1y 111 GUTTERT | /"//é: ._ zg
it EXISTING o = —— 530
1-STORY FRAME | o ‘“[- i / s v | ‘ [T Rl
& MASONRY i / A ==
([RESIDENCE, wie EXISTING =2
N e | 2-STORY FRAME 5E
xowl & MASONRY | &
rg RESIDENCE HE |
— [ | SumreR " %E ‘ 1 ‘ | %i’i‘ 2
/ 0 UTFER | | |
I 1 i — B
| | | 700 W L 53 ,}é ! 7 f : | | ‘ || g §
40[FRONT YARDT| =~ A1 Flezd
| = L
ot EE
D EXIST FRONT | = 3=
PORCH TO BE L_NeW COVERED SAEEL
FRONT PORCH E ﬂ% §§
E * < ]
|
T ONOTES:
1. VERFY UTILITY LOCATIONS. . %
2. VERIFY TREES T0 BE REMOVED WITH OYNER £ 00 Lo BAAN
. 4, %%
5 Bam G0
3. VERFY STRUCTURE LOCATION WTH OTHERS, PR L )
SITE PLAN DEPICTED REPRESENTS A REFERENCE LOCATION HIGHVIEW TERRACE o @// ,/ ///; %
ONLY, NOT T0 BE USED FOR STAKING, EXCAVATION, ~7J ey A g Yyt
= FOUNDATION LOCATION OR BUILDING OF ANY KIND. REFERENCE S”E PI. AN _ ALTERN ATE OP'“ON % // %/ % W
CIVR. ENGINEERING FOR ACTUAL HOUSE LOCATION AND VERIFY s — v
IN FIELD NO PORTION OF THE STRUCTURE EXTENDS OVER A - =100 , o A
SETBACKS, BULOING LINES OR EASEMENTS. RICTE_TO OWNER & GO T L PR A9 A
B TE RONEE s WELDES & Ho WD 0, I AUPHGLE ADRG A OOV, e T g
4. REFER 70 CIVIL ENGINEERING PLANS FOR UTIUITY INFORMATION. s o sl ot i A Do Pl T o pE O s Gk g
COULD NPACT OR PEDE THE SUCCESSFUL OMPLETKN OF PORTIONS OR THE ENTRE PROECT %, i @
5. BOUNDARY RASED UPON PLAT OF SURVEY FURNISHED TO p N
ARCHITECT BY OWNER. VERIFY LOT DIVENSIONS IN FELD. DI & T O W NI TR 65 AN { i
2




ALTERNATE DESIGN

Pros:

e Conforms with side yard setback — NO variance required
e Square footage on second floor as shown will allow home to have

needed rooms Cons:

e Would need to eliminate the vaulted

family room ceiling
The most lived in room of the house

e Design does not utilize existing bearing walls

e Length of addition on left side of home
will be more than double the proposed design

e Greater protentional to loss of light for the

neighbor than proposed design




_ | dimuad

ALTERNATE OPTION

SRR

178 -10-21§ _

NOISIA __ |
40T A5V

|
e wos s | |
INEROTANS NOISTD

NOISIT RMVNIATIING
NOISAT THAIJIONOD

HINTA TVNIA

Sp009 T1LSEAOL DAV
HOVYHAL MTIAHOTH 29
FONIQISHA NIIE.0

TEG9BLSI8 . OOTGBgL-518 voudaL

U099 SO0 ‘e LD
911 T 18 Pecy Uegog 005¢

U] ‘SIQUUE]] % SPSNYITY

= —

——+ IR

i
—
&

#0138 40013 1543 20 NLOO

OUTLHE COF FIRST FLOOR BELOW

-0

i1Zs

@ SECOND FLOOR PLAN — ALTERNATE OPTION
A0

COPYRIGHT 45 DATED ©)
AL A Archilects & Planers, [ne. |




1 T = T 3 T @ T = 5 = e T = T —
| | f
O'"BRIEN RESIDENCE - e
z
< Els
A A L £
24 HIGHYIEW TERIRACIE il
- = 2l | | ]
s
LAKTEFE FORREKST I1. 0045 JE ||
I ] il L
| S i
53.00’ 23 || L
| T
- Bite ¢
| SgoEEE
Basaus
‘ R
.|
[ | ‘
_ | . |
P,
} = L | ‘ M
"\ EXISTING GARAGE N1}
35: REAR YAI TO BE REMOVED |
({[|] e ‘ ‘
|
|
‘ I R M I 8
| T | ‘Eé
| B 47 =
(et a5, | [ See ] R g 7oA 58
» ISt 7/// E
I I Eﬁ §
| | | o Q3
aifh : = Il | | |
| =
% | ' E z -
Hifh (I i
- [ SR (=}
[==]
(< W | | ‘| ‘ é:«’
| =g
WL | -— o
‘ EXISTING £ 8
1—STORY FRAME - I I T T = &
' & MASONRY o m i INM ‘ HH| ‘ | | R
RESIDENCE [ ! S35 ¢
, | EXISTING £3
| ' ! 2-STORY FRAME | =E A
| ] oF & MASONRY B8
- ; JoR RESIDENCE ||| | B f .
3 | (] | 2 =
oF ‘ | ‘ L
; 2 = - I
‘ | ‘ ‘ %& NN ) \ I
AT TAEAEL W ee Lok 7 oS il (AR g
; e e Y LT ¥
40’| FRONT YARD *'*L‘-—-— o — % ,i . .,%
T E|ges
o EXIST FRONT | =z
PORCH TO BE ll_NEw COVERED g E §§
FRONT PORCH pAEEF
glgks
= - % é
< é E ﬁ
|}
[ NOTES:
1. VERIFY UTILITY LOCATIONS,
% D,
2. VERFY TREES TO BE REMOVED WITH OWNER 5300 . 5 % ég’
. 2%, %%
3. VERIFY STRUCTURE LOCATION WTH OTHERS. ot % Ly y/% AL
, Z %, %,
AT gy HIGHVIEW TERRACE T AL
\ , \ e, 5 I
FOUNDATION LOCATION OR BUILDING OF ANY KIND. REFERENCE LY R W
B (L ENGNEERNG FOR ACTUAL HOUSE LOCATION AND VERFY £\ SITE PLAN - ALTERNATE B OPTION LAY
IN'FIELD NO PORTION OF THE STRUCTURE EXTENDS OVER Ao0g T=10-0" ! -
S, DG U 7 SIS NOTE fo SRR & ConASTES.
mmmmmlmmm«mmmmmmm}mmwmmm é,
4 REFER TO CIVIL ENGNEERING PLANS FOR UTILTY INFORMATION. e e
5. BOUNDARY BASED UPON PLAT OF SURVEY FURNISHED TO e S L
ARCHITECT BY OWNER. VERIFY LOT DIMENSIONS IN FIELD. e fhwiTad P mTE Ks frol,
COPYRIGHT ASDATED ©
1 | =2 | 3 | 4 | (=3 | 5] | - ALA Ahitats& Pamers, . |
: _ I




ALTERNATE DESIGN B

e

H
1
2

i

Pros:

e Conforms with side yard setback - NO variance required

L *ﬁT;‘—_;I;L—

MU

it

e NS
et 2 N\ e Master bedroom significantly undersized
e Stair placement offset from exterior wall creates
= inefficient use of space
Ty
i e Office niche space greatly reduced from

proposed design

e Exterior not ideal. Zero depth overhangs on left

side due to setbacks

HH

e I 3

e he i ==l = & e Second floor loft space eliminated




$9009 T 'LSHIOd TV
TOVIIL MTIAHOH 179

ALTERNATE B OPTION

-
00M

80 016,

CARPET F1R.

T026-98L-518 Xed

QU] ‘SIUUE[J 7 SIONTOTY

CORYRIGHT ASDATED (©
AL A Arcitets & Panters,fn. |

17810

e

fa
-5

S
ol
|
—

i’

1SIR

5-3
5-3

@ SECOND FLOOR PLAN - ALTERNATE B OPTION

§-3




	435.Oak.Knoll.Drive.04.06.2022.pdf
	1150.Highland.Avenue.04.06.2022.pdf
	624.Highview.Terrace.04.06.2022 - no correspondence.pdf
	SMSM-Copier22040113590
	SMSM-Copier22040114000
	SMSM-Copier22040114001
	SMSM-Copier22040114010
	SMSM-Copier22040114011
	SMSM-Copier22040114012




